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KEER
Dairy Queen

.09,

Turnover for the year ended 31 December 2019 was RMB2,103 million,
increased by 5% compared to RMB2,004 million for the last year.
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BEEPREILIHHE Hop Hing owns the rights to operate QSR
REBREREHR KEE chains, including Yoshinoya, Dairy Queen,
B FREREBEREHETF Uncle Fong and self-developed brands <&
REMTEARNNREESY B Z F” and Chatting, in the northern
JEZRER - #EHEIWREF part in the PRC. Operating areas span
dEmKEXRED A across Beijing and Tianjin municipalities, -, 1

H -BEEH EHEIE F Hebei, Liaoning, Heilongjiang, Jilin, . - \§

PE AR E  ILEE KRB Henan, Shanxi and Shaanxi Provinces, and

AERARLBERE- the Inner Mongolia Autonomous Region ' ™
in the PRC. /',."‘",h

6 SEEEZERERAR
HOP HING GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED



&S

= 3 K

REBNFARERBERE

B-BFEL

Yoshinoya is
A WELL-KNOWN
BEEF RICE BOWL
BRAND with over
100 years’ history

13

RisaE

Financial Highlights

EEESE ]

Yoshinoya Stores

,é??]%égéyﬁﬁﬁﬁi

H b5 &
Other Stores

Dairy Queen Stores

KEERF
ASRDNCERR SR BB
tHERES

Dairy Queen
is APOPULAR
ICE-CREAM BRAND
with over 70 years’
history

—B-NEER 7

Annual Report 2019



8

FEHRS
Chairman’s Statement

REBEFER  hEARLME ([HE])RINEDT
LADEFERIR - RGBEEHRELEERTHE
E-BAEREE LRCHERE ([BRED K
mE - mIEMFERPT S| 3B AR A H R 2B
A BE—TRI-BEMN AREEEKE
BEIHT - & BIS U RRTRERE -

RIZB-NEFE EREREFEREN HIETER
RAE - ERTENERRE Wl TEZERK
BESEGS EMNE TRANERAEEAR
RSB R B R - B ERTTEN R AR ERAFE
LEREME - AL BERE=T7MEFRKER
BLETR BEHDRESRTT RN =M - SRR &
RELESRARBBL TBEL TELHB
LMt BEREBINR —LERERLEE
REITERER-

SEEEZERERAR
HOP HING GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

During the year under review, the People's Republic of China (the “PRC")
faced increasingly complex challenges, both at home and abroad. The
Sino-US trade conflict affected negatively on the economy. The food and
beverage (the “F&B") sector was hit by escalating prices on meats, and was
further aggravated by the African swine fever which drastically reduced
domestic pork supply. Nonetheless, our management team proactively
embarked on measures that enabled Hop Hing to overcome various
obstacles.

In 2019, the F&B sector continued to expand and the takeaway segment
developed rapidly. Such growth attracted competitors from other
industries, brought changes to the long-established catering enterprise
business model and spurred technological development. However,
long-standing issues remained, most notably the increasing cost of raw
materials, labour, rent and third-party delivery platforms, all of which
continued to erode profit margin. At the same time, operations became
increasingly digitalised and internet-focused, as well as more retail-oriented.
The combination of such developments placed certain traditional operators
at a disadvantage, facilitating industry consolidation.
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Chairman’s Statement

While “change is the only constant in life”, another constant that remains
true, particularly for the F&B industry, is that good food and services
underpin success. At Hop Hing, we have continued to adhere to our
principle of dedication to improving customer satisfaction. In 2019, both
sales and number of new stores continued to grow. The independent
operation of the Hop Hing financial shared service centre and supply
chain subsidiary resulted in more cohesive operations throughout the
organisational structure, resulting in greater efficiencies. As customer
satisfaction has always been our top priority, the Group has actively
improved its products, services and workflow by analyzing customer
feedback. Furthermore, we have bolstered our incentive scheme to
motivate our store managers. With increasing technological support,
such as self-service ordering machines and WeChat ordering program,
operational efficiency has improved, particularly during peak business
hours. Our upgraded customer relationship management (CRM) system has
allowed us to conduct targeted marketing and sales to different customers
according to their preference and needs. Capitalising on our own delivery
service team, we have improved online marketing and sales activities,
consequently increasing related income.
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In 2020, the PRC economy is expected to face various continuing
challenges, but perhaps most significant will be the COVID-19, the first
cases of which were reported at the end of 2019. Service industries
including F&B and entertainment look set to suffer major hits. The PRC
government has already launched a series of policies, including injecting
liquidity, offering financing support, adjusting tax policies and postponing
social security payments to assist companies experiencing dwindling cash
flows — helping them regain momentum and resume normal operations
as soon as possible. We believe further tax and expense relief measures
will be initiated by the PRC government to boost spending and economic
expansion in the near future.

The Group, like other catering enterprises in the country, has been
suffering from the outbreak, with certain stores temporarily suspending
operation. Nonetheless, we have been ensuring that a number of stores
continue to open, while closely monitoring the situation as part of our
strong commitment to protecting the health and safety of our employees
and customers. Under such hostile operating environment and despite
having issued a profit warning on 20 March 2020, the Hop Hing Group
is concurrently facing both challenges and opportunities. In the first half
of 2020, we will moderate new store openings and our cashflows will
be focused on safeguarding our current operations. We will also stand
together with suppliers, while seeking to relieve financial pressure on
the Group brought about by the pandemic. Based on the government
guidelines, we will reopen certain affected stores as soon as safely possible.
We will also adhere to our best practices, guided by our basic principle
of "Dedication to Customer Satisfaction”, to provide consumers with
delightful, safe and healthy products, complemented by quality services.
In response to growing demand for delicious and convenient home
meals, the Group has launched a new “Family Kitchen” product line, which
includes pre-packaged food products and “non-contact” delivery services.
The Group will continue to develop this product line, which will feature an
even wider ranges of choices, and will leverage our well-equipped stores
which are able to support delivery services. While improving the quality
of our core products, we will also increase the variety of keenly priced
products, so as to meet customer demand for diversity, refined taste and
affordability, which is in alignment with our customer-oriented operational
strategy and guiding principles. In addition, we will increase investments
in technology, in order to build a data analysis platform that is capable of
analyzing customer demand more speedily and accurately, leading to the
prompt adjustment of operational strategies according to what the market
dictates. We will also continue the incentive schemes, streamline our
business workflow, and improve overall operational efficiency.
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Chairman’s Statement

As we brace for the COVID-19 pandemic and downward pressure on the
PRC economy in 2020, we will place utmost importance on leveraging all
of the Group’s attributes to overcome whatever obstacles that may arise,
so as to achieve the business goals of Hop Hing for 2020. | would like to
take this opportunity to extend by appreciation to our Board members,
management and staff for their diligence and staunch support. | wish to
also express my gratitude to our customers, shareholders and business
partners for their trust and loyalty to the Group.

SETO GIN CHUNG, JOHN
Chairman

Hong Kong

30 March 2020

—E-hEER
Annual Report 2019

11



12

EIRE51 Rk i

Management Discussion and Analysis
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Having considered that most of the Group's transactions are denominated
and settled in RMB and the change of presentation currency will also reduce
the impact of any fluctuations in the exchange rate of the HKD against the
RMB, the board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) believes that it is
more appropriate to use RMB as the presentation currency for the Group's
financial statements starting from 2019, so that the shareholders of the
Company will be presented with a clearer picture of the Group's actual
financial performance. The comparative figures for the same period of 2018
have also been restated in RMB.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, turnover of the Group's business
increased by 5% from RMB2,003.6 million in 2018 to RMB2,102.8 million.
While the Group expanded its store network by 38 new stores (net) and
increased the delivery business of Yoshinoya products and Dairy Queen
products by 8% and 49% respectively, the increase in the promotion
activities and the rise in the major operating costs and the third party
platform charges put pressure on the profitability of the Group. Profit
attributable to equity holders of the Company for the year under review was
RMB104.1 million, representing an increase of RMBO0.6 million or 0.6% when
compared with RMB103.5 million for the year ended 31 December 2018.

Basic and diluted earnings per share for the period were RMB1.07 cents
and RMB1.06 cents respectively (2018: RMB1.05 cents and RMB1.04 cents,
respectively).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

On 28 June 2019, the Company made a final dividend payment of HK0.61
cent per share for the year ended 31 December 2018. The Directors
recommended payment of a final dividend of HK0.248 cent per share for
the year ended 31 December 2019 (2018: HKO.61 cent per share). Subject
to approval by shareholders at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting
of the Company, the final dividend will be distributed on or about 29 June
2020 to shareholders whose names appear on the register of members of
the Company as at 9 June 2020.

The amount of final dividend recommended was calculated based on
the number of ordinary shares in issue at the date of approval of the
consolidated financial statements. These financial statements do not reflect
the final dividend payable.

ZE-hEFR
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Industry review

In 2019, China’s economy faced a number of challenges reflecting both
cyclical factors and long-term structural trends. The Sino-US trade frictions
were full of twists and turns. Due to the adverse effects brought by these
unstable factors to the Chinese economy, its GDP growth rate declined
from the beginning of 6.6% to 6.1% by the end of the year. Despite the
hit sustained from the overall economic slowdown in China, the catering
market there still faced fierce competition. As the giants from the internet,
retail and property industries continued their cross-sectoral expansion into
the catering sector, the competition among catering enterprises became
more intense. The scope of competition extended from simply products
and services to the catering enterprises’ overall operational capabilities
including brands, technology, marketing and the supply chain.

In 2019, affected by the outbreak of the African swine fever, pork prices
in China rose substantially and pushed up the overall prices of food such
as other poultry meat and eggs. As a result, the costs of food recorded a
greater increase over previous years. Moreover, the rising labour and rental
costs continued to squeeze the profitability of catering enterprises. Food
delivery remained at a high proportion in the turnover of the catering
business and contributed greater income to catering enterprises. However,
at the same time, the high service fees charged by food delivery platforms
presented more serious challenges to the survival of catering players,
particularly small and medium enterprises. New guidelines on food safety
standards were published by the Central Committee of the Communist
Party of China and the State Council under their names for the first time.
As the state policy and regulations constantly improve, a more stringent
supervision and penalty scheme on food safety in the country is expected
and will increase the operating costs of catering enterprises.

In the past year, technologies, particularly modern information
technologies, such as cloud computing, 5G, the Internet-of-Things, artificial
intelligence, big data and the wireless internet, played an increasingly
important role in the catering industry. The application of technologies
such as self-ordering machines, online food ordering, face recognition
payment, smart kitchens and automated facilities not only saved labour
costs and improved operational efficiency, but also enhanced the customer
experience. The information processing systems such as customer
relationship management (the “CRM") and cloud service platforms for
catering have boosted the digitalisation and management standards of
catering enterprises, which also facilitated more direct interaction with
customers, enabling catering enterprises to truly fulfill customers' needs so
as to pursue reforms and innovation.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Industry review (Continued)

While consumers’ income was increasing and their consumption
behaviours became increasingly mature, “delicious taste” continued to be
consumers’ top goal and they paid greater attention to the variety and
experience of food taste and presentation style. Alongside an upgrade
in consumption, customers continued to show trends of a preference
for diverse, personalised and quality-oriented offerings. Furthermore, the
increased pressure brought by the competition and the need for improving
efficiency has spurred the catering industry to take reference to the highly
efficient operating model adopted by the fast-moving retail industry.
Through the integration of retail business elements into catering operations
and leveraging the technologies, the catering enterprises were evolving
from a “traditional labour-intensive services industry” into something
more resembling a “modern industrialised retail profession” in terms of
procurement, distribution, products, operations, finance and payment
and marketing. At the same time, the catering enterprises also needed
to convert to delicacy management, with the aim of optimising internal
development structure, cutting costs and boosting efficiency in order to
cope with the increasingly intensified competition.

Despite encountering challenges, against the backdrop of stable overall
economic development in China during the year under review, the
catering industry, as a key constituent of the real economy and the key
arena of the consumption upgrade, still achieved some progress in 2019.
During the year under review, the catering industry continued to lead the
consumer goods retail market, becoming the largest segment in China’s
consumer sector. The catering industry gradually became a new driving
force to drive domestic consumption in China and played an important
role as a key market in the aspects of expanding domestic consumption,
stimulating spending, stabilising growth and benefitting livelihood.
Besides, the government launched a series of policies such as taxation and
tariff reduction, with the aim of reducing the burden of, and bolstering
confidence in, catering enterprises. The government also introduced
the “night-time economy” policy in first-tier cities to spur consumers to
spend, which yielded some positive effects in the development of catering
enterprises.

ZE-hEFR
Annual Report 2019

15



16

SR BT A Nl

Management Discussion and Analysis

2 7& O EE (42 ) BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)
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Business review

To respond to various challenges, the Hop Hing Group had implemented its
four business strategies; namely, boosting customer satisfaction, deepening
the sharing system under the incentive scheme, newly developing more
value-for-money products and technology empowerment, starting from
the beginning of 2019. As a service industry player, the satisfaction of
customers, and shifts in consumption patterns are indicators which directly
affect our businesses. The Hop Hing Group defined the year 2019 as a
year of enhancing customers’ satisfaction. Its operational team conducted
daily tracking based on the customers’ scores provided by the third-party
internet platforms and took concrete actions to improve the three areas
which received the lowest scores from the customers. As at the end of the
year, the Group was delighted to see that its core brands earned higher
scores for customer satisfaction when compared to last year.

In 2019, economic growth in Mainland China has slowed down and the
costs of food ingredients, salaries, rentals and service fees of third-party
delivery platforms continued to rise, exacerbating already fierce
competition within the catering industry especially in first-tier cities.
To provide incentives to store managers in managing their business
and maintaining customer satisfaction as well as improving the service
standard, the Group has made reasonable adjustments to its second
phase incentive scheme by considering from the perspective of the
store managers. These adjustments have enhanced the generosity of the
scheme and motivated the managers to proactively improve the operation
and service of their stores, as well as build closer relations and interact
more effectively with their customers. Both the number and frequency of
transactions have risen as a result of these efforts.

Sharing of functions and professional operation were the two key features
reflected in the Group's organisational structure in 2019. The Group set up a
shared financial centre in Shenyang which provides centralised accounting
procedures for the business of all of the subsidiary companies within
the Group, creating a management advantage in terms of consolidation,
improved efficiency and sharing of manpower. Meanwhile, the Group's
independent supply chain company has also begun operation during
the year, which helped lower procurement costs through sharing of
resources and bulk purchase, thus securing more quality raw materials
at reasonable prices for its new product research and development and
offering value-for-money new products to the customers. The outbreak of
the African swine fever pushed up prices of poultry, livestock, meat and
eggs as well as pork. In response to this, the Group enlarged the space of its
cold storage facilities along the supply chain in anticipation so that it could
stock up a greater quantity of raw materials such as chicken and beef when
prices of those commaodities were low, allowing it to effectively minimise
the impact from cost increases and maintain a mild year-on-year increase in
food costs at only around 0.4%.
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Business review (Continued)

2019 was also a key year for the Group’s technology empowerment. To
improve its operation and customer satisfaction, the Group upgraded
its CRM system during the year which included setting up cross-brand
membership and labelling systems, building a more accurate customer
database, better responding to changes in consumer behaviour and
extending its reach to customers in terms of time and space, all to facilitate
more targeted marketing. The total number of Hop Hing loyalty members
had exceeded 8.5 million in 2019.

In addition, the Group has made improvements targeting the “pain
points” during different sales periods to boost sales. The introduction of
self-ordering machines and a WeChat ordering mini program ordering
function have not only alleviated the pressure of taking orders at
restaurants during peak hours and improved service efficiency, hence
increase table turnover and drive service efficiency and dine-in transactions,
but have also reduced the impact of a surge in labour cost. As for non-
peak hours, the Group has not only launched buffet and semi-buffet
meals for breakfast and tea time, but also innovative value-for-money
combinations bundling drinks and promotional offers. Besides, it has added
more tables with built-in induction stove catering for customers who
wish to have hotpot for dinner and offered a wide array of non-rice meal
choices including noodles series to attract customers with different cuisine
preferences and drive sales at different consumption slots. Moreover, the
Group has seized the opportunities emerging from the expanding delivery
service market to diversify its delivery product mix. At the same time, it has
launched promotion activities that enhance interactions with customers,
including allowing customers to freely “mix and match” their meal boxes.
That together with other effective measures such as optimising its own
motorcycle fleet has supported a rise in delivery service revenue.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group's sales revenue in
Renminbi increased by 5.0% to RMB2,102.8 million (2018: RMB2,003.6
million), which was attributable to the additional sales brought by new
stores, as well as growth of the food delivery business. Through the efficient
and quality delivery services provided by the self-owned delivery team, the
delivery sales of Yoshinoya products rose up to 40% of the total Yoshinoya’s
sales of the Group in 2019. Furthermore, the repurchase rate of our
members under the Group’s CRM system increased during the year.
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Business review (Continued)

During the year under review, the Group's overall same-store sales
increased by 1.3% (2018: 0.8%) and Yoshinoya recorded a 1.3% same-store
sales growth (2018: 1.0%). The increase in the same-store sales of DQ of
1.9% in 2019 (2018: decrease of 1.2%) was mainly due to the increase in the
delivery sales.

EEHEERB DL
(MARYTTH)
Percentage Increase in
Same Stores Sales
(in Renminbi)

—E-NEF —E-)\F

2019 2018

2 Overall 1.3% 0.8%
BEBREK By Main Brands

HEHR Yoshinoya 1.3% 1.0%

KEEfF Dairy Queen 1.9% -1.2%

R-F—NEF BRAFE IR -K=EZ-AILEE
SREBSARBENRATS METREML
HHE WA A SR B 31 S MR K985% ©

In 2019, in terms of revenue, the Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei Province
Metropolitan Region remained the largest market of the Group and sales
revenue from Yoshinoya products accounted for approximately 85% of the
Group's total sales.

ZE-hF —E-N\F
2019 2018
AR¥T R (h#HEHE» AR®ETT (hHEE®
RMB’000 % of sales RMB'000 9% of sales
a.  EmEom By Region
ER—R=E-TILE Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei Province
HeaE Metropolitan Region 1,568,417 74.6% 1,485,118 74.1%
E AL 5 b & o Other northern areas of China'” 534,397 25.4% 518499 25.9%
b. BREFEEBHM By Main Brands
HHR Yoshinoya 1,782,062 84.7% 1,703,757 85.0%
KEEfF Dairy Queen 230,809 11.0% 210,802 10.5%

v BREEE EMRBETIERARSE
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o Including Liaoning, Jilin and Heilongjiang provinces and Inner Mongolia
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Business review (Continued)

In 2019, a net total of 38 new stores (2018: 43 net new stores) were opened.

E-N\F:480) RZTFE-AF+A=+—8" As at 31 December 2019, the Group had 597 stores in operation.
2N 5 B HAK 597 5 4 o
R+=—A=+-—H
As at 31 December
—ZE-hF —E-N\F
2019 2018
EEER Yoshinoya
ER-RE-ANILE G Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei Province
Metropolitan Region 250 230
E AR AL 7 b ) Other northern areas of China'” 130 125
AR Henan® 5 2
385 357
KEER Dairy Queen
bR —R=FE-TILE R Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei Province
Metropolitan Region 138 124
E AR AL b ) Other northern areas of China'" 51 49
189 173
HAitb Others
bR —RE-TILE B HE Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei Province
Metropolitan Region 21 27
Eofth R AL 75 M s ) Other northern areas of China'" 2 2
23 29
#Et Total 597 559
0 PREET EMERBERIERARE 0 Including Liaoning, Jilin and Heilongjiang provinces and Inner Mongolia
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Eﬁ%)ﬁﬁﬂmiﬁﬁffﬂlﬂ%%u
mMEFKE  AIBERMERMNE
MEETRNRMRES  BiE ?EDDE’J%F&M
i - EF EF
J\FHI632%E THRoAE B DM E—Z

REBRKRZY)

PRAR R B A G A R & o
BH-T—
— LFHI62.8% ©

& KA 31

@ Operated by Joint Venture

To counter the effect of the continuously increase in the price of certain
major food materials, the Group started to monitor more closely the market
prices of raw materials and adjust the stock level of core food items so as
to stabilize the overall cost of our products. We also offered different food
combinations and revised the selling prices of certain products to reduce
the impact of the increase in the material costs. As a result, the net gross

profit margin was down by only 0.4 percentage point from 63.2% in 2018

10 62.8% in 2019.
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Business review (Continued)

The incentive scheme implemented by the Group has increased the
motivation of our staff and hence the operational efficiency of our stores. As
a result, the Group's labour cost as a percentage to sales remained relatively
stable in the year under review. The Group's strategy of opening stores with
smaller size to cater for more delivery businesses also reduced its rental cost
to sales ratio.

—E-hF —E-N\F
2019 2018
ARBTRT (hiigEE» AR®TIT (hEERE®
RMB’000 % of sales RMB'000 9% of sales
HERDHEAX Selling and distribution expenses
AR Labour costs 310,512 14.8% 290,555 14.5%
HERAN FRAEEE Rental expenses, depreciation of
P& T B A R A right-of-use assets and
finance costs* 256,709 12.2% 252,379 12.6%
Y% R MR EHTE*  Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment* 86,595 4.1% 77,824 3.9%
H &M% Other operating expenses 340,468 16.2% 328,209 16.4%
* ZE-AF EEEHEBANTERBERAD EE * The leases related depreciation and finance costs in 2019 have been grouped

EXHER R AR EEFERELR-

ARAETREFBEMBARR -E—N\F—AK
JNAERE T RS RRPT B AN - B SRR b 75 B0 7% &P
FenaEREHRY%ZERRETRESZ &
EXFHREHY FRENBERABENER B
EREETYEEZFEER YEBENAFE
BAERRLREEREERHBR-
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with rental expenses for better comparison with the last year's performance.

Two PRC subsidiaries of the Company received notices from the local tax
authorities in January and August 2018 stating that the local tax authorities
would carry out tax inspections on the subsidiaries in relation to previous
tax periods. As at the date hereof, no finding has been made in respect of
the tax inspections. The Board will continue to closely monitor the progress
of this matter and will update shareholders and potential investors as and
when appropriate and necessary.
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Equity
The number of issued shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company as at 31
December 2019 was 10,070,431,786 (31 December 2018: 10,070,431,786).

As at 1 January 2019, the Company had 902,180,320 outstanding share
options. During the year, 72,500,000 share options were granted to an
employee of the Group and 26,167,320 share options lapsed. No share
options were exercised during the year.

Liquidity and gearing
The Group's gearing ratio (expressed as a percentage of interest-bearing

bank loan over equity attributable to equity holders of the Company) as at
31 December 2019 was nil (31 December 2018: Nil).

As at 31 December 2019, the Group recorded a net cash position
of RMB252.9 million (2018: RMB352.7 million) (being cash and cash
equivalents less interest-bearing bank loan), deposit certificates of RMB60.0
million (2018: Nil) and other financial assets of RMB243.0 million (2018:
RMB207.0 million).

The Group's finance costs for the year was RMB41.5 million (2018: RMB0.6
million), which comprised interest on lease liabilities of RMB41.0 million
(2018: Nil), after the adoption of the HKFRS 16 on 1 January 2019, and other
finance costs RMBO.5 million (2018: RMB0.6 million).

The Group's funding policy is to finance the business operations with
internally generated cash and bank facilities. The Group continues to adopt
a policy of hedging foreign currency liabilities with foreign currency assets.
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Staff remuneration packages comprise salary and discretionary bonuses
and are determined with reference to the market conditions and the
performance of the Group and the individuals concerned. The Group
also provides other staff benefits including medical insurance, continuing
education allowances, provident funds and incentive schemes to eligible
staff. The total remuneration paid to the employees (including pension
costs, share-based payments and the directors’ remunerations) of the
Group in the year under review was RMB487.6 million (2018: RMB460.9
million). As at 31 December 2019, the Group had approximately 8,600
full-time and temporary employees (2018: approximately 8,500).

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Board resolved to grant
share awards in respect of 62,914,000 shares to certain selected participants
who are not a director, chief executive or substantial shareholder of the
Company, nor an associate (as defined under the Listing Rules) of any of
them.

All directors’ remunerations were determined by the Board after
considering the recommendations of the remuneration committee of the
Company.

iR 5 308 B OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
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Details of the operating segment information are set out in note 4.

The Group had no material contingent liability outstanding as at 31
December 2019.

The Group had no pledge of assets as at 31 December 2019.
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REBFR AREXEFDERNERMNEARX
BEARNEARBRLE-

The Group did not make any material acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries
or affiliated companies during the year under review.

B K= #4315 PARTICULARS OF IMPORTANT EVENTS

BRARFREAFRENAEFERE [RRFHE] A
BEFEMFIN REERRREEAFHRAY HE
BEHAREAEAFENHEMBERE -

¥+ E 1% KEY RELATIONSHIPS

Save for the events disclosed in this Annual Report and under the heading
of the "Subsequent Event” of the Report of the Directors on page 72 of
this Annual Report, there were no other important events that occurred
after the end of the reporting period and and up to the date of this Annual
Report had material effects on the Group.
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Employees

The management is fully aware that human resources are crucial to the
continued success of the Group. The Group has provided staff with different
kinds of benefit, including annual and other paid leaves, medical insurance,
continuing education allowances and provident funds. For the personal
development of our employees, they have been provided with in-house
training and are encouraged to attend external relevant courses. The Group
has also set up various incentive schemes, including performance related
bonuses, share award scheme and share option scheme, to motivate and
reward well-performed employees. In addition, the incentive schemes
of the Group have been designed to give the relevant staff a sense of
ownership and let them share the results of the efforts that they have
contributed.

Details of our remuneration policies have been set out in the
‘Remuneration Policies” section in this Management Discussion and
Analysis.
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Customers

Being a QSR service provider, we have customers coming from different
social classes, regions and districts. It is an on-going exercise for us to
understand the needs and appetite of our customers. The primary objective
of our product development team is to launch new and tasty products
to satisfy the taste buds of our customers. For the convenience of our
customers, we have set up call centres, cooperated with platform service
providers and launched website ordering system for our customers to
place their orders wherever they are. Apart from quality food, the Group
has been continuously upgrading the renovation of its stores so as to
give our customers a feeling of being home. Our customers also have
various channels, including WeChat, telephone hotline and our CRM
system, to let us know which areas of services we could further strengthen
and understand our customers’ consuming habit. The satisfaction of our
customers is always one of our key performance indicators.

Suppliers

Food safety is one of the most important areas that the Group has always
put emphasis on. The Group has built a stringent internal control system
in the selection of suppliers. The system requires our procurement team
to assess the potential suppliers from different perspectives, including
their track records, experience, production ability, financial strength and
reputation. Newly selected suppliers will be tested with orders of smaller
size before they are placed with regular size orders. As an on-going exercise
to monitor the quality of food and material supplies, the procurement team
and production team of the Group would meet and visit our suppliers on
regular and irregular basis. Our teams may give advices to our suppliers on
ways to further improve their production efficiency and standard, where
appropriate. This helps to establish a mutual trust and create a win-win
situation for both our suppliers and the Group.
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The Group is committed to building an environmentally-friendly
corporation that pays close attention to conserving the environment.
We strive to minimise our environmental impact by saving electricity
and encouraging recycle of materials. We also require our suppliers to
operate in strict compliance with the relevant environmental regulations
and rules and possess all necessary permission and approval from the
relevant regulators. Our commitment in environmental protection can
be demonstrated by the ISO14001 Environmental Management System
certification obtained.

For further information about the environmental and social performance
of the Group for this financial year, please refer to the Environmental, Social,
and Governance Report set out on pages 31 to 44 of this Annual Report.

B <7 35182553 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

ARPEFREREEMKL MAFFETBHR
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The Company is incorporated in the Cayman Islands and its securities
are listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong. Hence, the Company
is subject to the applicable laws and regulations of the Cayman Islands
and Hong Kong. The Group’s operations are mainly carried out by the
Company's subsidiaries in the PRC and therefore have to comply with the
relevant PRC laws and regulations. The management is not aware of any
non-compliance of any of the above relevant laws and regulations by the
Group that would have a significant impact on the Group during the year
ended 31 December 2019 and up to the date of this report.

= Z & k2 & 7 89 BA Kl & PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES
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The management of the Group reviewed all aspects of the Group's
corporate strategies, including those relating to the market, operation and
finance, from time to time. Below are the principal risks and uncertainties
that the Group faces and the measures that the management has taken to
manage such risks and uncertainties.
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FERMNTHEBAREZE (4Z) PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES (Continued)
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Franchise-related Risks
Risks

The Group's franchise business in the PRC is subject to the terms of the
franchise agreements with the related franchisors. The Group's operation
and business will be materially and adversely affected in the event that any
or all of the franchise agreements are terminated or could not be renewed.

Measures to manage the risks

The Group'’s major franchise agreements for its existing franchise regions
have remaining terms (including automatically renewable terms under the
relevant franchise agreements) of no less than approximately 11 years in
general. The Group has assigned staff to observe the requirements under
the relevant franchise agreements. In addition, the Group has constant
dialogues and maintained good business relationships with the relevant
franchisors.

Risk of Outbreak of Food-borne Diseases
Risks

As a catering service provider, the Group has to rely on its suppliers for food
ingredients. In the event that there is any outbreak of food-borne diseases,
the supply of food ingredients of the Group may be affected.

Measures to manage the risks

It is the Group's policy that there should be more than one supplier,
preferably from different districts or regions, for all the major and key food
ingredients. In addition, the Group maintains adequate stock for its food
ingredients so as to allow time to source new suppliers in case suppliers
from one specific region are affected by any outbreak of food-borne
diseases.

Food Contamination Risk

Risks

The Group's business is susceptible to the risk of food contamination. In
the event that there is food contamination in the Group and the instance
is reported in the media, the business of the Group would be negatively
affected.
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Measures to manage the risks

Food safety is of utmost importance to a catering service provider. The
Group has stringent internal control in place in identifying and monitoring
food ingredient suppliers on a continual basis. There are also internal food
safety and hygiene policies and standard for the food handling staff to
follow. The Group also has quality control teams to inspect its stores and
distribution centres on a regular and rotational basis. Identified weaknesses
will be reported and corrected as soon as possible.

Exchange Control Risks
Risks

As the Group's business and operation are basically in the PRC, the revenue
and expenses are principally denominated in Renminbi. Payments of
expenses and dividends in Hong Kong have to depend on dividends
and other income and fund remittances from the Group’s PRC operating
companies. In case there are any restrictions of fund remittance by the
relevant PRC government authorities in future, the ability of the Group to
settle its Hong Kong debts and payables and declare dividends in Hong
Kong will be adversely affected.

Measures to manage the risks

The Group has retained funds in Hong Kong to meet the payment needs
in Hong Kong within a reasonable period of time. In addition, the Group
has maintained good relationship with banking institutions in Hong Kong
which have provided the Group with banking facilities to meet the cash
needs of the Group's Hong Kong head office, where necessary.

PRC Economic, Political and Legal Risks

Risks

The Group's business operations are conducted in the PRC and all of
its sales are made in the PRC. The Group's business, financial condition,
results of operations and prospects are therefore significantly affected
by economic, political and legal developments in the PRC. The PRC
economy differs from the economies of most developed countries in many
respects, including the degree of government involvement, the level of
development, the growth rate and the allocation of resources. The PRC
government may implement various measures to encourage economic
growth and guide the allocation of resources. Some of these measures may
benefit the overall PRC economy, but may also have a negative effect on
the Group.
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Measures to manage the risks

Business operations are always subject to the laws and regulations and
the ups and downs of the economy of the places where they are in.
Almost all of the Group's staff engaged in the Group’s PRC business
operations are PRC nationals who are familiar with the economic and
political environment in the PRC. In addition, the Group has a designated
team of staff responsible for monitoring the economic, social and political
development in the PRC with an aim to enable the Group to prepare itself
and make necessary adjustments to its business strategies ahead as far as
possible. Furthermore, the management would not rule out any possibility
of considering opportunities to invest in non-PRC businesses that would
bring steady long-term growth to the Group to diversify the concentration
risks.
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Catering Industry Development Trends in 2020

Looking ahead, China’s economy, which is currently at a critical juncture
of growth slowdown and difficult transformation, will continue to face
challenges. The COVID-19 outbreak is expected to weigh on consumption,
investment and financial revenue; industries such as the catering and
tourism sectors will be amongst the hardest hit. The first half of the year
could be a “period of survival” for many enterprises, both state-owned
and private. Many of them have stated that if the pandemic lasts, they will
have no choice but to close down their businesses. Under this operating
environment, cash flow has become particularly important for enterprises
and might even be the difference between the survival and closure of a
company.

The course of the spread of the COVID-19 remains uncertain at the
moment. The Chinese Government and the public are trying their best to
fight against the disease and hope to effectively keep it under control in the
near term. While the national government has launched a series of stimulus
measures such as improving liquidity, granting loan subsidies, allowing
deferral of tax and social insurance payments and other policies to drive
economic development and revive the market economy back to a normal
business mode, the negative impact of the virus outbreak on China’s
economic development is hard to predict particularly should the pandemic
persist. Therefore, the Group needs to prepare for a long term battle against
adversity.
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Future Development Strategy

Similar to other catering enterprises, Hop Hing has also suffered from
the temporary suspension of operation of certain stores which has led
to a slump in sales as a result of the COVID-19 outbreak. To address this
unexpected crisis, the Group has promptly launched enhanced hygiene
measures at its stores to protect its employees as well as its customers.
Its own delivery service team remains committed to fulfilling its social
responsibility and providing “non-contact” delivery service to customers to
complement the Government's virus prevention efforts. For stores that are
temporarily suspended, they will focus on enhancing the quality of existing
products and product research and development, optimising processes
and staff training so as to actively identify opportunities amid the crisis
situation. Meanwhile, the Group has adopted measures to coordinate and
manage cash utilisation and relieve the capital pressure generated from
the spread of the virus, such as negotiating with landlords and suppliers
for rental reductions and longer credit period respectively. The COVID-19
outbreak will inevitably pose an adverse effect to the Group’s financial
performance in 2020 if the pandemic lasts. Nonetheless, the Group will pay
close attention to the development of the pandemic and strictly follow the
guidelines issued by the Government, hoping to reopen affected stores and
regain sales in the shortest possible time.

As for its management during 2020, the Group will first concentrate on
improving customer satisfaction. The Group expects to completely roll out
an upgraded CRM system in 2020, with an aim to substantially reduce the
number of negative ratings by customers and achieve prompt response
to every single comment left by customers, in particular complaints, in
order to strive for five-star positive ratings and zero negative rating across
the three major ordering platforms. Secondly, the Group will further
develop its sharing system. The incentive scheme has provided notable
incentives to store managers since its launch three years ago. In the new
year of 2020, the Group will build on the existing foundation to further
optimise the incentive scheme, thereby achieving better performance
under the new development trend. Thirdly, the Group will implement
reform of its processes to perfect and streamline procedures. It will leverage
technologies and systems to enhance efficiency and resolve issues, as well
as refine the organisational structure of its supporting office to make it
more Internet-based and, ultimately, more effective and efficient. Fourthly,
the Group will strengthen its product competitiveness. The Group's greatest
competitive advantage lies in its beef rice bowl. Hence, we will step up
efforts in raising the standard of this signature product, both the food
quality and its operational procedures, in a bid to produce the best beef
rice bowl for its customers. In terms of the development of new products,
the Group will concentrate on the research and development of diversified
stewed products and drinks to drive new sales. Finally, the Group will
continue to step up technological investment and build up a data analysis
platform, a back-end CRM management system and upgrade the business
intelligence (B) system in order to speed up the pace and optimise data
processing and analysis, providing stronger support to the Group in its
decision making and improving its efficiency.
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Future Development Strategy (Continued)

In terms of expansion, concerning the outbreak of COVID-19 which
became pandemic in the beginning of 2020, the Group will set aside its
store opening plan in the first half of the year and resume exploring store
opening opportunities within first- and second-tier cities after COVID-19
is well under control. It will also consider adding more technological
elements into its stores moving onward, including the provision of self-
ordering machines and a WeChat Mini Program ordering function, in order
to promote “non-contact” self-services which are also welcome by the
Group's targeted young generation customers. After the COVID-19 incident,
it is believed that delicious and convenient home meals will become more
popular and bring another transformation to the catering industry. To
satisfy customers” home meals need, the Group has launched a new “Family
Kitchen” product line including a wide variety of pre-packaged frozen food
so as to allow customers to enjoy the Group's tasty products at home with
ease.

With a “better life” turning into a “basic need” of citizens as one of the
key goals of the Central Government in setting policies, consumption
upgrade has become a driver for development. Towards that end, the
Group will continue to uphold the “Conscientious about Quality” operating
philosophy and provide delicious, healthy, and safe food products to our
customers to their satisfaction and enjoyment with peace of mind.
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On behalf of the Group, | would like to thank all of our customers, suppliers,
business associates and bankers for their unwavering support. | wish to also
express my gratitude to members of our management team and staff for
their diligence and perseverance during the past year.

On Behalf of the Board

Hung Ming Kei, Marvin
Chief Executive Officer
Hong Kong

30 March 2020
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This environmental, social and governance report (“ESG Report”) has been
prepared in accordance with the Environmental, Social and Governance
Reporting Guide (the "Guide”) set out in Appendix 27 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), covering the Group's performance in terms
of stakeholder engagement, environmental protection, care for employees,
operating practices and community from 1 January to 31 December 2019.

The Group prepared the report according to the four major principles:
materiality, quantitative, balance and consistency as required by the Guide.
The Group publishes its ESG Report annually to disclose its performance
on Environmental, Social and Governance, on the basis of which the Group
will make continued improvement to the management of environmental,
social and governance aspects.

Identification and Communication With
Stakeholders

The Group has a diverse mix of stakeholders of which many of them are
customers and employees. We have identified stakeholders crucial to the
Group, including customers, employees, governments, shareholders and
investors, suppliers, community organisations, business associations and
media, and collected their comments through different channels, like
documents of policy, questionnaires, and service hotlines.

In preparing this ESG Report and to understand the expectation of different
stakeholders on the report contents and allow them to comment on the
Group's ESG performance, the Group has communicated with stakeholders
in different forms including face-to-face communication, telephone
interviews, questionnaires and on-site visits. This can make sure we have
fair communication with our stakeholders, so that the main contents of
the report could reflect the Group's current performance, and the Group’s
future policies and guidelines could be developed therefrom.

The ESG Report covers a wide range of aspects. The Group needs to identify
aspects of relevance to form its base for disclosing its management of
sustainable development and information. The Group communicated with
stakeholders and identified the more important aspects. The Group has also
defined the scope of disclosures in this ESG Report and the coming year's
direction of preparing the ESG Report. In the year ended 31 December
2019, the Group's business and operating environment was similar to that
of the previous years.
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Environmental Protection

The Group has been persistent in carrying out its business with strict
adherence to its motto — “Conscientious about Quality”. In addition to
food quality, we also pay attention to the impact of our daily operational
activities on the environment. The Group has formulated an environmental
management system and the Group is the first ISO14001 certified entity
among all peers in the food and beverage industry in the PRC, for the
purpose of complying with local environmental laws and defining the
environmental protection responsibility of each reporting unit.

Emissions

Air Emissions

As a QSR chain operator, we inevitably use fuels in cooking which results
in giving out smoke. In the PRC, the Group is required to comply and has
complied with relevant laws and regulations relating to air emissions. To
minimize the impact of smoke on the surrounding environment, the Group
strictly monitors the efficiency of the smoke exhaust equipment installed at
our restaurants. The three kinds of smoke purification devices (particulate
matter, cooking fume, non-methane hydrocarbon (NMHC)) with national
standards installed at the Yoshinoya stores in Beijing have been upgraded.
To maximize the service life of these devices, our Operation Department
has devised a set of servicing and maintenance plans, including cleaning
the smoke purification devices regularly, arranging regular maintenance
of the devices and conducting cleaning reports. Staff at stores have been
trained to carry out maintenance of these devices from time to time. In this
way, compliance with local regulations by our stores and freshness of the
air around the stores can be assured.

Waste Management

All chain stores, food processing centres and offices generate different
kinds of wastes during their daily operations, which can be broadly
classified into hazardous waste, recyclable waste, non-recyclable waste
and processed meat waste. The production, transit and disposal process of
different materials may have various degrees of impact on the environment.
In the PRC, the Group is required to comply and has complied with relevant
laws and regulations that have a significant impact relating to generation
of hazardous and non-hazardous waste. For this reason, the Group tries
its best to dispose of different types of wastes at different operating areas
properly. In this way, we not only increase the recycling rate, but also
minimize the hygienic problem brought by our wastes.
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Environmental Protection (Continued)

Emissions (Continued)

Waste Management (Continued)

The Group handles other wastes carefully, and recycles any useful materials
wherever possible. The food processing centre of the Group handles a
lot of food each day. When it comes to meat, the Group controls finished
products rigorously so as to minimise the generation of debris and
wastage. In addition to food, the Group also collects statistical data and
monitors the production of wastes in the stores. We have collected and
classified the wastes into recyclable waste and non-recyclable waste, and
passed them to the professional third parties waste handlers to handle.
The Group also collects and centralizes reusable parts, plastic containers,
cartons, packaging paper and waste paper to minimize the production of
wastes.

Recycling operators visit the stores daily to ensure that the recycling
process complies with the environmental protection and hygiene control
requirements. Carton and waste oil are initially collected by the designated
staff in stores to increase the recycling rate. According to the requirements
of the State Food and Drug Administration, a store has to post posters with
slogans like “Saving is honor”, “Do not waste”, to prompt consumers not to
leave food to reduce waste production and environmental pollution. The
food processing systems in stores are reviewed regularly with the aim to

reduce the wastage during the food processing.

During the operations, while the Group uses no hazardous chemical, it
produces limited amount of fluorescent lamp and accumulator wastes that
have been categorised as hazardous wastes by the local government. All
hazardous wastes are collected by designated persons at designated places
5o as to avoid mishandling by other staff, which may cause environmental
pollution and endanger the health.

Carbon Audlit

As a responsible corporate citizen, the Group tries its best to minimize the
environmental impact of its operations and in particular spares no effort in
reducing its carbon footprint. For this purpose, the Group has understood
its carbon emission patterns and mapped out pertinent improvement
measures.

In the PRC, the Group is required to comply and has complied with relevant
laws and regulations that have a significant impact relating to greenhouse
gas emissions.
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Environmental Protection (Continued)

Emissions (Continued)
Carbon Audit (Continued)

The Group engages a third-party professional organization to carry out a
carbon audit and measure the emission intensity of each unit during the
reporting year. For its stores operation, carbon emissions mainly come from
natural gas consumption by stove and electricity consumption by other
cookers and lights. After detailed analysis of the carbon emission data,
the Group put in place different emission reduction measures, including
strengthening the monitoring of energy consumption during peak and
off-peak hours of business. In the future, the Group will maintain on-
going detection of carbon emission data at all carbon-emitting places and
develop different emission reduction policies from year to year.

Greenhouse gas emissions 58,585 tCO2
Greenhouse gas emission intensity 28 tCO2/Revenue

(Million RMB)
Food Residue production volume 2,780 Tonnes
Waste cooking oil production volume (Note) 776 Tonnes
Paper waste production volume 412 Kg
Paper waste recycling volume 610 Kg
Metal waste production volume 93 Kg

Note: The increase in the waste cooking oil production volume compared with year
2018 was mainly due to the increase in operating scale resulting from the
increase in number of stores and the modification of our cooking processes to
enhance our customer satisfaction.

Resources Consumption

Energy consumption

Energy consumption is closely related to carbon emissions. The Group
reviews the emission data of its stores by periods every year and sets
targets for the energy consumption to monitor the power consumption. A
set of energy-saving measures has been put into effect at all stores to meet
their targets. To consume energy efficiently, the Company has worked out
start and shut-down time schedule for different kinds of energy-consuming
equipment of the stores, such as lights and air-conditioners, which will
be followed by the stores. When actual consumption deviates from our
planned consumptions significantly, the Operation Department of the
Company would investigate into the causes of such deviation and make
adjustment, where necessary. Besides the schedule, our stores use zoned
lighting systems which allow the stores to power on or off in different
zones as needed. In addition, cooking devices will also be switched on
by reference to customer traffic. The Group also tries to use equipment
with higher energy efficiency, to save energy. The Group has replaced the
lighting systems at stores by LED. By carrying out a series of energy-saving
measures, our stores have been able to maximise energy efficiency and
minimize carbon footprint.
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Environmental Protection (Continued)

Resources Consumption (Continued)

Water Resource Consumption

The Group uses our precious water resource with great care. During the
daily operations, stores use water for washing raw materials, preparation
of food, and cleaning the stores. The Group keeps a close eye on water
consumption by stores. Based on water consumption in previous year,
Operation Department develops an annual plan at the beginning of each
year. They check the water consumption at the end of each month, analyse
the process which have high unexpected usage of water, and come up
with improvement measures. Malfunction equipment is usually one of the
causes for wastage of water. Hence, the Company will carry out regular
check and timely repair to water-consuming equipment according to the
maintenance plan. In order to reduce the water consumption, water saving
is one of our important considerations when we purchase new equipment.

During the reporting period, the Group did not encounter any issue in
sourcing water that is fit for its purpose.

Total Energy consumption 68,479 MWh
Total Energy consumption intensity 33 MWh/Revenue

(Million RMB)
Electricity consumption 66,691 MWh
Electricity consumption intensity 32 MWh/Revenue

(Million RMB)
Natural gas consumption 144,461 m?
Towngas consumption 45933 m*
Gasoline consumption 2.7 Tonnes
Diesel consumption nil
Water consumption 459,822 m?
Water consumption intensity 219 m?/Revenue

(Million RMB)
Bottled water consumption 426 m?
Packaging material consumption 2,219 Tonnes

Care for Employees

Due to the nature of the food and beverage industry, employees closely
interact with our customers. Our employees play an important role in
driving our business growth and shaping our company image. Hence,
the Group treasures every talent and is eager to provide the best working
environment and create the opportunities for self-development to every
employee and grow with them.

—E-hEER
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Care for Employees (Continued)

Employment

Employee Conditions and Benefits

The Group is aware that employees are the cornerstone of the Company's
business and future development and therefore attract and retain top-
notch talents by providing them with people-oriented employee benefits
and policies.

In the PRC, the Group is subject to relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and
promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-
discrimination, and other benefits and welfare.

The Group purchases social insurance for our employees as required
by the local government where we operate. Our employees also enjoy
statutory holidays, including breastfeeding leave and paternity leave
for male employees. Moreover, the Group also provides a wide range of
other benefits to retain the employees, such as discounted meals, special
allowances for those who work in high-temperature area in summer or
in low temperature freezers. To ensure employees are not assigned with
workload that is intolerable to them and to protect juveniles, the Group
prohibits the hiring of any person aged below 18

The Group believes that interesting pastimes can help relieve the stress of
employees and unite the team together. The Group designs a wide range
of activities for employees care plan. The activities carried out by the Group
included, providing free meals, holding nature tours and film shows for staff
and preparing gifts to the children of its employees on the International
Children’s Day on Tst of June.

Equal Opportunity, Diversity and Anti-Discrimination

The Group is committed to creating an equal working environment. A set
of assessment procedures have been formulated, which allows all store
employees to have equal promotion opportunity. A set of key performance
indicators (the “KPIs") have been designed to assess the performance
of every employee comprehensively and fairly. Under the performance
assessment framework, managers-in-charge can measure employee
performance against the KPIs and determine who should be promoted.
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Care for Employees (Continued)

Employment (Continued)

Equal Opportunity, Diversity and Anti-Discrimination (Continued)
We oppose any form of discrimination. Employment opportunities should
not be affected by the applicant’s disability. The Group has fulfilled its
anti-discrimination commitments by deeds and has hired employees
with disabilities in certain branches. In addition, employees have been
issued with the “Notes on Employment of Persons with Disabilities” so
that they know how to cooperate with their colleagues in their daily
work. Supervisors will assign jobs that match the abilities of persons
with disabilities. The supervisors will also pay more attention to the work
condition of persons with disabilities and provide them with timely help.
Apart from these, a regular teacher will be arranged for them and will
accommodate their work schedule. The Human Resources Department will
collect personal information of persons with disabilities from the month
they join the Company, and the Company will pay social insurance for
them, protect their legitimate rights and interests and allow them to obtain
opportunities for normal work and self-reliance.

Employee Communication

Effective communication is of vital importance to cater for the needs
of employees. The Group maintains various means of communications
with employees. Employee meetings are held regularly. The departments
under Supporting Office and the stores have different forms of employee
meetings every month to update them with the Company’s new policies,
procedures and news from human resources and allow team members to
learn from and exchange ideas amongst themselves. Also, there are bulletin
boards at the stores and Supporting Office from where employees can get
the latest information from the Company and staff loyalty can be enhanced.
In addition, the Group has made use of WeChat Work to disseminate
information relating to training programs and corporate culture to its staff.
The Group also publishes an internal magazine, “Magazine of Conscience”
regularly. It is the joint effort of different departments of the Group and
reflects the comments from the employees. The Group also wishes to hear
from employees directly. An “employee suggestion mailbox” has been
made available for employees to raise their innovative ideas to the Human
Resources Department. The Group also requires all store managers to
talk with their staff proactively and understand the front-line employees’
comments on the Group's business. These comments would be taken
into account in the formulation of our people-oriented human resources
policies.

—E-hEER
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Care for Employees (Continued)
Health and Safety

Employee health is a key in upkeeping the superior food and service
quality. Occupational safety is a top priority to the Group. The Group has
put into action Occupational Health and Safety Management System
Requirements promulgated by the local governments and required
by applicable laws and regulations of the relevant local governments.
The Human Resources Department provides a basic security package
to employees. In addition to providing accident insurance coverage,
employees will have body check each year so as to let them know their
health conditions.

Work environment is vital to employees’ safety. In order to ensure
compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact relating to providing a safe working environment and protecting
employees from occupational hazards, the Group develops and
implements regularly plans for purchasing work safety protective
equipment (WSPE), to assure that sufficient and proper WSPE are available
to employees in the workplace. Moreover, the Group pays particular
attention to safety black-spots in the workplace. A Hazard Analysis Critical
Control Point (HACCP) group has been formed to monitor the production
environment and address any safety hazard on a regular basis, and to
minimise the incidence of glass burst, external effluent seepage and any
other hazards.

The Company understands that prevention is better than cure. The
Company has designed a whole set of occupational safety training
programs, including occupational health and safety management
requirements, occupational disease prevention, HACCP program. Every
employee must pass the exams after completing the required trainings so
as to ensure that they have the required knowledge of occupational health
and safety.
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Care for Employees (Continued)
Employee Development

The Company provides trainings in diversified forms for employees at
different levels to receive a wide range of tailored on the job education
and trainings to strengthen their business operating skill. To ensure the
effectiveness of the training programs so that our customers are provided
with quality services, trainees are required to meet the standards within a
specified period of time.

The Group organizes different kinds of trainings and competitions,
including food safety awareness and fundamental skill trainings for newly
joined staff, on-job training of internal control for store managers, and food
safety competitions to raise the employees’ awareness of food safety. Our
quality control department also conducts quarterly activities to improve
food safety awareness of its staff.

Operating Practices

Food is closely related to citizens' health. Quality is the most important
factor to achieve sustainable growth of a QSR business and build a
trustworthy commercial brand. We attach greater importance to food safety
and nutrition than to speed and low price. With stringent rules on our
purchase of raw materials, transportation and food preparation process, our
customers can feel at ease when enjoying our food.

Supply Chain Management

Procurement Policy

Supplier is the first control point on food quality and safety management
of the Group. Apart from taste, we need to ensure all the raw materials
are safe. The Group maintains a strict supplier selection mechanism, with
indicators such as supply time, reputation, capacities, capital, origin, safety
system and reports after carrying out on-site visits. We prefer to partner
with leaders of the relevant market sectors. All materials are supplied from
designated places and we would choose the leading companies of each
sector as our partners, where appropriate. Environmental performance is
one of our selection criteria. We select only 1ISO14001 certified companies
and choose suppliers with established environmental management
system. After a supplier is selected, the Group arranges on-site inspection
for reviewing their food safety. Suppliers’ evaluation would be done once
a year to review the quality of their products to ensure fulfillment of the
Group's standard. To monitor the food safety and quality from the source
and ensure ingredients are up to safety standard, samples of raw materials
purchased would be sent to third-party inspection organization for quality
test.

—E-hEER
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Operating Practices (Continued)

Supply Chain Management (Continued)

Logistics Management

While the process of choosing suppliers is the first line of defence on
safeguarding food quality, the transportation of raw materials is also
critical to quality assurance. In 2019, our upgraded logistic centre in Beijing
started to operate with higher standard of food safety. We have designed
a set of indicators for the measurement of quality of raw materials in
transit, for example, hygiene and temperature of trucks and storages. We
require all staff to handle the goods with great care to avoid any damages.
In addition, we have an in-house laboratory within our logistic centres
to test the quality of our raw materials. Trucks are sterilized daily before
loading of goods. High resolution CCTV have been installed in our logistic
centres to monitor the material handling process all the time. Following
proper logistics management, all food materials delivered to stores are of
good quality and the risk of food safety incidents caused by food material
spoilage is reduced.

Quality of Products and Services

Food Safety

Food can provide nutrients, but as an old saying goes, a closed mouth
catches no flies. Eating insanitary or improperly treated food may give rise
to serious health problems. We aim at zero incidence of critical food safety
accident and building a brand of food and beverage which can be trusted
by our customers. The Group has a professional management team, sound
food safety system with rigorous internal and external control procedures
and management manual. The Group is subject to and has complied with
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact relating to
customer health and safety in the PRC.

Our stores perform checking on the quality of food materials in accordance
with the checklist of our internal food safety twice a day to ensure that
food materials are consumed before its expiry dates. Also, we have well-
trained food safety staff responsible for the food safety inspection to
avoid any outbreak of safety incidents. For hygiene management, our
stores adopt strict procedures and carry out regular cleaning. Quality
control department will carry out random checking to ensure the required
processes have been properly carried out. Ozone generators have been
installed in the processing centre and sterilization process covers the whole
processing area to ensure food safety in the processing centre.
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Operating Practices (Continued)

Quality of Products and Services (Continued)

Food Safety (Continued)

We have obtained certifications of 15022000 and 1SO14001 for our food
safety management system and environment management system. Food
safety management involves many aspects. While we have ensured the
quality of raw materials, we also require all our equipment to be clean and
functioning properly, waste and effluent are properly disposed of, and
disinfection and pests control are done regularly in the stores. Cooking
procedures determine food safety and taste. We have prepared detailed
standard operating procedures on all items. Employees are required to
follow our good processing practices in food preparation. In addition, they
must also meet our hygienic requirements, so that our customers can enjoy
products and services with consistent quality in our stores. To facilitate
enforcement of the above mentioned food safety policies, we have also
formed a food safety audit committee to carry out detailed examinations
and inspections on the safety of food preparation. Apart from the controls
exercised by the supply chain, the food safety audit committee also
assesses raw materials, processes, kitchen equipment and the surrounding
environment, and carries out laboratory tests on randomly picked samples,
to ensure food safety with a scientific approach.

Customer Satistaction

Competition in the QSR sector in which the Group operates is intensive.
To become a favourite QSR brand of customers, we need to put emphasis
on our service attitude, dining environment and food quality, to assure the
best dining experience for our customers in every aspects, rather than care
solely about the speed of preparation. We carry out customer satisfaction
survey from time to time, which covers a number of areas, such as food
quality, service experience, food portion and environment cleanliness. After
analyzing scores given by customers from different aspects, we identify
key areas that have rooms for improvement and take the improvement
actions in the following quarter and we continuously improve our food and
service quality. In 2019, the Group started using the online data analysis
systems such as, MegaMeta, AFTEE, and Boen (18/2&) to collect customer
satisfaction data. Customer satisfaction scores are now one of the KPI
of our employees, which provide the Group with prompt and accurate
information on the customers’ needs.

Aiming at improving our food and service quality, we have implemented
procedures to monitor the comments of each customer collected from
various platforms (including Meituan Waimai, Ele.Me, Dianping, Group
purchase) on food quality, dining environment, service attitude through the
comment board, aspects of dine-in, take-out and member spending so as
to allow a more efficient response on improving customer satisfaction.

—E-hEER
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Operating Practices (Continued)

Quality of Products and Services (Continued)
Customer Complaint and Privacy

The Group is committed to providing customers with quality products
and services and taking every customer complaint seriously. We have
formulated the “Procedures for Handling Customers’ Complaints”, which
set out the guidelines for employees to handle customers’ complaints and
ensure that each complaint is documented and followed up. If customers
have any complaints about dine-in, take-out, delivery and meal ordering,
they can voice out their comments by phone, e-mail, in writing or in person
at the stores. Our customer service staff will do their best to understand
and manage the feedback after receiving the complaint and record the
complaint in detail. The complaint processing records will be used for
annual analysis and feedback to continuously optimize our products and
services.

At the same time, we vigorously protect customers’ personal privacy and
prohibit employees from disclosing customer data and membership data.
We have formulated the “Regulations on the Management of Information
Security” according to the provisions of relevant laws and regulations. We
have disciplinary measures detailed in our employee handbook prohibiting
employees from disclosing customers’ personal data without the written
consent of the Company. Any employee who copies, keeps, or removes
confidential documents without the Company’s consent will be subject to
disciplinary actions.

Anti-Corruption and Code of Conduct

The Group pursues “Conscientious about Quality”. While product and
service quality is indeed something we work hard for, the Group also cares
about business ethics by complying with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering. Every employee is required to abide by the Code of Conduct
and good practices set forth by the Group. The Group explicitly requires
every employee to abide by the laws of the PRC. Accepting any gift from
any supplier or customer in any form or by any means by any employees
in the name of the Company is forbidden. The anti-corruption policy of
the Group has proven to be of positive effect. No legal case regarding
corrupt practices happened within the Group last year. The Group has put
in place whistle-blowing procedures. An employee may report any illegal,
immoral practice or any act in breach of the Code of Conduct to his or her
immediate head or the Internal Audit Department. The whistleblower will
be protected. Investigation will be made and the case will be followed up.
In this way, we could create a fair business environment.
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Community
Community Activities

Our business is based on the community and we have established a large
business network in areas where we operate to integrate into the lives of
local residents with quality food. In 2019, we were awarded the plaque of
“Industry Leading Enterprise” by the Chain-Like Management Association
in Liaoning Province (FEE A B IHAL L2 ) . Apart from the expansion
of our catering business, we are also concerned about the interests of the
people in the areas where we operate. The Group pays attention to the
needs of the disadvantaged communities living in the areas where we
operate and recruits persons with disabilities to join our service team. In
addition, the Group also assists in holding public welfare activities and pays
special attention to education and cultural exchange activities. We also
encourage employees to participate in them.

Catering business requires a large number of employees who cook food
and serve guests. We can create jobs in the area and enable local residents
to work near their place of residence. Furthermore, we also employ persons
with disabilities. Even though persons with disabilities are often at a weak
position in the workplace, they have the same ability to work as the
general public. We take a vote of confidence in the persons with disabilities,
allowing them entry to the community.
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Community (Continued)
Community Activities (Continued)

The Group is concerned about the future development of the community
and fully understand that education has a decisive influence on the
development of the next generation of the community. The Group
specifically assists in organizing community activities related to education,
including cultural exchange activities for students in Beijing and Hong
Kong. We continued to participate in the “Beijing-Hong Kong Outstanding
Students” activity. The Group offered scholarships to 15 Hong Kong
students studying in Beijing and organized them to visit listed companies,
and arrange internship for them. In addition to understanding the office
culture in the Mainland during their internship, all interns visited places
of interest accompanied by students from Beijing. Students from both
places could take this opportunity to get to know each other. On the other
hand, a group of selected outstanding students from Beijing also went to
Hong Kong to visit and study. The Group believes that cultural exchange
can build a bridge of friendship between the students of the two places
and provide participants with development opportunities under the
increasingly frequent business activities in Hong Kong and the PRC.

Apart from promoting cultural exchange between the two places, the
Group also cares about the needs of Hong Kong students studying in
Beijing. The Group supported Hong Kong companies in Beijing to organize
athletic games for the Hong Kong professionals and exchange programs.
In addition, we organized a series of activities for the Hong Kong students,
including film shows, curling lessons, and visiting alleys and “798 Art Zone”
in Beijing. Diversified activities not only allow participants to experience
new things, but also provide a communication platform for them, which
will help them in developing and starting businesses in Beijing in the future.
We assisted in organizing training programs including “Training Young
Leaders” and “Continuing the Spirit of Outstanding Students in Hong
Kong". The project allows young people to participate in a series of group
activities to develop their team spirit and leadership capacity. In addition,
the Group anticipates that exchange between Hong Kong and the
Mainland will become increasingly frequent in the future. Bringing Hong
Kong students to North China for exchange can promote cultural exchange
between the two places. It can also serve as a starting point for young
people interested in the development in the Mainland China. Through
different youth training programs and exchange activities, the Group brings
different cultural stimulus to young people, develops their potential and
helps the society cultivate talents.
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Corporate Governance Practices

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance practices and procedures. The Company complied with the
code provisions ("CP") of the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code")
as set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) during the
financial year ended 31 December 2019.

The principles as set out in the CG Code have been adopted into our
corporate governance practices. To ensure strict compliance with the latest
CG Code, the Board will (a) review and regularly update the corporate
governance policies and practices of the Company; (b) review and oversee
the continuous training of the directors and the senior management; (c)
examine and monitor the compliance of and disclosure under legal and
regulatory requirements; (d) develop, review and monitor the code of
conduct and compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
directors; and (e) review the Company's compliance with the code and
disclosure in the “Corporate Governance Report”,

Business Model and Strategy

The Board directs the Group's development of business model and strategy,
and the management of the Company manages the implementation
of strategy and business, follow up on the implementation status and
report back to the Board from time to time. Details of the Group's business
and financial review for the year 2019 are set out in the “Management
Discussion and Analysis” section of this Annual Report.

Model Code for Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code") as set out in Appendix
10 of the Listing Rules as its code of conduct of dealings in securities of
the Company by the directors. The Model Code also applies to “relevant
employees” as defined in the CG Code.

Based on specific enquiry of the Company's directors, the directors
confirmed that they complied with the required standards in the Model
Code adopted by the Company throughout the financial year ended 31
December 2019.
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Board of Directors

Up to the date of publication of this Annual Report, the Board comprised of
seven directors, including four independent non-executive directors, being
Mr. Seto Gin Chung, John (Chairman), Mr. Sze Tsai To, Robert, Hon. Shek Lai
Him, Abraham, GBS, JP and Mr. Wan Sai Cheong, Joseph; one non-executive
director, being Ms. Lam Fung Ming, Tammy and two executive directors,
being Mr. Hung Ming Kei, Marvin (Chief Executive Officer) and Mr. Wong
Kwok Ying. Biographical details of these directors which include relationship
among themselves are set out under “Directors’ Biographies” on pages 61
to 65 of this Annual Report.

The Board adopted a board diversity policy on 30 August 2013 which was
revised on 17 January 2019 (the “Board Diversity Policy”). The Company
recognises the importance and benefit of having a diverse board that fits
its own business model and specific needs in order to achieve its corporate
goals and strategic objectives. The Company also sees diversity at the board
level as an essential element in maintaining a competitive advantage.

The Company aims to ensure that board appointments will be made
on the basis of a range of diversity factors including but not limited to
gender, age, nationality, language, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, skills, industrial knowledge and length of service
as well as taking into account factors based on its own business model and
specific needs from time to time. Selection of candidates to join the Board
will be in part dependent on the pool of available candidates with the
necessary skills, knowledge and experience. The ultimate decision will be
based on merit and the contribution the chosen candidate will bring to the
Board, having regard to the benefits of diversity on the Board and without
focusing on a single diversity aspect.

The Board has adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend Policy”) in
compliance with the amendments of the Listing Rules and the CG Code
which took effect on 1 January 2019. The Dividend Policy aims to distribute
a certain percentage of its profits to shareholders, whilst retaining adequate
reserves for future business expansion.

The Company considers stable and sustainable returns to the shareholders
of the Company to be our goal. In deciding whether to propose a dividend
and in determining the dividend amount, the Board shall take into account,
inter alia:-

(@)  the Group's actual and expected financial performance;
(b)  the Group's working capital requirement and surplus needed for

business strategies and future capital expenditure and business
development needs;
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Board of Directors (Continued)

() the Group's actual and future operations and liquidity position;
(d) taxation consideration;

(e)  the general financial and economic conditions; and

(f)  any other factors that the Board deems appropriate.

Any declaration of dividends will be at the absolute discretion of the
Board and may not have any implication on the Company's declarations of
dividends in future.

The Board will review the Dividend Policy when appropriate and to update,
amend and/or modify the Dividend Policy from time to time and there can
be no assurance that a dividend will be proposed or declared in any given
period.

The Board accepts that it is ultimately accountable and responsible for
the performance and affairs of the Company. Although the Board bears
overall responsibility for the Company, the management of the Company
(including the executive directors) is the custodian and administrator of the
day-to-day operations of the Company.

The Company has received a written annual confirmation of independence
from each of its independent non-executive directors and considers them
to be independent under Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

The Board will meet at least four times a year and on other occasions when
a board decision is required on a major issue. Directors may participate in
meeting via telephone or video-conferencing. Board consents are given
by vote at board meetings and supplemented via circulation of written
resolutions between board meetings.

During the year, there were six full board meetings (including those with
voting by communication) and three full board circulations. Individual
attendance records for full board meetings of the Company are set out on
page 57 of this Annual Report.
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Board of Directors (Continued)

Directors understand their respective responsibilities as a director towards
the conduct and business activities of the Company. To this end, the
Company is responsible for arranging and funding appropriate training and
activities to all directors as and when necessary. All directors have provided
their training records for the year under review to the company secretary of
the Company. A summary of the training received by the directors during
the year according to the records provided by our directors is as follows:

Summary of Directors’ Training Records in 2019

Name of Director

BEIES

(BFEE3 EXE8
BEBER o HNE
BER/REE
HERE M)
Training activities
including meetings,
seminars/talks held by
professions/organizations
and/or reading materials
on relevant topics
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Independent Non-Executive Directors

Seto Gin Chung, John
Sze Tsai To, Robert

Shek Lai Him, Abraham
Wan Sai Cheong, Joseph

Non-Executive Director
Lam Fung Ming, Tammy

Executive Directors
Hung Ming Kei, Marvin
Wong Kwok Ying

AN Y
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The roles of the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are separated and not
performed by the same individual.

The Chairman’s principal responsibility is to ensure effective running of the
Board, enabling the Board as a whole to play a full and constructive part
in the development and determination of the Group’s business model,
strategies and overall commercial objectives. The Chief Executive Officer
is responsible for the overall day-to-day management of the Group's
businesses and achieving the business model, strategies and commercial
objectives agreed by the Board.

The Chairman of the Company is Mr. Seto Gin Chung, John, an
independent non-executive director of the Company, and the Chief
Executive Officer is Mr. Hung Ming Kei, Marvin.

Non-Executive Directors’ Term of Office

The non-executive directors of the Company are appointed for specific
terms, subject to retirement and re-election in accordance with the
provisions of the amended and restated memorandum and articles of
association of the Company.

Directors’ Emoluments

Details of the emoluments of the directors on a named basis are set out in
note 8 to the financial statements.

Remuneration Committee

The remuneration committee of the Company was established with a
particular responsibility to review the Company's remuneration policy for
directors and members of the senior management. For details of the role
and function of the committee, please refer to its terms of reference which
align with the CP of the CG Code and have been posted on the websites of
both the Hong Kong Exchange and Clearing Limited (the "HKEx") and the
Company.

The remuneration committee is comprised of Mr. Sze Tsai To, Robert
(chairman of the committee), Mr. Seto Gin Chung, John (chairman of
the Company), and Hon. Shek Lai Him, Abraham, GBS, J£ all of them
are independent non-executive directors of the Company. Individual
attendance records for the remuneration committee meetings are set out
on page 57 of this Annual Report.
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Remuneration Committee (Continued)

During the year and up to the date of this Annual Report, the committee
made recommendations to the Board on (i) a proposal to grant share
options; and (ii) the director’s fee for the independent non-executive
directors, the non-executive director and the chief executive officer of the
Group.

The director's fees are subject to the approval of the shareholders at
general meetings. Other emoluments are reviewed by the remuneration
committee with reference to the duties, responsibilities of the directors
and the performance and results of the Group. Information relating to the
remuneration of each director for 2019 is set out in note 8 to the financial
statements.

Nomination Committee

The Company has established a nomination committee with a particular
responsibility to review the Board's structure, size and composition and
to make recommendation to the Board on the selection, appointment
and re-appointment of directors of the Company having given adequate
consideration to the Board Diversity Policy. For details of the role and
function of the committee, please refer to its terms of reference which align
with the CP of the CG Code and have been posted on the websites of the
HKEx and the Company.

The nomination committee is comprised of Mr. Seto Gin Chung, John
(chairman of the committee and chairman of the Company) and Hon. Shek
Lai Him, Abraham, GBS, JP, both of them are independent non-executive
directors of the Company and Mr. Hung Ming Kei, Marvin, an executive
director and the chief executive officer of the Company. Individual
attendance records for the nomination committee meetings are set out on
page 57 of this Annual Report.

During the year, the committee had (i) reviewed the Board structure,
size and composition; (ii) assessed the independence of independent
non-executive directors; and (iii) made recommendation to the Board on
re-appointment of directors.

The Board has adopted a nomination policy (the “Nomination Policy”) in
compliance with the amendments of the Listing Rules and the CG Code
which took effect on 1 January 2019. The Nomination Policy has been
formulated to provide the key selection criteria and principles of the
nomination committee in making any such recommendation.



REEEE (&)

Bz 2R
REZEGAE (KHOR) NERIREAER
ZABEEREA RITRRIGEE BRI ARR
AEEBBERATER: —

(@ mBEHEE:

b BE BREEARTDEBEREERBERZE
FEN  BRe - B RER

O BRAEARE R ERRBIEHETS
EEGIEL 2 BEAS

d HIRABREEEMS ARG 2R R E
E

€ ARFEFEZTLEBRLEFERENE
FeZTEMRA 2 EMEMAFERR:

f HEEMETARZEETBREHE

@ MEEBIUIFATERET LEHRAMEE
2B MR BFEETRNBEILIENTES
RGRERE: &

h REZEGHAEFGARIKETE ZEME
EERE  BEREMEEN  AERFEE
EYES: BN

RERF
REZASWEABHNEARLERAEFENE
ZIRBARSG UGRAZASER-RAEEE
A EEREARAEAAREZIREA  SHEE
FEE-

REMERER REZEQAFHERRESHE
EZEERME - REBNRRAE L2EZIRE
AME REZECARNEESHELRES UHE
ZREFLERRZZ-

EREBHRS
Corporate Governance Report

Nomination Committee (Continued)
Selection Criteria

The nomination committee is responsible for, among other things,
identifying and evaluating suitably qualified candidates to become
directors and in doing so, it shall consider the following criteria in
evaluating and selecting candidates for directorships:—

(@)  character and integrity;

(b)  qualifications including professional qualifications, skills, knowledge
and experience that are relevant to the Company's business and
corporate strategy;

(c  potential contributions that the candidate can bring to the Board in
terms of qualifications, skills, experience and independence;

(d)  commitment in respect of available time and relevant interest in
order to enhance shareholder value;

(e)  the Company's Board Diversity Policy and any other measurable
objectives adopted by the Board for achieving diversity on the Board;

(f)  the number of directorships in other listed companies;

(@ compliance with the criteria of independence as prescribed
under the Listing Rules for the appointment of an independent
non-executive director including but not limited to the length of
services of the independent non-executive director; and

(h)  any other relevant factors, including any potential and/or real conflict
of interests and succession planning, as may be determined by the
nomination committee or the Board from time to time.

Nomination Procedures

The secretary of the nomination committee shall convene a meeting and
invite nomination of candidates from Board members, for consideration by
the nomination committee. The nomination committee may also consider
nomination of candidates from the Company’s shareholders for the Board's
consideration.

For filling a casual vacancy, the nomination committee shall make
recommendations for the Board’s consideration and approval. For
proposing candidates to stand for election at a general meeting, the
nomination committee shall make nominations to the Board for its
consideration and recommendation.

—E-hEER
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Nomination Committee (Continued)
Nomination Procedures (Continued)

For the purpose of or in relation to their standing for selection and
appointment as a director, the proposed candidates will be asked to submit
the necessary information, together with their written consents to be
appointed as a director.

The Board shall have the final decision on all matters relating to its
recommendation of candidates to stand for election at any general
meeting.

In order to provide information of the candidates recommended by the
Board to stand for election at the general meeting, a circular (the “Circular”)
will be sent to shareholders as required under the Listing Rules. The names,
brief biographical information (including qualifications and relevant
experience), independence, remuneration and any other information of
the proposed candidates as required pursuant to the Listing Rules and
applicable laws, rules and regulations will be included in the Circular.
Where the Board proposes a resolution to elect or re-elect an individual as
an independent non-executive director, the Circular will also set out the
following information:-

(@)  the process for identifying the individual (if applicable) and why the
Board believes the individual shall be elected and the reasons why it
considers the individual to be independent;

(b)  if the proposed independent non-executive director will be holding
seven (or such number as stipulated in the Listing Rules from time to
time) or more listed company directorships, the reasons for the Board
to believe that the individual would still be able to devote sufficient
time to the Board;

(c)  the perspectives, skills and experience that the individual can bring
to the Board;

(d)  how the individual contributes to diversity of the Board; and

(e)  any specific information required by the Listing Rules, which may be
amended from time to time.
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Audit Committee

The Company has established an audit committee with terms of reference
aligned with the CP of the CG Code for the purpose of reviewing and
providing supervision over the Group's financial reporting process and
risk management and internal control systems. For details of the role and
function of the committee, please refer to its terms of reference which align
with the CP of the CG Code and have also been posted on the websites of
both the HKEx and the Company.

The audit committee is comprised of Mr. Wan Sai Cheong, Joseph
(chairman of the committee), Mr. Seto Gin Chung, John (chairman of
the Company) and Mr. Sze Tsai To, Robert, all of them are independent
non-executive directors of the Company. The chairman of the audit
committee has the required appropriate professional financial qualifications
and experience. Individual attendance records for audit committee
meetings are set out on page 57 of this Annual Report.

In 2019, the audit committee had (i) reviewed the accounting principles
and practices adopted by the Group and discussed with the management
auditing, risk management and internal control systems and financial
reporting matters including review of the Group's audited financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2018; (i) reviewed the audit
plan of the Group for 2019; (iii) made recommendation to the Board on the
re-appointment of external auditors; and (iv) reviewed the interim report for
the six months ended 30 June 2019. Subsequent to the year end, the audit
committee of the Company reviewed the Group's financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2019.

Auditor’'s Remuneration

During 2019, the fees payable to Ernst & Young, the Company's external
auditor, for the Group's audit services amounted to RMB2,628,000. Ernst &
Young also provided the Group with non-audit services which amounted
to RMB997,000. The non-audit services during the year mainly included
interim review.
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Financial Reporting

The directors acknowledge their responsibility to prepare financial
statements for each financial year which give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards. As at 31
December 2019, the directors were not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions which might cast significant doubt upon
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. Accordingly, the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2019
have been prepared on a going concern basis.

The responsibilities of the external auditor for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements are set out in the Independent Auditor's Report
included in this Annual Report.

Risk Management & Internal Control

The Board performs the role of a risk committee and is responsible for
overseeing the Group's risk management and internal control systems that
are designed to facilitate effective and efficient operations and to ensure
the quality of internal and external reporting and its compliance with
the applicable laws and regulations. In devising the systems, the Group
has evaluated the nature and the extent of the risk, the likelihood of it
crystallizing and the cost of controls. The systems are designed to manage,
but not eliminate, the risk of failure to achieve business objectives and
provide reasonable but not absolute assurance against the risk of material
misstatement, fraud or losses.

In the course of the annual review, the Board had evaluated the adequacy
of resources, staff qualifications and experience, training programmes and
the budget of the Group's accounting, internal audit and financial reporting
functions. In addition, the Board has considered the effectiveness of the
Group's processes for financial reporting and Listing Rules compliance.

The Group's risk management and internal control systems identify any
significant risks, evaluate the risk according to its likely impact and the
likelihood of occurrence and develop effective controls to manage or
mitigate any risks. Findings of the regular reviews of the systems are
reported to the audit committee.

The inside information policy of the Company has set out guidelines to
the directors, officers and all relevant employees of the Group to ensure
inside information (as defined in the Listing Rules) (the “Inside Information”)
of the Group would be disseminated to the public in equal and timely
manner in accordance with applicable laws and regulations. The Company
also has group internal notification policies and procedures for setting
out guidelines for identification and notification of Inside Information and
notifiable transactions (as defined in the Listing Rules).
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Risk Management & Internal Control (Continued)

The Board, with the assistance of its internal audit department and audit
committee, has conducted an annual review of the effectiveness of the
Group's risk management and internal control systems, as set out above,
in accordance with C2.1 of the CG Code and considered them effective
and adequate based on the reviews performed and confirmed by the
management and the risk management and internal control review
reports produced by an independent firm of certified public accountants.
Reviews for the financial year ended 31 December 2019 did not reveal any
significant defects.

The aforesaid is an ongoing process for identifying, evaluating and
managing of significant business, financial, compliance and operational
risks specific to the Group. Relevant recommendations made by the audit
committee and the independent firm of certified public accountants who
performed reviews and report to the Board at least annually would be
considered and implemented, if appropriate, as soon as possible by the
Group to further enhance the effectiveness of its risk management and
internal control policies, procedures and practices.

Further, the Board considered the changes, since the last annual review,
in the nature and extent of significant risks to the Group and the Group's
ability to respond to such changes. Please refer to pages 12 to 30 of the
“Management Discussion and Analysis” which set out the principal risks
and uncertainties identified by the Group's risk management and internal
control systems.

Shareholders’ Rights

Convening an extraordinary general meeting and
putting forward proposals at general meetings

Pursuant to Article 64 of the Company’'s Memorandum and Articles of
Association, one or more shareholders holding not less than one-tenth
of the paid up capital of the Company shall have the right to deposit a
written requisition to the Board, or the secretary of the Board, specifying the
requested business to be considered and, if the Board thinks fit, the Board
will proceed to convene an extraordinary general meeting (‘EGM”) for the
business specified in such requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit of
a written requisition, the Board fails to proceed to convene such an EGM,
the requesting shareholder(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the same
manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by him (them) as a result of
the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to him (them) by the Company.
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Shareholders’ Rights (Continued)

Procedures for shareholders to propose a person
for election as a director

Pursuant to Article 113 of the Company’s Memorandum and Articles of
Association, shareholders may lodge a notice in writing of the intention to
propose a person for election as a director and a notice in writing by that
person of his willingness to be elected at the Company’s Head Office or at
the Company’s Registered Office provided that the period for lodgment
of the notices required will commence no earlier than the day after the
despatch of the notice of general meeting appointed for such election and
end no later than 7 days prior to the date of such general meeting and
where such period shall be at least 7 days.

Shareholders should note that election of a director of the Company is
subject to other relevant parts of the Company’s Memorandum and Articles
of Association, the Listing Rules, and applicable laws in Cayman Islands and
Hong Kong.

Head Office . Flats E&F, 2/F, Hop Hing Building,
9 Ping Tong Street East,
Tong Yan San Tsuen, Yuen Long,
New Territories, Hong Kong

Registered Office :  Clifton House, 75 Fort Street, PO. Box 1350,
Grand Cayman, KY1-1108, Cayman Islands

Sending enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may raise their enquiries to the Board at the general meetings
of the Company or may at any time send their written enquiries to the
Board by delivering it to the company secretary of the Company whose
contact details are as follows:

Hop Hing Group Holdings Limited
Flats E&F, 2/F,

Hop Hing Building,

9 Ping Tong Street East,

Tong Yan San Tsuen,

Yuen Long,

New Territories,

Hong Kong

Tel: 852-2785 2681
Fax: 852-2786 2155
Email: ir@hophing.com
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Constitutional Documents

There was no change to the Company’s Memorandum and Articles of
Association during the year 2019. A copy of the consolidated version of the
Memorandum and Articles of Association has been posted on the websites
of both the HKEx and the Company.

Communication With Shareholders

The Board maintains an ongoing and transparent communication with
all shareholders and, in particular, will communicate with shareholders in
general meetings and encourage their participation. The Company will
also communicate with its shareholders by various other means, such as
publication of annual and interim reports, announcements, circulars and
additional information on the Group’s business activities and development
on the Company's website: http://www.hophing.com. A shareholders’
communication policy of the Company has been established and posted
on the Company's website.

Directors’/Committee Members’ Attendance
Records in 2019

BHE/THEZEE
Meeting attended/eligible to attend
2EEEE ENZEY FHZES RBEZEge RRBFAEY
Audit  Remuneration Nomination Annual General
-y Name of Director Full Board Committee Committee Committee Meeting*
BUHHTEE Independent Non-Executive Directors
AR (EE2EER Seto Gin Chung, John (Chairman of
REZRETE) the Board and of the
nomination committee) 6/6 22 2/2 171 11
LEW (FHZE2+E) Sze Tsai To, Robert (Chairman of the
remuneration committee) 6/6 22 2/2 TEBN/A 1/1
higH# Shek Lai Him, Abraham 5/6 TEAN/A 12 /1 1/1
Bt E (FEEEEEE) Wan Sai Cheong, Joseph (Chairman
of the audit committee) 6/6 22 NEANA TEANA 11
IHTEE Non-Executive Director
HEH Lam Fung Ming, Tammy 6/6 AN FIN/A NERN/A MERNA 11
HITEE Executive Directors
WA (7TH#E) Hung Ming Kei, Marvin
(Chief Executive Officer) 6/6 A AN/A A AN/A 1/1 11
S Wong Kwok Ying 6/6 TEANA TEAN/A NEANA N
¢ RARRZZE—NFAAT=ZBEIT_Z-NFR ¢ 2019 annual general meeting of the Company was held on 13 June 2019.
REFREG-
ZE-NEFFR
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The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) are pleased to present their
report and the audited financial statements of the Company and the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2019.

Principal Activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
subsidiaries of the Group are mainly engaged in the operation of quick
service restaurant chain business (“QSR Business”), principally selling beef
rice bowl under the brand name of Yoshinoya ( & ¥/ %) and ice-cream
under the brand name of Dairy Queen (7/kZ £5) , in northern part of
China. Details of the principal subsidiaries of the Group are set out in note

36 to the financial statements.

Business Review

A review of the Group's business, a description of the principal risks and
uncertainties of the Group, the performance of the Group in the period
under review with reference to key financial performance indicators,
the particulars of important events, key relationships, the environmental
policies and performance, the compliance with laws and regulations and
indications of likely future development in the Group's business have been
included in the “Management Discussion and Analysis” section of this
Annual Report which forms part of this report.

Results and Dividends

The Group's profits for the year ended 31 December 2019 and the Group's
financial position at that date are set out in the financial statements on
pages 80 to 174.

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, on 30 March 2020, the
directors recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK0.248 cent
per share for the year ended 31 December 2019 (2018: HK0.61 cent per
share). The recommended final dividend which is subject to the approval
of the Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting
("AGM") to be held on 2 June 2020 will be payable to shareholders whose
names appear on the register of members of the Company at the close
of business on 9 June 2020. These financial statements do not reflect the
recommended final dividend payable.

Summary Financial Information

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five financial years is set out on pages 175 and 176. This summary
does not form part of the audited financial statements.

Share Capital

Details of the share capital and shares issued during the year ended 31
December 2019 are set out in note 24 to the financial statements.
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Distributable Reserves

Details of the distributable reserves of the Company are set out in note 35
to the financial statements.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Own Listed
Securities

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the trustee of the Company's
share award scheme (the “Share Award Scheme”) adopted on 20 March
2015, purchased a total of 67,376,600 shares of the Company on the
Stock Exchange at a total consideration of approximately RMB8,918,000
(HK$10,310,000). As the shares are held by the trustee for the award of
shares pursuant to the Share Award Scheme and the trust deed, the shares
have therefore not cancelled. Apart from the above, neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed the Company’s
listed securities during the year ended 31 December 2019.

Directors

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Seto Gin Chung, John** (Chairman)

Hung Ming Kei, Marvin* (Chief Executive Officer)
Sze Tsai To, Robert**

Shek Lai Him, Abraham**

Wan Sai Cheong, Joseph**

Lam Fung Ming, Tammy*

Wong Kwok Ying*

* Non-executive director
** Independent non-executive director
# Executive director
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Directors (Continued)

All directors are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the
AGM of the Company in accordance with the provisions of the Company’s
amended and restated memorandum and articles of association. At the
AGM, Mr. Sze Tsai To, Robert and Ms. Lam Fung Ming, Tammy will retire
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election and Hon. Shek Lai Him,
Abraham, GBS, JP will retire at the AGM and not offer himself for re-election.

During the year and up to the date of this report, save for Mr. Shek not
offering himself for re-election due to his wish to devote more time in
pursuing his personal interests, there was no other director of the Company
tendering resignation, refusing to stand for re-election to office, nor has the
Company received any notice in writing from any director specifying that
his resignation is due to reasons relating to the affairs of the Company.

Pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, the Company has received a
written annual confirmation of independence from each of its independent
non-executive directors confirming that they had met the independence
guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules during the year ended
31 December 2019, and as such the Company considered them to be
independent.
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Mr. Seto Gin Chung, John, aged 71, was appointed as the Chairman of the Board on 25 March
2016. Mr. Seto has been appointed as a director of the Group since 25 April 2006 and is the chairman
of the nomination committee and a member of each of the audit committee and remuneration
committee of the Company. He is an independent non-executive director of Pokfulam Development
Company Limited, MS Group Holdings Limited and Kowloon Development Company Limited. He
was the Chief Executive Officer of HSBC Broking Services (Asia) Limited from 1982 to 2001. He was a
non-executive director of Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited from 2000 to 2003, a council
member of the Stock Exchange from 1994 to 2000 and was the first vice chairman of the Stock
Exchange from 1997 to 2000. He had been a non-executive director of Sateri Holdings Limited,
which became a listed company on the Stock Exchange on 8 December 2010, for the period from
28 October 2010 until the conclusion of the annual general meeting on 21 May 2013. He retired as
an independent non-executive director of China Everbright Limited on 17 May 2018. He retired as
a director of Pacific Eagle Asset Management Limited on 31 December 2019. He holds a Master of
Business Administration degree from New York University, USA and has over 30 years of experience in
the securities and futures industry.

EEBEE BF/m R_ZETTF A -REZERLEEES TRARGFMES
BIRENBERZEENE L AEREARE AR L EASAMASLEESHNNE
EREB -RERHBERSHMITZABA XA _tFZA-RARBFEZHLTA
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Mr. Sze Tsai To, Robert, aged 79, was appointed as a director of the Group on 1 June 2000 and is the
chairman of the remuneration committee and a member of the audit committee of the Company.
Mr. Sze is a fellow member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales and the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and was a partner in an international firm of
accountants with which he practiced for over 20 years. He is also an independent non-executive
director of a number of Hong Kong listed companies including Dah Sing Banking Group Limited, Dah
Sing Financial Holdings Limited, Nanyang Holdings Limited and Sunwah Kingsway Capital Holdings
Limited. He resigned as an independent non-executive director of Min Xin Holdings Limited on 1 April
2018 and of China Travel International Investment Hong Kong Limited on 24 October 2018.
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Hon. Shek Lai Him, Abraham, G55, /P, aged 74, was appointed as an independent non-executive
director of the Group on 1 January 2007 and is a member of each of the remuneration committee
and the nomination committee of the Company. Mr. Shek graduated from the University of Sydney,
Australia with a Bachelor of Arts degree. He has been a member of the Legislative Council of the
HKSAR representing real estate and construction functional constituency since 2000. Currently, Mr.
Shek is a member of the Court of The Hong Kong University of Science & Technology, a member
of the Court and Council of The University of Hong Kong, and has been appointed as a member of
the Advisory Committee on Corruption of the Independent Commission Against Corruption (ICAC)
as from 1 January 2017. Mr. Shek was appointed as Justice of the Peace in 1995 and awarded Silver
Bauhinia Star in 2007 and received Gold Bauhinia Star Award in July 2013. Mr. Shek was appointed
as a non-executive director of Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Authority with effect from
17 March 2015. He is an independent non-executive director of a number of Hong Kong listed
companies including NWS Holdings Limited, Paliburg Holdings Limited, Lifestyle International
Holdings Limited, Chuang’s Consortium International Limited, Country Garden Holdings Company
Limited, SIM Holdings Limited, China Resources Cement Holdings Limited, Lai Fung Holdings Limited,
Cosmopolitan International Holdings Limited, Everbright Grand China Assets Limited, CSI Properties
Limited and Far East Consortium International Limited. He retired as an independent non-executive
director of MTR Corporation Limited as from the conclusion of the annual general meeting on 22 May
2019. He resigned as an independent non-executive director of Midas International Holdings Limited
as from 4 p.m. on 26 January 2018. He was an independent non-executive director of [TC Corporation
Limited (now known as PT International Development Corporation Limited) until 4 p.m. on 28 March
2017 and of TUS International Limited until 5 January 2017. Mr. Shek is an independent non-executive
director and has been appointed the honorary chairman of Chuang’s China Investments Limited since
29 April 2019, on which date, he retired as the chairman of Chuang’s China Investments Limited. Mr.
Shek is an independent non-executive director of Goldin Financial Holdings Limited as from 9 January
2017. He is also the vice chairman and an independent non-executive director of ITC Properties Group
Limited. Mr. Shek is also an independent non-executive director of Eagle Asset Management (CP)
Limited, the manager of Champion Real Estate Investment Trust and an independent non-executive
director of Regal Portfolio Management Limited, the manager of Regal Real Estate Investment Trust.

HOP HING GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Mr. Wan Sai Cheong, Joseph, aged 66, was appointed as an independent non-executive director of
the Board on 2 February 2016 and is the chairman of the audit committee of the Company. Mr. Wan
is a Fellow member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales, the Chartered
Institute of Arbitrators, the Institute of Directors, the Royal Society of Arts and the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Wan currently serves as a vice chairperson of the Hong
Kong International Arbitration Centre and chairperson of its finance and administration committee.
Formerly, Mr. Wan was a director of the London Court of International Arbitration and of the
International Dispute Resolution Centre in the UK for the periods from February 2012 to September
2014 and from June 2009 to September 2014, respectively. After qualifying as a Chartered Accountant
in 1978, Mr. Wan worked for KPMG in Hong Kong from 1978 to 1987, spending a year at their London
Office. In 1987, Mr. Wan joined Dickson Concepts International Limited, a company listed on the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange and distributes luxury goods in South East Asia, as their Group Finance Director
and was responsible for the acquisitions of S.T. Dupont, Paris in 1987 and Harvey Nichols, London in
1991. Mr. Wan was the Chief Executive of the Harvey Nichols Group in the United Kingdom from 1992
to 2014, which was listed on the London Stock Exchange from 1996 to 2003. Mr. Wan was appointed
as a board member of the Supervisory Board of ST. Dupont S.AA. (a company listed on the Paris
Bourse) in May 1999 and he was elected the Chairman of the Supervisory Board in January 2008 until
retirement in September 2014. Mr. Wan is an independent non-executive director of A-Living Services
Co,, Ltd as from 9 February 2018. Mr. Wan's professional expertise is in the areas of international tax
planning, transaction due diligence and forensic accounting. He also has gained expertise in business
turnarounds, mergers and acquisitions, corporate finance, department store retailing, restaurant
operations and the global luxury markets.
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Ms. Lam Fung Ming, Tammy, aged 56, joined the Group in 1990 and was appointed as an executive
director of the Group on 1T November 2004, and re-designated as a non-executive director on 28 June
2013. Prior to the re-designation, Ms. Lam was the Chief Operating Officer of the Group responsible
for the sales activities, manufacturing, quality assurance and product development of the Group's
edible oils business. Ms. Lam holds a Bachelor of Science degree in Food Science and Technology and
a Higher Diploma in Chemical Technology from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University. She has over
25 years’ experience in the oil and food industry. Currently, she is a director and an employee of the
edible oils group which is indirectly controlled by the controlling shareholders of the Company.

HOP HING GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Mr. Hung Ming Kei, Marvin, aged 49, is the Chief Executive Officer of the Group with overall
responsibility for the business of the Group. He was appointed an executive director and the
Chief Executive Officer of the Group on 12 March 2012. Mr. Hung is a member of the nomination
committee of the Company. Mr. Hung holds a Bachelor's degree in Science majoring in Accounting
from the University of Southern California in the United States of America in 1992 and a Master's
degree in Business Administration from China Europe International Business School. Mr. Hung has
over 20 years of experience in business management and quick service restaurant operations. By
virtue of the Securities and Futures Ordinance, Mr. Hung is a substantial shareholder of the Company
as disclosed in the section under “Substantial Shareholders” and Other Persons’ Interests and Short
Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares”.

BRREL BRFoop SEARNMERKEEGRAE R-_ZTTF-A+HEZIAARN
SEEF -ZELERBTEGHMACERGE RAAB=-TRFMK St RIZEER-
BR—ANTFEMAREER > SEBR —BEEBER AT

Mr. Wong Kwok Ying, aged 60, is the Company Secretary and the Group Comptroller of the Group
and was appointed as a director of the Group on 10 January 2000. Mr. Wong is a fellow member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He has over 35 years' finance, accounting
and audit experience. Prior to joining the Group in 1990, he worked with one of the international
accounting firms in Hong Kong.
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Directors’ Emoluments

Details of the emoluments of the directors on a named basis are set out in
note 8 to the financial statements.

Directors’ Material Interests in Transactions,
Arrangements and Contracts

No transactions, arrangements and contracts that were significant in
relation to the Company’s business to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which any director of the Company and
the director’s connected party had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

Interests in Competing Business

None of the directors of the Company had interests in other business,
which competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the
Group's business.

Directors’ Service Contracts

None of the directors proposed for re-election at the AGM is a party to
any service contract with the Company which is not determinable by
the Company within one year without payment other than statutory
compensation.

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Group were entered into or in
existence during the year ended 31 December 2019.

Equity-Linked Agreements

Share options granted to directors and selected
eligible employees

The share option scheme of the Company was adopted for the purpose
of incentivizing and rewarding our directors and eligible employees who
contribute to the success of the operations of the Group. Details of the
share option scheme of the Company are set out in note 25 to the financial
statements. During the year under review, there were 72,500,000 share
options granted, 40,280,000 share options vested and 26,167,320 share
options lapsed. No share options were exercised and no shares were issued
during the year.

Award shares granted to eligible employees

The Share Award Scheme was adopted as a means to recognise the
contribution of and to provide incentives for the eligible employees. Details
of the Share Award Scheme and details of the award shares granted are set
out in note 26 to the financial statements. 62,914,000 award shares were
granted during the year ended 31 December 2019. The award shares are
subject to conditions and vesting schedules as determined by the Board in
its sole discretion.
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Permitted Indemnity Provision

Save for the directors’ and officers’ liability insurance coverage for the
directors and officers of the Group, no other permitted indemnity provision
for the benefit of any director or who had been a director of the Company,
or of its subsidiaries, where applicable, is in force.

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and
Short Positions in Shares and Underlying
Shares

As at 31 December 2019, the interests or short positions of the directors
and chief executive in the shares and underlying shares of the Company or
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQ"), as recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules, were as
follows:

RAEATEBER 2 E= Interests in Ordinary Shares of the Company
FEROBE SOREEME
Number of shares held, capacity and nature of interest
RN
BEER EB (=i BERITREZ
BHER REHEE ZTHEA st B
Percentage of
Directly and Through the Company'’s
beneficially controlled  Beneficiary of issued share
] Name of director owned corporation atrust Total capital
Al R Seto Gin Chung, John 500,847 - - 500,847 0.005%
MR Hung Ming Kei, Marvin 72,652,163 3412,399,373 73332815 3,558,384,351 35.335%
Bz Note () Fi#E (i) Note (i)
b Sze Tsai To, Robert 2454678 - - 2454678 0.024%
B & Notes:

(i) 3412399373 RN —BEEBIETEmES M
AELABESEEZESEETZITA

(i)  73332815MXMX MDA — B H#EE =R M&ZE
#E EZiTE*‘/\/\@%Ei\Eﬂ%%HE%ﬁZ MA
Al

R EX AT E MM MR SR BER TES
ZBBREN R_F-NAFE+ZA=1+—H $EE
ERARFHETAREER (ERREF MR
fERBISEXVER) Z Bin ~ MR D B+ HAEAR
BRE S M E IR B 3521RF 8 < R OK A - KA

RIBFRETRIMERNRBI LB R ZEmIIAR

(i) 3,412,399,373 shares were beneficially owned by a discretionary trust, the
trustee of which is beneficially owned by Mr. Hung Ming Kei, Marvin.

(ii) 73,332,815 shares were beneficially owned by a discretionary trust whose
discretionary beneficiaries included a company owned by Mr. Hung Ming Kei,
Marvin.

Save as disclosed above and the share options granted to the directors
as disclosed in note 25 to the financial statements, as at 31 December
2019, none of the directors had registered an interest or short position in
the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) that was
required to be recorded pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code.
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Substantial Shareholders’ and Other Persons’
Interests and Short Positions in Shares and
Underlying Shares
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AR er EERE T HMALTRARQF KRG
BRGNP ZERIABINT

As at 31 December 2019, the interests or short positions of substantial
shareholders/other persons in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company, as notified to the Company and recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, were as

follows:
RAEATEBER 2 E=R Interests in Ordinary Shares of the Company
LR NN
Fris EEITREAZ
g3 ZEREAE Bkt
Percentage of
Number of the Company’s
ordinary issued share
BREH Name of shareholder Notes shares held capital
True Force Ventures Limited True Force Ventures Limited (i) 1,408,783,784 13.99%
Earn Field International (PHT) Limited Earn Field International (PHT) Limited (i) 1,408,783,784 13.99%
H H Hung Foundation Limited H H Hung Foundation Limited (i) 3,579,187,103 35.54%
B 1 Hung Hak Hip, Peter (iv) 3,929,297,734 39.02%
AR Hung Diana Wan Ling v) 3,929,297,734 39.02%
Winner Planet Limited Winner Planet Limited (vi) 1,625,526,305 16.14%
Creative Mount Limited Creative Mount Limited (vii) 1,587,229,730 15.76%
North China Fast Food (2008) Limited North China Fast Food (2008) Limited (viii) 3,412,399,373 33.89%
Ample Great Ventures Limited Ample Great Ventures Limited (ix) 3,412,399,373 33.89%
AR E Hung Ming Kei, Marvin x) 3,558,384,351 35.34%
Arisaig Asia Consumer Fund Limited Arisaig Asia Consumer Fund Limited (xi) 801,620,000 7.96%
Arisaig Partners (Mauritius) Limited Arisaig Partners (Mauritius) Limited (xii) 801,620,000 7.96%
Cooper Lindsay William Ernest Cooper Lindsay William Ernest (xiif) 801,620,000 7.96%
Bz Notes:
[0 LR RN 2 BEREEAC () The registered holder of the shares disclosed above.
(i) LFHFEEZRDZELEEAC (i) The registered holder of the shares disclosed above.
(iii) H H Hung Foundation Limited[# % #llPredominance (iii) H H Hung Foundation Limited indirectly controls more than one-third of

(PHT) Limited K&z Action Success (PHT) LimitedE i% B8 A
2 LB =52 — /1% E# - Predominance (PHT)
Limited ¥ 48 A5 £ SCHE 3 () B (i) P st 2 BR 19 ’R AR
BB TRERFE 2598318050 M (5 B B o
Action Success (PHT) Limited$§ 4 166,787,730 AN A 7]
f& 7 o

the voting power at general meetings of Predominance (PHT) Limited and
Action Success (PHT) Limited. Predominance (PHT) Limited is deemed to be
interested in the shares mentioned in Notes (i) and (i) above, and 594,831,805
shares held by certain shareholders of the Company. Action Success (PHT)
Limited held 166,787,730 shares of the Company.
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Substantial Shareholders’ and Other Persons’
Interests and Short Positions in Shares and
Underlying Shares (Continued)

Interests in Ordinary Shares of the Company
(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(iv)

(vi)
(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

Mr. Hung Hak Hip, Peter is deemed to be interested in:

(a) 3,579,187,103 shares held through H H Hung Foundation Limited
mentioned in Note (iii) above;

(b) 73,332,815 shares held through Fortune Blessing (PH) Limited;

(€ 274,766,648 shares held through controlled corporations; and

(d) 2,011,168 shares held through a controlled corporation which Mrs.
Hung Diana Wan Ling, Mr. Hung Hak Hip, Peter’s spouse is deemed to
be interested in.

Mrs. Hung Diana Wan Ling is deemed to be interested in 2,011,168 shares
held through a controlled corporation. Mrs. Hung Diana Wan Ling, Mr. Hung
Hak Hip, Peter’s spouse is deemed to be interested in the shares mentioned in
(a) to (c) of Note (iv) above.

The registered holder of the shares disclosed above.
The registered holder of the shares disclosed above.

North China Fast Food (2008) Limited indirectly controls more than one-third
of the voting power at general meetings of certain registered shareholders
including Winner Planet Limited, Creative Mount Limited and Predominance
Fortune Limited. The company is deemed to be interested in the shares
mentioned in Notes (vi) and (vii) above and 199,642,838 shares held by
Predominance Fortune Limited.

Ample Great Ventures Limited is the sole shareholder of North China Fast
Food (2008) Limited which is deemed to be interested in shares mentioned in
Note (viii) above.

Mr. Hung Ming Kei, Marvin holds the entire issued share capital of Ample
Great Ventures Limited and is deemed to be interested in the shares
mentioned in Note (viii) above. He also directly and beneficially owns
72,652,163 shares. In addition, Mr. Hung Ming Kei, Marvin is deemed to be
interested in 73,332,815 shares beneficially owned by a discretionary trust
whose discretionary beneficiaries included a company owned by him.

The registered holder of the shares disclosed above.

Arisaig Partners (Mauritius) Limited is the investment manager of Arisaig
Asia Consumer Fund Limited and is deemed to be interested in the shares
mentioned in Note (xi) above.

Mr. Cooper Lindsay William Ernest indirectly holds one-third of the voting
power at general meetings of Arisaig Partners (Mauritius) Limited and is
deemed to be interested in the shares mentioned in Note (xi) above.
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Substantial Shareholders’ and Other Persons’
Interests and Short Positions in Shares and
Underlying Shares (Continued)

Interests in Ordinary Shares of the Company
(Continued)

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, the Company had not
been notified of any persons other than the directors of the Company
whose interests and share options are set out in the section “Directors’ and
Chief Executive’s Interests and Short Positions in Shares and Underlying
Shares” and in note 25 to the financial statements, respectively, who
had interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company, which are required to be recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

Connected Transactions and Related Party
Transactions

Save for connected transactions which are exempted from the reporting,
annual review, announcement and independent shareholders’ approval
requirements under the Listing Rules, during the year, there were no other
transactions which, in the opinion of the directors, constituted connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions that were subject to the
reporting requirements under the Listing Rules.

Details of related party transactions undertaken during the year have been
reported under note 31 to the financial statements. None of these related
party transactions constitutes a discloseable connected transaction as
defined under the Listing Rules.

Major Customers and Suppliers

In the year under review, sales attributable to the Group's five largest
customers accounted for less than 30% of the total sales for the year. The
percentage of purchases attributable to the largest supplier and the five
largest suppliers were 8.2% and 30.9%, respectively.

To the best knowledge of the directors, neither the directors, their
associates, nor any shareholders who own more than 5% of the Company'’s
issued share capital, had any beneficial interest in the Group's five largest
customers and five largest suppliers during the year.
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Retirement Benefit Schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution retirement benefits scheme,
namely the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”), for
the employees of the Group's subsidiaries in Hong Kong who are eligible
to participate. Contributions are made based on a percentage of the
employees’ salaries and charged to the income statement as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the scheme. The assets of the
scheme are held separately from those of the Group in independently
administered funds. In accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme, the
employer's contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed
into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries which operate in Mainland
China are required to participate in a central pension scheme operated
by the local government. These subsidiaries are required to contribute a
specified percentage of its payroll costs to the central pension scheme.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the total scheme contributions
made by the Group amounted to approximately RMB90,621,000 and no
forfeited contributions were applied to reduce employer's contributions.

Pre-Emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company's
amended and restated articles of association or the laws of the Cayman
Islands, which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata
basis to existing shareholders.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the directors, at least 25% of the Company's total issued
share capital was held by the public as at the date of this report.
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Subsequent Event

The outbreak of COVID-19 pneumonia which became a pandemic at the
beginning of 2020 has impacted the business environment in the People’s
Republic of China, and hence the sales performance of the Group. With
reduced traffic, the operation of certain stores of the Group has been
temporarily suspended since then. Based on the unaudited consolidated
management accounts of the Group for the two months ended 29
February 2020 (the “Review Period"), the Group recorded a decrease in
the same store sales growth and incurred a consolidated loss attributable
to shareholders of the Company in the Review Period, as compared to
the corresponding period in the first two months of 2019. The Group has
implemented various measures to minimize the adverse impact of the
COVID-19 on the business and the health and safety of the customers
and staff of the Group. Announcements on the above were made by the
Company on 28 February 2020 and 20 March 2020.

Auditor

Ernst & Young retire and a resolution for their reappointment as auditor of
the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

On Behalf of the Board

SETO GIN CHUNG, JOHN
Chairman

Hong Kong

30 March 2020
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the shareholders of Hop Hing Group Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Hop Hing Group
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set
out on pages 80 to 174, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2019, and the consolidated income
statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December
2019, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.
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Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how
our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly,
our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to
our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the
procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for
our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial statements.
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Key Audit Matters (Continued)

BREITSE BPMNESNMEERRETSE
Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter
BAEFIRE B

Deferred tax assets

A—E—NF+_A=+—H' BEEBEZELHBEEES
AR #87,100,0007T G IERBEE 2% - BEEENREEA T
LARER ZEIEFIB B E 5B ZEIRE B 12 R F 0% FIl v A

HH 2R A B ] S 7 ST DA B 2R SR A5 TR AR 1 3R % 1/F H B K 4l

BRANBRBEE SN T BHRRME3IR9 -

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had deferred tax assets of
RMB87.1 million, representing 9% of non—current assets. Significant
management judgement is required to determine the amount of
deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely
timing and level of future taxable profits together with future tax
planning strategies.

Related disclosures are included in notes 3 and 19 to the financial
statements.

1e

F =
Stocks
R-_ZTE—NAE+-_A=+—8" EEZTTEJ\E%%
146,500,000 IR RBNEE 218% A EEBGFEEXTESR

ERIHMB 2RI FE ﬁéﬁmﬁﬁ/\ﬁ/ﬁﬂﬁ%ﬂfﬁﬁtﬁﬁfﬁ
5 EEEEBERHTFERAFEHRERHE-

BRANBRBEE AN T BHRRME3IR6 -

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had stocks of RMB146.5 million,
representing 18% of current assets. As the stocks of the Group were
mainly composed of food ingredients, which were subject to expiry,
the estimation of the stock provision required management’s
significant judgement in determining slow-moving stocks as these
were based on forecast stock usage.

Related disclosures are included in notes 3 and 16 to the financial
statements.

HPINEAETRERHERES T RRRUAFRES I
AR R IR 2 BT IR E ZE AT A 1838 BB AR T A SRR
R BIRBE Y B 2 ] BE 1 » TR APIRT 1 75 B8 TR A AR PR B AR B I
AZBREBERR HERRBKEERAE Bﬁﬁ‘%i‘ﬁ%"éﬂ)&
SNEBRIEBITREFETH R - RAABABHBER T2 H
EH BEEEZHBMR -

Our audit procedures included, amongst others, a review
of management’s analysis and assumptions supporting the
probability that deferred tax assets recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position would be recovered through taxable
income or tax planning strategies in the future. We assessed the key
management assumptions over expected future taxable income by
comparing them with both internal financial budget information
and external available industry information. We also involved our
tax specialists to review the tax positions of the Group.

BB B/ FERFREELFEEEREETE A GIE
BEENBERE YTEREBAEMNREEEFERMIHE
EEREBE RMAMEEEERBEFERBELETIMm R
M2meERMEZERFERE METEARR -

We assessed stock excess and obsolescence provisions by
considering the stock level against historical stock turnover days
and substantively checked to both past and subsequent sales and
usage information on selected stock samples. We also discussed
any stocks with potential obsolescence with management. We
attended physical stock counts at warehouses and stores and
performed compilation test.

—E-hEER
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Other Information Included in the Annual Report

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Annual
Report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor's
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Directors for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of
the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group's financial
reporting process.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a
body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

—B-NEER 77
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Chung Yuk Man.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
22/F CITIC Tower

1 Tim Mei Avenue

Central

Hong Kong

30 March 2020
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Consolidated Income Statement
BE-ZE—NWE+=-A=1+—HIEEE Yearended 31 December 2019

—E-NEF ZE-N\F

2019 2018

K1t ARET T ARET T

Notes RMB’000 RMB'000

(&&E:75)

(Restated)

EHERE TURNOVER 5 2,102,814 2,003,617

fHE KA Cost of sales (782,446) (737,978)

H it Ug A K U 25558 Other income and gains, net 5 17,698 13,895

HENMDIHER Selling and distribution expenses (955,892) (948,967)

— B RITEEA General and administrative expenses (187,640) (177,499)

DEEEE Z2mF R EE Share of profits and losses of joint venture 15 (1,264) (380)

P PROFIT FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 6 193,270 152,688

B E KA Finance costs 7 (41,523) 621)

%1 A0 5 F PROFIT BEFORE TAX 151,747 152,067

TS X Income tax expense 10 (47,637) (48,587)
DA RERFEA PROFIT FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO

FEfR AR EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY 104,110 103,480
ARARERFEA EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO

EhERER EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY 12
HAK Basic ARMRMB1.07% cents A RBRMBI057 cents
e Diluted ARMRMB1.06D cents  AFEERMBI.04% cents
BEEBEERER AT

HOP HING GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

BE-Z-NE+=-A=1+—HLFE Yearended 31 December 2019

—E-NF —2-N\F
2019 2018
ARET T ARET T
RMB’000 RMB'000
(&&E:5)
(Restated)
AR EHF PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 104,110 103,480
H 2wk OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
REAEBAIEEFIER Other comprehensive income that
BakRzHME2EKE: may be reclassified to income statement
in subsequent periods:
B AR B K B ASNEE RS 2 Exchange differences on translation of
MMk 2 ERLERE financial statements of operations
outside Mainland China 2,330 7,720
REH A2 KR E OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR 2,330 7,720
ADARESTEAEN TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
AE2HENEHEEE FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY
HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY 106,440 111,200
“E-NEER 81
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
—E—-NF+=ZH=1+—H 31December2019

—E-hF —N\FE —ZE-N\F
+=A +=A —A
=+—H =+—H —H
31 December 31 December 1 January
2019 2018 2018
k=3 AR® TR AREETIT ARETT
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
(& &E3) (&E3)
(Restated) (Restated)
FRBEE NON-CURRENT ASSETS
VI WS R Property, plant and equipment 73 206,203 183,018 177,826
ffﬁﬁ%;éﬁ Right-of-use assets 74 626,080 = -
REEREZIRE Investment in a joint venture 15 8,556 9,820 =
ELTR HEE Deferred tax assets 79 87,128 43,788 37,092
FENRIEREEERS Prepayments and rental deposits 20 42,526 45,968 42,998
FREBEEREE Total non-current assets 970,493 282,594 257,916
nEEE CURRENT ASSETS
BE Stocks 16 146,536 95,483 92,835
e BR 18 Accounts receivable 17 18,473 17,512 14,802
TERIE - e R EAD Prepayments, deposits and
e BRIA other receivables 20 110,082 122,226 81,601
AJ g [E] 7 18 Tax recoverable 4,128 1,173 163
RNiBIFE Deposit certificates 21 60,000
HitemEE Other financial assets 21 242,988 207,023 40,000
ReERBELEFEBEY Cash and cash equivalents 22 252,900 352,660 534,530
REBEEHAE Total current assets 835,107 796,077 763,931
nEEE CURRENT LIABILITIES
FEFBRIE Accounts payable 18 129,166 112,608 127,969
HEMEAEREERER Other payables and accrued
FEETE R charges 23 328,696 355,101 312,097
HEBE Lease liabilities 14 185,977 = =
sTRIRITER Interest-bearing bank loan - - 8,330
FEAS AR IE Tax payable 12,859 5,971 8211
REEEABE Total current liabilities 656,698 473,680 456,607
mEEEFE NET CURRENT ASSETS 178,409 322,397 307,324

82 SREEZRERLD A
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
—ZE-AE+=-HA=+—H 31December2019

—E—-hE —E—N\F —E—NEF
+=A +=A —A
=+—H =E4=E —H
31 December 31 December 1 January
2019 2018 2018
Kt AREFT AREF T ARET T
Notes RMB’'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
€<==xlp) (&e&E7)
(Restated) (Restated)
EEABRRBERE TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT
LIABILITIES 1,148,902 604,991 565,240
FEREBEE NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
HEEE Lease liabilities 14 603,075 = -
RIETHIERE Deferred tax liabilities 79 22,666 21,108 20,618
ERBEBERATE Total non-current liabilities 625,741 21,108 20,618
FEE NET ASSETS 523,161 583,383 544,622
= EQUITY
RABIRERA A Equity attributable to equity
FE(h R holders of the Company
B EITIRAR Issued share capital 24 820,284 820,284 820,284
s Reserves 27 (297,123) (236,401) (275,662)
R TOTAL EQUITY 523,161 583,883 544622
A HE R A HEBEE
*E T AE 7
SETO GIN CHUNG, JOHN HUNG MING KEI, MARVIN
CHAIRMAN CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
“E-NEER 83
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

BEZZE—-NF+ZA=1T—HIEFE VYearended 31 December 2019
ARAREREARE
Attributable to equity holders of the Company
RERG
EEitH ke EXRE UV
BEARE  ROEER FEORH*  SHEET AR fifer  RERET  HtREw  REEN BER
Share held
Issued Share  under share Share-hased Exchange Capital
share premium award Merger payment  fluctuation Statutory and other Retained Total
capital account* scheme* reserve* reserve* reserve* reserve*  reserves*# profits* equity
ARBTR ARMTR ARETR AR¥TR  ARETR AR®TR  AR%Tn ARETR ARMTR ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
(Kzt4)
(note 24)
RIZ-AE—A-B  At1January 2019 restated)

(fm=3]) 820,284 3,097,863 (33,191)  (3,961,251) 25,215 (16,986) 13,406 110,150 528,393 583,883
RAERSEREEN  Hectof adoption of HKFRS 16

FIFENTE (W23 (owel3) - - - - - - - - (339 (13319)

RZE-NE—A-B  At1January 2019 restated)

(%5 820,284 3,097,863 (33191) (3,961,251 25,215 (16,986) 13,406 110,150 05,074 470,564
AEEH Profitfor the year - - - - - - - - 104,110 104,110
REEMHEENE: Other comprehensive income

for the year:
AERNPERBENNEEZ  Bchange diferences on
BBRR B EE transation of financial
statements of operations
outside Mainland China - - - - - 2,330 - - - 2,330
TERENEES Total comprehensive incorne
for the year - - - - - 2,330 - - 104,110 106,440
RO REEIEBZRA  Vesting of shares of share
award scheme - - 4510 - (3,929) - - - (581) -
BRERGEBFEBEARD  Shares purchased under share
award scheme - - (8,918) - - - - - - (8,918)
BREXK Shae options lapsed - - - - (4212) - - - 4212 -
DREEE 2D Equiy-setted share-based
payments - - - - 6,431 - - - - 6,431
BT RE Release ofstatutory reserve - - - - - - (1,000 - 1,000 -
“E-\EXBRE Final dividend for 2018 hoze 17)

(Wit - (51,356) - - - - - - - (51,356)

ZE-NETZAZT-R A3 December 2019 820,284 3,046,507 (37599)  (3961,251) 23,505 (14,656) 12,406 110,150 523,815 523,161

SEREEEZERARAR
HOP HING GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

&

BEZZ—N\FE+ZHA=1T—HIHFE Yearended 31 December 2018
ARARERR AR
Attributable to equity holders of the Company
RERR
EORE] Wi ERED ARR
BEARA  RhRER HEORG AR <HER Gl OEEERT  BHRET  RBEN 4
Share held
[ssued Share  undershare Share-based Exchange Capial
share premium award Merger payment fluctuation Statutory and other Retained Total
capital account* scheme* reserve™ reserve* reserve* reserve™ Teserves™* profits* equity
ARBTT  ARBTT  ARETT  ARETr  ARBTr  ARBTr  ARETr  ARETR  ARBTR  ARBTR
RVB000 RMBO00 RMB00D RVB00D RMBO000 RMBO00 RMBO000 RVB00D RMBO00 RMBO0D
(me5)  (mep))  (9Ep)  (4E5)  (@F)  (BE5)  (MER))  (HER)  (4EF)  (4E))
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(Mst)
(note 24)
RZT-/\5-A-R At 1 January 2018 820284 3166899 (25307) (391251) 19979 (24706) 13406 110150 425168 544622
i3yl Proft forthe year - - - - - - - - 103480 103480
FEEf2ENG: Other comprehensive income
forthe year:
HERREABNERE 2 BRRR L Exchange diffrences on tranlaton of
EiZE financial statements of operations
outside Mainland China - - - - 770 - - - 770
RERENREE Total comprehensive income
forthe year - - - - 7720 - - 103480 117,00
R AN Vesting ofshares of share award scheme - 1902 - (1647) - - - (159) -
TR R T ARS Shares purchased under share
award scheme - (9786) - - - - - - (9,786)
IWREEE R Fquit-settled share-based payments - - - 6883 - - - - 6683
SE-CEREREHA)  Fnaldhidend for 017 frore ) - - - - - - - - (69036)
R=F-\F+-A=1-H At 31 December 2018 820284 3097863 (33191) (391251) 5215 (16,986) 13406 110150 528393 563883

Hit#

ZEFBEREAEGRAVBERARARE ZE
FEEEARE297123000C (ZE—\FE: AR
236,401,0007T ) ©

AHHEEER - —FREEHMEIRB AR
AEHZREEERERAR ([EERZE])HEK
B AN R#4012,2400007T (IR BRAEAAR
#%4,048,440,0007T 18 & R & /& {1 Queen Board
Limited &2 EL B 8 A ) B 3k A R #536,200,0007T ) #8 H
& BHRE ML AR A R #5296,0007T M IR i (B A R
50,693,0007T 2 &85 °

B ZEARLRE ([RE])ARNE A
R AR BN B AR R BB EEAERTRET
i (AR RE FEBE) 2 10%E 8 25T
FEEC EATCHEBESZEHREDSEREM
BARZ50% AR 1E R BEEER  LATEHEES
ATAREHERA FEBENIEMEME R A -
REBAEATCHEES R HESRRINALREES
it & 48 250% ©

EAREIMHETIER B FENEEEEEEY
EAGE

i

These reserve accounts comprise the reserves in debit balance of
RMB297,123,000 (2018: RMB236,401,000) in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

Merger reserve represents the excess of investment cost in a subsidiary,
Hop Hing Fast Food Group Holdings Limited (‘Hop Hing Fast Food"), of
RMB4,012,240,000 (being the total consideration of RMB4,048,440,000
reduced by the loans of RMB36,200,000 owed by Hop Hing Fast Food to
Queen Board Limited and its associates) over the share capital and share
premium of Hop Hing Fast Food of RMB296,000 and RMB50,693,000,
respectively, arising from the acquisition in 2012.

In accordance with the Company Law of the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC"), the Company's subsidiaries registered in the PRC are required to
appropriate 10% of the annual statutory net profit after tax (after offsetting
any losses of prior years) to the statutory reserve fund. When the balance of
the statutory reserve fund reaches 50% of each entity’s registered capital, any
further appropriation is optional. The statutory reserve fund can be utilised to
offset losses of prior years or to increase the registered capital. However, such
balance of the statutory reserve fund must be maintained at a minimum of
50% of the registered capital after such usage.

Capital and other reserves mainly represent the capital reserve arising from
group reorganisation in prior years.
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HEIREREE

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
BEZZE—hWF+=-H=1+—HLEFE Yearended 31 December 2019

—E-NEF —E—)\F
2019 2018
k23 AR®T ARKETT
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
(&&E75)
(Restated)
REXEBHERE CASH FLOWS FROM
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
R 5t B A Profit before tax 151,747 152,067
FLATIE B (EH AR Adjustments for:
FEHA Interest income 5 (5,960) (7,181)
& A Finance costs 7 41,523 621
Y RE REEITE Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 6 91,977 83,683
ERAEEENE Depreciation of right-of-use assets 6 196,061 -
W BEN&REEE Impairment/(write-back of impairment) of
BB, CRERE) items of property, plant and equipment 6 (1,031) 4,985
EREEERE Impairment of right-of-use assets 6 12,233 =
WIFHE 2 W Gain on termination of leases 6 (3,454) =
HE MSEME - BEKN  Loss on disposal/write-off of items of
RBIEEB 2 BB property, plant and equipment, net 6 10,308 8,005
HEemEEL Fair value gain on other financial assets
N EWR R 6 (8,851) (5633)
DEEERFEZ Share of profits and losses of joint venture
i A N B R 1,264 380
RSS2 Equity-settled shared-based payment
VARR £ 2 £+ 6 6,431 6,883
492,248 243,810
FE®EM Increase in stocks (51,053) (2,648)
JfE Uk BR TE 152 0 Increase in accounts receivable (961) (2,710)
FERNRE -ZE Rk Increase in prepayments, deposits and
E th i Ui BR T 38 0 other receivables (25,276) (43,595)
FEBREEE I, (Fd) Increase/(decrease) in accounts payable 16,558 (15,361)
H fth & A AR IE J2 Increase in other payables and accrued charges
FEET & &N 35,072 43,004
REEBFEZHS Cash generated from operations 466,588 222,500
B U F B Interest received 5,960 7,181
REL(BER)BBFIBE  Hong Kong profits tax refunded/(paid) (2,722) 726
B A B A B 18 Mainland China tax paid (44,454) (59,510)
Z&%%ﬂ‘ﬂﬁﬁ S2Z Net cash flows from operating activities
WEMEH 425,372 170,897

SREEZRERLD A

HOP HING GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED




mORENER

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

BEZZ—-NF+ZHA=+—HLFE Yearended 31 December 2019

—E-NEF ZE-N\F
2019 2018
Bt AR®TR ARKETT
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
(&%)
(Restated)
RETH2RERE CASH FLOWS FROM
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
EEYE MENBZMHEEEB Purchases of items of property, plant and
\ equipment (124,437) (101,888)
R EEABFRET =8 A LA £ Decrease/(increase) in time deposits with
B H 2 EEESORD original maturity of more than three months
(3Zh0) when acquired (11,000) 135,500
Hfih & g & EE N Increase in other financial assets (27,114) (161,390)
NEaTF B8N Increase in deposit certificates (60,000) -
AeETEEE Capital contribution to a joint venture - (10,200)
WEEBFIFEZ Net cash flows used in investing activities
RemeEFeE (222,551) (137,978)
METHRERE CASH FLOWS FROM
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
BB E A Finance costs paid (41,523) 621)
BT R Dividends paid (51,356) (69,036)
BB R M5 ﬁﬁbﬁ%‘]ﬁ%]\ﬁﬁ % Shares purchased under share award scheme (8,918) (9,786)
BEIRITER Repayment of a bank loan - (8,330)
HENROEASH D Principal portion of lease payments (213,575) =
BEEETEZ Net cash flows used in financing activities
WEmEFHE (315,372) (87,773)
BeRESEEYR L FE NET DECREASE IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS (112,551) (54,854)
REVZ2IRE RIFESEEY Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 271,160 317,530
MRS B Effect of foreign exchange rates changes, net 1,791 8484
REEZ2HERELEEY CASHAND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT END OF YEAR 160,400 271,160
ReRBELEEYEER D ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS
RE B EARRTY 2 Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the
Re KRS EEY consolidated statement of financial position 252,900 352,660
B RBARREITR Less:  Time deposits with original maturity of
=& A A L EIHEf more than three months when
Z T BER acquired 22 (92,500) (81,500)
RERESRERMIZ Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the
HekIBEEEY consolidated statement of cash flows 160,400 271,160
—E-NEFR
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.1
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Hb4k A Clifton House, 75 Fort Street, PO. Box 1350,
Grand Cayman, KY1-1108, Cayman Islands* i1 2 2
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ARRZEBEBR/REZBR -RAFEA
ARFIMBARNEEXEY BEMERE
B BIE 2RI ERmE A [HFEH K] & [k
E2F] mEEERE (TRE]) XK

TEMBARZFBHN M B RAMEG -

fim S EL %=
HZEMHRERDREBAGAMAE ([FB
SRS )R BBMBRELER ([F
BUBREEAN]) (EFBREMEREMH
SRR FEEHEL ([FEGHER])
Kk2R) BELRBZETRA URBEA
BRI Z BB RRE - % F K TR
BERRANE AR R A HEEZ H
TREENMKBTFERI - ZFUBEHRRAA
RE(TARE]) 2% BRBHRPIN e
MEORBERELZ T T

mEEXE
RAEMBRRBEARRREMB AR (F5HE
(AEEDBE-_Z-NAF+-A=1+—H8L
FEZUBHRER HBRAREARTEELME
ERHINER (BREBLLER) E4AKHE
B2 ER IR E T B AR BEE B i AR A] &
BOERIFEAERE  WEFENERY
WIRETES (BIREASEBRBRENE
BRRETRRESHREEN) R EZF
(o] R B+ BVER 1S 428 1) o

SEEEZERARAT
HOP HING GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

2.1

Corporate and Group Information

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands on 1 August 2007. The registered office address of
the Company is Clifton House, 75 Fort Street, PO. Box 1350, Grand
Cayman, KY1-1108, Cayman Islands. The principal place of business
of the Company is located at Flats E & F, 2/F, Hop Hing Building, 9
Ping Tong Street East, Tong Yan San Tsuen, Yuen Long, New Territories,
Hong Kong.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. There
was no significant change in the principal activities of the subsidiaries
of the Company during the year, which mainly consisted of the
operation of quick service restaurants (“QSR") business under the
brand names of Yoshinoya and Dairy Queen in Northern China.

Details of the principal subsidiaries are set out in note 36 to the
financial statements.

Basis of Preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) (which
include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (‘HKASs") and Interpretations) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
They have been prepared under the historical cost convention,
except for other financial assets and deposit certificates which have
been measured at fair value. These financial statements are presented
in Renminbi (“RMB") and all values are rounded to the nearest
thousand except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2019.
A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly or
indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when
the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the investee (i.e, existing rights that
give the Group the current ability to direct the relevant activities of
the investee).
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.1 Basis of Preparation (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority
of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all
relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power
over an investee, including:

(@)  the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of
the investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
() the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the
same reporting period as the Company, using consistent accounting
policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on
which the Group obtains control, and continue to be consolidated
until the date that such control ceases.

Income statement and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets and
liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to
transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more
of the three elements of control described above. A change in
the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is
accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii)
the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii) the
cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and recognises
(i) the fair value of the consideration received, (i) the fair value of
any investment retained and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in
the income statement. The Group's share of components previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified to the
income statement or retained profits, as appropriate, on the same
basis as would be required if the Group had directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities.
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2.2 Change of Presentation Currency

The presentation currency of the consolidated financial statements in
the prior financial period was Hong Kong dollars (‘HKS").

Having considered that (i) most of the Group's transactions are
denominated and settled in RMB; and (i) the change of presentation
currency will also reduce the impact of any fluctuations in the
exchange rate of HKS against RMB, which is not related directly to
the Group's operational performance and is beyond its control, on
the consolidated financial statements of the Group, the directors of
the Company consider that it is more appropriate to use RMB as the
presentation currency of the consolidated financial statements of the
Group so that the shareholders of the Company will be presented
with a clearer picture of the Group’s actual financial performance.
Accordingly, the Group has changed its presentation currency in
the consolidated financial statements from HKS$ to RMB starting
from 1 January 2019. The comparative figures have been restated
to conform with the current year's presentation in RMB and a third
consolidated statement of financial position as at 1 January 2018 has
been presented.

For the purpose of presenting the consolidated financial statements
of the Group in RMB, the assets and liabilities for the consolidated
statement of financial position are translated into RMB at the closing
rate at the end of the reporting periods. Income and expenses in
the consolidated income statement and consolidated statement
of comprehensive income are translated at the average exchange
rates for the financial periods. The share capital, the share premium
and reserves are translated at the exchange rates at the dates of
transaction.



Rl 5 ER R i 5

Notes to Financial Statements

23 S BEREEZEE 2.3 Changes in Accounting Policies and
Disclosures

REBRAFE 2 W= & IRER T35 The Group has adopted the following new and revised HKFRSs for

B RESIER] BB IS S 2R the first time for the current year's financial statements.

BB IS AL ABGEFHEFSZ Amendments to Prepayment Features with Negative
EORIEFT A BT K EH HKFRS 9 Compensation

BB B HRELEL HE HKFRS 16 Leases
F165%

BB SR FTEIEET - AR Amendments to Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
FI19RIEFT A mE HKAS 19 Settlement

BB ETER REEERAIRE & Amendments to Long-term Interests in Associates and
FE28RIEFT A PRZ RAER HKAS 28 Joint Ventures

B (BEBRTB®E FEHEEDEH HK(FRIC)-Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments
RELZEg TBF B A &
—RBE3R

—E—AFFE B 5 s 22 R Annual Improvements  Amendments to HKFRS 3, HKFRS 11,
—E—FHA F35% BB 2015-2017 Cycle HKAS 12 and HKAS 23
2 EEHHE HAERE115%

ARG ERF2
SRAE S e £

F23FRAEFT A
Br TPt B &S M M E R 1658 8 Other than as explained below regarding the impact of HKFRS 16,
SO - BN BT RT R ASHS RT ZE I I 4% Y B the adoption of the above new and revised standards has had no
BHRREEFMERTLE - significant effect on the financial statements.

RS BB REERFE1655 Adoption of HKFRS 16

BB BHREER B 16RRB B S5 2ER| HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17 Leases, HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 Determining
FVREE B (BRVBHRERREE

= whether an Arrangement contains a Lease, HK(SIC)-Int 15 Operating

’

®) REFSETLHELHEHE & Leases — Incentives and HK(SIC)-Int 27 Evaluating the Substance of
B(EBREZESR) REFISHRLEH Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease. The standard sets
E-ERZRED (FHREZEY) —2ES out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation
2TREAHE S RIBEDZFETE A ZHIA D © 7% 4 and disclosure of leases and requires lessees to account for all leases
AIEFIER 2 27 RIBEHENRA under a single on-balance sheet model to recognise and measure
W E KA ARBE —EEAEREXLEM right-of-use assets and lease liabilities, except for certain recognition
BEHEETEREUNERNGTEFEHAESR exemptions. Lessor accounting under HKFRS 16 is substantially
ERBEARE HE THERHRRIN BB unchanged from HKAS 17. Lessors will continue to classify leases as
BREEE 1K ARBS BB G ERE either operating or finance leases using similar principles as in HKAS
175N HAANEETEE R o B AGEE 17.
fF AR BT 2R E 1 755 B R Bl 5
ENHAKEHESRMEMRE -

—E-NFFR 91
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2.3 Changes in Accounting Policies and
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Disclosures (Continued)
Adoption of HKFRS 16 (Continued)

The Group has adopted HKFRS 16 using the modified retrospective
method with the date of initial application of 1 January 2019. Under
this method, the standard has been applied retrospectively with the
cumulative effect of initial adoption as an adjustment to the opening
balance of retained profits at 1 January 2019, and the comparative
information for 2018 was not restated and continued to be reported
under HKAS 17 and related interpretations.

New definition of a lease

Under HKFRS 16, a contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys a right to control the use of an identified asset for a period
of time in exchange for consideration. Control is conveyed where
the customers has both the right to obtain substantially all of the
economic benefits from use of the identified asset and the right to
direct the use of the identified asset. The Group elected to use the
transition practical expedient allowing the standard to be applied
only to contracts that were previously identified as leases applying
HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 at the date of initial application.
Contracts that were not identified as leases under HKAS 17 and
HK(FRIC)-Int 4 were not reassessed. Therefore, the definition of a
lease under HKFRS 16 has been applied only to contracts entered
into or changed on or after 1 January 2019.

As a lessee — Leases previously classified as operating leases

Nature of the effect of adoption of HKFRS 16

The Group has lease contracts for various items of offices,
warehouses and stores. As a lessee, the Group previously classified
leases as either finance leases or operating leases based on the
assessment of whether the lease transferred substantially all the
rewards and risks of ownership of assets to the Group. Under HKFRS
16, the Group applies a single approach to recognise and measure
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for all leases, except for two
elective exemptions for leases of low value assets (elected on a lease
by lease basis) and leases with a lease term of 12 months or less
(“short-term leases”) (elected by class of underlying asset). Instead
of recognising rental expenses under operating leases on a straight-
line basis over the lease term commencing from 1 January 2019, the
Group recognises depreciation (and impairment, if any) of the right-
of-use assets and interest accrued on the outstanding lease liabilities
(as finance costs).
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.3 Changes in Accounting Policies and

Disclosures (Continued)
Adoption of HKFRS 16 (Continued)

As a lessee — Leases previously classified as operating leases
(Continued)

Impacts on transition

Lease liabilities at 1 January 2019 were recognised based on the
present value of the remaining lease payments, discounted using the
incremental borrowing rates as at 1 January 2019

The right-of-use assets were recognised based on the carrying
amount as if the standard had always been applied, except for
the incremental borrowing rates where the Group applied the
incremental borrowing rates at 1 January 2019. All these assets were
assessed for any impairment based on HKAS 36 on that date. The
Group elected to present the lease liabilities and the right-of-use
assets separately in the statement of financial position.

The Group has used the following elective practical expedients when
applying HKFRS 16 at 1 January 2019

Applied the short-term lease exemption to lease with a lease
term that ends within 12 months from the date of initial
application

Used hindsight in determining the lease term where the
contract contains options to extend/terminate the lease

Applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases with
reasonably similar characteristics when measuring the lease
liabilities at 1 January 2019

Relied on the entity’s assessment of whether leases were
onerous by applying HKAS 37 immediately before 1 January
2019 as an alternative to performing an impairment review

Excluded initial direct costs from the measurement of the
right-of-use assets at the date of initial application when
applying HKFRS 16

—E-hEER
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2.3 Changes in Accounting Policies and

Disclosures (Continued)

Adoption of HKFRS 16 (Continued)

As a lessee — Leases previously classified as operating leases
(Continued)

Impacts on transition (Continued)
The impacts arising from the adoption of HKFRS 16 as at 1 January
2019 are as follows:

#m/
OR)
Increase/
(decrease)
AREEFIT
RMB'000
BE Assets
fE A EE M Increase in right-of-use assets 628,662
IR RERR T8 & EE 3T N Increase in deferred tax assets 37,773
TENFIE  Ee K E A EKARIE R Decrease in prepayments, deposits and
other receivables (40,862)
4R & EEE N Increase in total assets 625,573
afE Liabilities
MHE B &0 Increase in lease liabilities 800,369
HEEMERBERETERARD Decrease in other payables and accrued charges (61,477)
LEFEEM Increase in total liabilities 738,892
B Reserves
IR 88 A Decrease in retained profits (113,319)

R-ZF-NF-A-—BNHEREER_-F
—}\$+_H:+ B EEEREZY

A reconciliation between the lease liabilities as at 1 January 2019
and the operating lease commitments as at 31 December 2018 is as

RN : follows:
ARETTT
RMB'000
R-E-—NF+-A=+-—BNKEHRERIE Operating lease commitments as at
31 December 2018 907,756
RZE—NF— A — BHINEFHIEE EF =X Weighted average incremental borrowing rate as
1 January 2019 4.10%

R-ZBE-—NF—A-BNRREKEHERE
e REHEERFSKERN T -NF

TZA=+—HEZAE LD
ZEHEB B AE

R-FE-NF-A-BNHEERE

94 EREEEZERERAF
HOP HING GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

Discounted operating lease commitments as
1 January 2019 800,507
Less: Commitments relating to short-term
leases and those leases with a
remaining lease term ended on or
before 31 December 2019 (138)

Lease liabilities as at 1 January 2019 800,369
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 Issued But Not Yet Effective Hong Kong

Financial Reporting Standards

The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs,
that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial

statements.

Amendments to
HKFRS 3

Amendments to
HKFRS 7, HKFRS 9,
and HKAS 39

Amendments to
HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28 (2011)

HKFRS 17

Amendments to
HKAS 1 and HKAS 8

Insurance Contracts?

Definition of Material’

Definition of a Business’

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform’

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or Joint

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021
3 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for
adoption

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to be

applicable to the Group is described below.
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Financial Reporting Standards (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) address an
inconsistency between the requirements in HKFRS 10 and in HKAS
28 (2011) in dealing with the sale or contribution of assets between
an investor and its associate or joint venture. The amendments
require a full recognition of a gain or loss when the sale or
contribution of assets between an investor and its associate or joint
venture constitutes a business. For a transaction involving assets
that do not constitute a business, a gain or loss resulting from the
transaction is recognised in the investor's profit or loss only to the
extent of the unrelated investor's interest in that associate or joint
venture. The amendments are to be applied prospectively. The
previous mandatory effective date of amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28 (2011) was removed by the HKICPA in January 2016
and a new mandatory effective date will be determined after the
completion of a broader review of accounting for associates and joint
ventures. However, the amendments are available for adoption now.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 provide a new definition of
material. The new definition states that information is material if
omitting, misstating or obscuring it could reasonably be expected
to influence decisions that the primary users of general purpose
financial statements make on the basis of those financial statements.
The amendments clarify that materiality will depend on the nature or
magnitude of information. A misstatement of information is material
if it could reasonably be expected to influence decisions made by
the primary users. The Group expects to adopt the amendments
prospectively from 1 January 2020. The amendments are not
expected to have any significant impact on the Group's financial
statements.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Investments in joint ventures

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net
assets of the joint venture. Joint control is the contractually agreed
sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only when
decisions about the relevant activities require the unanimous
consent of the parties sharing control.

The Group's investment in a joint venture is stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at the Group's share
of net assets under the equity method of accounting, less any
impairment losses. Adjustments are made to bring into line any
dissimilar accounting policies that any exists.

The Group's share of the post-acquisition results and other
comprehensive income of a joint venture is included in the
consolidated income statement and consolidated other
comprehensive income, respectively. In addition, when there has
been a change recognised directly in the equity of the joint venture,
the Group recognises its share of any changes, when applicable, in
the consolidated statement of changes in equity. Unrealised gains
and losses resulting from transactions between the Group and its
joint venture is eliminated to the extent of the Group's investments
in the joint venture, except where unrealised losses provide evidence
of an impairment of the assets transferred. Goodwill arising from
the acquisition of joint venture is included as part of the Group's
investment in a joint venture.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint
venture or vice versa, the retained interest is not remeasured.
Instead, the investment continues to be accounted for under the
equity method. In all other cases, upon loss of significant influence
over the associate or joint control over the joint venture, the Group
measures and recognises any retained investment at its fair value.
Any difference between the carrying amount of the associate or joint
venture upon loss of significant influence or joint control and the
fair value of the retained investment and proceeds from disposal is
recognised in profit or loss.
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2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
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(Continued)
Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the acquisition
date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition date fair values of
assets transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group to
the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued
by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. For each
business combination, the Group elects whether to measure the
non-controlling interests in the acquiree that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of net
assets in the events of liquidation at fair value or at the proportionate
share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other components
of non-controlling interests are measured at fair value. Acquisition-
related costs are expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets
and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and designation
in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances
and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes
the separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts of the
acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously held
equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair value and any
resulting gain or loss is recognised in the income statement.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability is measured at
fair value with changes in fair value recognised in the income
statement. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is
not remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the
aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount recognised
for non-controlling interests and any fair value of the Group's
previously held equity interests in the acquiree over the identifiable
net assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this
consideration and other items is lower than the fair value of the net
assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment, recognised in
the income statement as a gain on bargain purchase.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Business combinations and goodwill
(Continued)

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. For the purpose
of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination
is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s cash-
generating units that are expected to benefit from the synergies of
the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of
the Group are assigned to those units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit to which the goodwill relates. Where the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than the
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment
loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement
is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or
transfer the liability takes place either in the principal market for the
asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal or the
most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group. The
fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions
that market participants would use when pricing the asset or
liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best
interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account
a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using
the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.
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(Continued)
Fair value measurement (Continued)

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure
fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed
in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value
hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities
Level 2 - based on valuation techniques for which the

lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is observable, either directly or
indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of
each reporting period.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than stocks,
deferred tax assets and financial assets), the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of
the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use and its fair value less
costs of disposal, and is determined for an individual asset, unless the
asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent
of those from other assets or groups of assets, in which case the
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to
which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an
asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. An
impairment loss is charged to the income statement in the period
in which it arises in those expense categories consistent with the
function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to
whether there is an indication that previously recognised impairment
losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such an
indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously
recognised impairment loss of an asset is reversed only if there has
been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying
amount that would have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to the
income statement in the period in which it arises.
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2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@)

or

the party is a person or a close member of that person’s family
and that person

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is @ member of the key management personnel of the
Group or of a parent of the Group;

the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of
the other entity);

(i) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same
third party;

(iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group;

(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity; and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services to
the Group or to the parent of the Group.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)
Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of
property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and
any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment
have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is
normally charged to the income statement in the period in which it
is incurred. Where significant parts of property, plant and equipment
are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises such
parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates
them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the
cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual
value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used for
this purpose are as follows:

20% to 33.33%

20% to 33.33%

Over the shorter of

the lease terms and 33.33%

Motor vehicles and other equipment
Furniture and fixtures
Leasehold improvements

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a reasonable
basis among the parts and each part is depreciated separately.
Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation method are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial year
end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant
part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any
gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised in the income
statement in the year the asset is derecognised is the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
relevant asset.
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(Continued)
Leases (applicable from 1 January 2019)

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or
contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period
of time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach
for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments
and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying
assets.

(@)  Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement date
of the lease (that is the date the underlying asset is available
for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost
of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities
recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments
made at or before the commencement date less any lease
incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease terms and the
estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

Buildings 2 to 18 years

(b)  Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement date
of the lease at the present value of lease payments to be
made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed
payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less any
lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that
depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be
paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also
include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably
certain to be exercised by the Group and payments of
penalties for termination of a lease, if the lease term reflects
the Group exercising the option to terminate. The variable
lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are
recognised as an expense in the period in which the event or
condition that triggers the payment occurs.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Leases (applicable from 1 January 2019)
(Continued)

Group as a lessee (Continued)

®)

(©

Lease liabilities (Continued)

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the
lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement
date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the
accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments
made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is
remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease
term, a change in lease payments (e.g, a change to future
lease payments resulting from a change in an index or rate)
or a change in assessment of an option to purchase the
underlying asset.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption
to its short-term leases (that is those leases that have a lease
term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and
do not contain a purchase option).

When the Group enters into a lease in respect of a low-value
asset, the Group decides whether to capitalise the lease on a
lease-by-lease basis.

Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis
over the lease term.
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HOP HING GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

(Continued)

Operating leases (applicable before 1 January
2019)

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of
assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating leases.
Where the Group is the lessor, assets leased by the Group under
operating leases are included in non-current assets, and rentals
receivable under the operating leases are credited to the income
statement on the straight-line basis over the lease terms. Where the
Group is the lessee, rentals payable under operating leases net of
any incentives received from the lessor are charged to the income
statement on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recogn Nition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently
measured at amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive
income, and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends
on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics and the
Group's business model for managing them. With the exception
of trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or for which the Group has applied the practical
expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing
component, the Group initially measures a financial asset at its fair
value, plus in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not contain
a significant financing component or for which the Group has
applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction price
determined under HKFRS 15 in accordance with the policies set out
for “Revenue recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at
amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income, it
needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest (“SPPI") on the principal amount outstanding. Financial
assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified and measured at
fair value through profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (Continued)

The Group's business model for managing financial assets refers to
how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash flows.
The business model determines whether cash flows will result from
collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both.
Financial assets classified and measured at amortised cost are held
within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets in
order to collect contractual cash flows, while financial assets classified
and measured at fair value through other comprehensive income are
held within a business model with the objective of both holding to
collect contractual cash flows and selling. Financial assets which are
not held within the aforementioned business models are classified
and measured at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised
on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group commits to
purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the period generally established by regulation or convention
in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using
the effective interest method and are subject to impairment. Gains
and losses are recognised in the income statement when the asset is
derecognised, modified or impaired.
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(Continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income (debt instruments)

For debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive
income, interest income, foreign exchange revaluation and
impairment losses or reversals are recognised in the income
statement and computed in the same manner as for financial assets
measured at amortised cost. The remaining fair value changes are
recognised in other comprehensive income. Upon derecognition,
the cumulative fair value change recognised in other comprehensive
income is recycled to the income statement.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the
statement of financial position at fair value with net changes in fair
value recognised in the income statement.

This category includes derivative instruments and equity investments
which the Group had not irrevocably elected to classify at fair
value through other comprehensive income. Dividends on equity
investments classified as financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss are also recognised as other income in the income statement
when the right of payment has been established, it is probable that
the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the
Group and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or
part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised
(i.e. removed from the Group's consolidated statement of financial
position) when:

the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from
the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received
cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under
a "pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group
has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)
Derecognition of financial assets (Continued)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass— through arrangement, it
evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risk and rewards of
ownership of the asset. When it has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred
control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise the transferred
asset to the extent of the Group's continuing involvement. In that
case, the Group also recognises an associated liability. The transferred
asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects
the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that
the Group could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses
("ECLs") ECLs for all debt instruments not held at fair value through
profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all
the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at an
approximation of the original effective interest rate. The expected
cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of collateral held or
other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which
there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from
default events that are possible within the next 12 months (a
12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss
allowance is required for credit losses expected over the remaining
life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a
lifetime ECL).
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(Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
General approach (Continued)

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit risk
on a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition. When making the assessment, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition and considers
reasonable and supportable information that is available without
undue cost or effort, including historical and forward-looking
information.

For debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income, the Group applies the low credit risk simplification. At each
reporting date, the Group evaluates whether the debt investments
are considered to have low credit risk using all reasonable and
supportable information that is available without undue cost or
effort. In making that evaluation, the Group reassesses the external
credit ratings of the debt investments. In addition, the Group
considers that there has been a significant increase in credit risk
when contractual payments are more than 30 days past due.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual
payments are 90 days past due. However, in certain cases, the Group
may also consider a financial asset to be in default when internal or
external information indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive
the outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into
account any credit enhancements held by the Group. A financial
asset is written off when there is no reasonable expectation of
recovering the contractual cash flows.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
General approach (Continued)

Debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income and financial assets at amortised cost are subject to
impairment under the general approach and they are classified

within the following stages for measurement of ECLs except for trade
receivables which apply the simplified approach as detailed below.

Stage 1 - Financial instruments for which credit risk has not
increased significantly since initial recognition and
for which the loss allowance is measured at an
amount equal to 12-month ECLs

Stage 2 - Financial instruments for which credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition but
that are not credit-impaired financial assets and for
which the loss allowance is measured at an amount
equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 — Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the
reporting date (but that are not purchased or
originated credit-impaired) and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs

Simplified approach
For accounts receivable that do not contain a significant financing
component or when the Group applies the practical expedient of
not adjusting the effect of a significant financing component, the
Group applies the simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under
the simplified approach, the Group does not track changes in credit
risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs
at each reporting date. The Group has established a provision matrix
that is based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic
environment.
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(Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Simplified approach (Continued)

For accounts receivable that contain a significant financing
component and lease receivables, the Group chooses as its
accounting policy to adopt the simplified approach in calculating
ECLs with policies as described above.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as loans and
borrowings and payables.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in
the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include accounts payable, other
payables, accrued charges and interest— bearing bank loans.

Subsequent measurement

Financial liabilities at amortised costs

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
rate method unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in
the income statement when the liabilities are derecognised as well as
through the effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is
included in finance costs in the income statement.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities
(Continued)

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability
and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference between the
respective carrying amounts is recognised in the income statement.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount
is reported in the statement of financial position if there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is
an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle
the liabilities simultaneously.

Shares held under share award scheme

Own equity instruments which are reacquired or issued to the
trustee of the Company’s share award scheme and held by the Group
(treasury shares) are recognised directly in equity at cost. No gain
or loss is recognised in the income statement on the purchase, sale,
issue or cancellation of the Group's own equity instruments.

Stocks

Stocks are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost
is determined on the weighted average basis. Net realisable value
is based on estimated selling prices less any estimated costs to be
incurred to completion and disposal.
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(Continued)
Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating
to items recognised outside the income statement is recognised
outside the income statement, either in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period, taking
into consideration interpretations and practices prevailing in the
countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of the reporting period between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial
reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not
a business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;
and

in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, when the timing of the reversal
of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.



25 TESHHEBE (&)

Frig®t (&)

PRA AR E A (£ 258 - REIRHIRE R ST
MIARBARBEREE IRIR/ELEHRER
7 o A] B BB FERR B i M) K 5 AT HURUET By 1 2
B ARATBREE 2 RBARARL LA
RHEER HERSELEHRREE #E
BRERSI :

AR HER AR S (FERFEBAHF) F
ZEBENXBEMESA R AR TR
%%EZLLT)EEIE%“F MABR ZHET
R &R E S5 M 28 SR s ) 2K 8
Bk

REBMBARREMELE ZAIHIRE
RUEEEMs ECHBEEERER
HEERAIBR 2K AT gERE - mA
EARRDOEN AABHEEREER
B & T IARERR

BIETHIRE B 2 FRE(EN SHE R & R -
WHRZE B A] BE B 2 58 AR B0 A A BA D
BB RO TR EERAEERL -
*ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁé%ﬁﬁﬁ%%%éﬁ'ﬁ
FJBEE B 5 M8 SR A4 A P LA H10RR P A 3 BB
{%%W@Z LETRIRE R T IARER -

FIERIBEE R BB UTERE AR EEZIR K
BEBEHMZHETE AR RE IR
Eﬁﬁ%iﬁﬁzﬂﬁ%ﬁ%% (RFE) BE%E-

Rl 5 ER R i 5

Notes to Financial Statements

2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)
Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which
the deductible temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred
tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or
the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of each reporting
period.
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(Continued)
Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and only if
the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority
on either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities which
intend either to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis,
or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each
future period in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities
or assets are expected to be settled or recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there is
reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attaching
conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an
expense item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis over
the periods that the costs, which it is intended to compensate, are
expensed.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control
of goods or services is transferred to the customers at an amount
that reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount,
the amount of consideration is estimated to which the Group will
be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods or services to
the customer. The variable consideration is estimated at contract
inception and constrained until it is highly probable that a significant
revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised
will not occur when the associated uncertainty with the variable
consideration is subsequently resolved.
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(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

When the contract contains a financing component which provides
the customer with a significant benefit of financing the transfer
of goods or services to the customer for more than one year,
revenue is measured at the present value of the amount receivable,
discounted using the discount rate that would be reflected in a
separate financing transaction between the Group and the customer
at contract inception. When the contract contains a financing
component which provides the Group a significant financial benefit
for more than one year, revenue recognised under the contract
includes the interest expense accreted on the contract liability
under the effective interest method. For a contract where the period
between the payment by the customer and the transfer of the
promised goods or services is one year or less, the transaction price
is not adjusted for the effects of a significant financing component,
using the practical expedient in HKFRS 15.

Sale from QSR business
Revenue from the operation of QSR business is recognised at the
point in time when the products are delivered to the customers.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of the financial
instrument or a shorter period, when appropriate, to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholder’s right to
receive payment has been established, it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the
Group and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.
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(Continued)
Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is made or
a payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are
recognised as revenue when the Group performs under the
contract (i.e, transfers control of the related goods or services to the
customer).

Employee benefits

The Company operates a share option scheme and a share award
scheme for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to
eligible participants who contribute to the success of the Group's
operations. Employees (including directors) of the Group receive
remuneration in the form of share-based payments, whereby
employees render services as consideration for equity instruments
("equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees is measured
by reference to the fair value at the date at which they are granted.
The fair value is determined by an external valuer using an
appropriate pricing model, further details of which are given in notes
25 and 26 to the financial statements.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in employee
benefit expense, together with a corresponding increase in equity,
over the period in which the performance and/or service conditions
are fulfilled. The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled
transactions at the end of each reporting period until the vesting
date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired and
the Group's best estimate of the number of equity instruments that
will ultimately vest. The charge or credit to the income statement
for a period represents the movement in the cumulative expense
recognised as at the beginning and end of that period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken into
account when determining the grant date fair value of awards, but
the likelihood of the conditions being met is assessed as part of the
Group's best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will
ultimately vest. Market performance conditions are reflected within
the grant date fair value. Any other conditions attached to an award,
but without an associated service requirement, are considered to
be non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are reflected in
the fair value of an award and lead to an immediate expensing of an
award unless there are also service and/or performance conditions.
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2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Employee benefits (Continued)

Share-based payments (Continued)

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market
performance and/or service conditions have not been met, no
expense is recognised. Where awards include a market or non-
vesting condition, the transactions are treated as vesting irrespective
of whether the market or non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided
that all other performance and/or service conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a
minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not been
modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In addition, an
expense is recognised for any modification that increases the total
fair value of the share-based payments, or is otherwise beneficial to
the employee as measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it
had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet
recognised for the award is recognised immediately. This includes
any award where non-vesting conditions within the control of
either the Group or the employee are not met. However, if a new
award is substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated as a
replacement award on the date that it is granted, the cancelled and
new awards are treated as if they were a modification of the original
award, as described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options and share awards is
reflected as additional share dilution in the computation of earnings
per share.
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(Continued)

Employee benefits (Continued)

Paid leave carried forward

The Group provides paid annual leave to its employees under their
employment contracts on a calendar year basis. Under certain
circumstances, such leave which remains untaken as at the end of
the reporting period is permitted to be carried forward and utilised
by the respective employees in the following year. An accrual is made
at the end of the reporting period for the expected future cost of
such paid leave earned during the year by the employees and carried
forward.

Retirement benefit schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution retirement benefit
scheme, namely, the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”), for those employees who are eligible to participate.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of the employees’
salaries and are charged to the income statement as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF scheme. The assets
of the MPF scheme are held separately from those of the Group in
independently administered funds. The employer contributions vest
fully with the employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in
Mainland China are required to participate in a pension scheme
operated by the local municipal government. These subsidiaries are
required to contribute a certain percentage of their payroll costs to
the pension scheme. The contributions are charged to the income
statement as they become payable in accordance with the rules of
the pension scheme.
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2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)
Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits,
and short-term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally within three
months when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the Group's cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial position,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks,
including term deposits, which are not restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable
that a future outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised
for a provision is the present value at the end of the reporting period
of the future expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation. The increase in the discounted present value amount
arising from the passage of time is included in finance costs in the
income statement.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in RMB, while the
Company's functional currency is HKS. Each entity in the Group
determines its own functional currency and items included in
the financial statements of each entity are measured using that
functional currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by the
entities in the Group are initially recorded using their respective
functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are translated at the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at
the end of the reporting period. Differences arising on settlement
or translation of monetary items are recognised in the income
statement.
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(Continued)
Foreign currencies (Continued)

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates
of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value
in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss arising on
translation of a non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated
in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value
of the item (i.e, translation difference on the item whose fair value
gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or the
income statement is also recognised in other comprehensive income
or the income statement, respectively).

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the related
asset, expense or income on the derecognition of a non-monetary
asset or non-monetary liability relating to an advance consideration,
the date of initial transaction is the date on which the Group initially
recognises the non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising
from the advance consideration. If there are multiple payments or
receipts in advance, the Group determines the transaction date for
each payment or receipt of the advance consideration.

The functional currencies of the Company and certain subsidiaries
operating outside Mainland China are currencies other than RMB. As
at the end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these
entities are translated into RMB at the exchange rates prevailing at
the end of the reporting period and their income statements are
translated into RMB at the weighted average exchange rates for the
year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
fluctuation reserve. On disposal of an operation outside Mainland
China, the component of other comprehensive income relating to
that particular operation is recognised in the income statement.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the
cash flows of the Company and its subsidiaries operating outside
Mainland China are translated into RMB at the exchange rates ruling
at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of
the Company and its subsidiaries operating outside Mainland China
which arise throughout the year are translated into RMB at the
weighted average exchange rates for the year.
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Notes to Financial Statements

Significant Accounting Judgements and
Estimates

The preparation of the Group's financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities, and their accompanying disclosure, and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities
affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from those
involving estimations, which have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the financial statements:
Impairment of assets

In determining whether an asset is impaired or whether the event
previously causing the impairment no longer exists, the Group has
to exercise judgement in the area of asset impairment, particularly
in assessing: (1) whether an event has occurred that may affect
the asset value, or such an event affecting the asset value has not
been in existence; (2) whether the carrying value of an asset can be
supported by the net present value of future cash flows, which are
estimated based upon the continued use of the asset; and (3) the
appropriate key assumptions to be applied in preparing cash flow
projections are discounted using an appropriate rate. Changing
the assumptions selected by management to determine the level
of impairment, including the discount rates or the growth rate
assumptions in cash flow projections, could have a material effect on
the net present value used in the impairment test.
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Significant Accounting Judgements and
Estimates (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumption concerning the future and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are
described below.

Useful lives and residual values of items of property, plant
and equipment

In determining the useful lives and residual values of items of
property, plant and equipment, the Group has to consider various
factors, such as obsolescence arising from changes or improvements
in the production and provision of services, or from a change in
the market demand for the product or service output of the asset,
expected usage of the asset, expected physical wear and tear, care
and maintenance of the asset, and legal or similar limits on the use of
the asset. The estimation of the useful life of the asset is based on the
experience of the Group with similar assets that are used in a similar
way. Additional depreciation is made if the estimated useful lives
and/or residual values of items of property, plant and equipment are
shorter than previous estimation. Useful lives and residual values are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period based on changes in
circumstances.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for deductible temporary
differences and unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences and unused tax losses can be utilised.
Significant management judgement is required to determine the
amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon
the likely timing and level of future taxable profits together with
future tax planning strategies. Details of the deferred tax assets are
contained in note 19 to the financial statements.
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Notes to Financial Statements

Significant Accounting Judgements and
Estimates (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Provision for slow-moving stocks and net realisable value of
stocks

Management reviews the ageing analysis of stocks of the Group
at the end of each reporting period, and make provisions for slow-
moving stock items if needed. Net realisable value of stocks is
the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less
estimated selling expenses. These estimates are based on the current
market condition and the historical experience of selling products
of a similar nature. Management reassesses these estimates at each
reporting date. The carrying amount of stocks at 31 December 2019
was RMB146,536,000 (2018: RMB95,483,000). Further details are
contained in note 16 to the financial statements.

Valuation of share options

The fair value of options granted under the share option scheme
is determined using the binomial model. The significant inputs in
determining the fair values include the weighted average share
price at the grant date, exercise price, risk-free interest rate, dividend
yield, expected volatility, expected life of options, and exit rate of
directors and staff. Further details are given in note 25 to the financial
statements.

Leases — Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in a
lease, and therefore, it uses an incremental borrowing rate (“IBR") to
measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that the Group
would have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a similar
security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value
to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment. The
IBR therefore reflects what the Group “would have to pay’, which
requires estimation when no observable rates are available (such as
for subsidiaries that do not enter into financing transactions) or when
it needs to be adjusted to reflect the terms and conditions of the
lease (for example, when leases are not in the subsidiary’s functional
currency). The Group estimates the IBR using observable inputs (such
as market interest rates) when available and is required to make
certain entity-specific estimates (such as the subsidiary’s stand-alone
credit rating).

—E-hEER
Annual Report 2019

125



126

871 5 ¥R R it 5

Notes to Financial Statements

4.

RETHER 4. Operating Segment Information

AEEZFELRENHARE ([RE])E The Group's primary operating segment is quick service restaurants
o lboh REFEBHWARIEREEE (T ("QSR") business. In addition, the QSR business’ revenue and non-
BIEEEREEE) X EHEBENE —HE -5 current assets, other than deferred tax assets, are predominantly

B o (R 1 3 S 51 St [ 3 AT o

attributable to a single geographical region, which is PRC. Therefore,
no analysis by geographical region is presented.

= 5. TURNOVER
EERE DT An analysis of turnover is as follows:
b
—E-NEF —E-N\F
2019 2018
ARETx ARET T
RMB’000 RMB'000
(#&&E75)
(Restated)
BEE-EFEN Turnover - revenue from contracts
U &5 with customers
RE—BHEEER Sale of products, at a point in time 2,102,814 2,003,617
EEEHWE Revenue from contracts with customers
() D IFamEH ()  Disaggregated revenue information
—E-NEF —E—)N\F
2019 2018
ARET ARET T
RMB’000 RMB'000
(&&=5)
(Restated)
Y Brands
HHX Yoshinoya 1,782,062 1,703,757
KEEF Dairy Queen 230,809 210,802
EHAh Others 89,943 89,058
2,102,814 2,003,617
@ iE Geographical markets
ER—R=E-NILE MR Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei Province
Metropolitan Region 1,568,417 1,485,118
EmpEEdb i@ (MizE) Other northern areas of China (note) 534,397 518,499
2,102,814 2,003,617

Wit BREE EMRERETIERARS

SEEEZERERAR

HOP HING GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

Note: Including Liaoning, Jilin and Heilongjiang provinces and Inner
Mongolia
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5. B¥HE (&) 5. TURNOVER (Continued)
EFENWE (&) Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)
HERY ] (i) Performance obligations
HE Ron Sale of goods
AEBEFEBEHEM LIRS TEYEE The Group sells goods directly to customers via stores and
ERNERHEER BAEARERR online food ordering platforms. The performance obligation
NERREK RHIEREREEER is satisfied when the products are delivered to the customers.
e 37 BN EIER 2 A-F o A 5038 B LA ZR & sk A Payment of a transaction price is due immediately when a
RAELENRTEaEE- customer purchases the goods. The payment is usually settled
in cash or using online payment platforms.
—E-AE —E-N\F
2019 2018
ARBTR ARETF T
RMB’000 RMB'000
(5&&E75)
(Restated)
H W A R Wz 558 Other income and gains, net
F =g A Interest income 5,960 7,181
EMeomEEQFERE Fair value gain on other financial assets 8,851 5,633
bE 5 =555 Foreign exchange differences, net (5,020) (7,650)
faE Compensation 212 2,328
BT B & Government grants* 3,358 4,585
Hth Others 4,337 1818
17,698 13,895

* BT 8 B & 46 o AN 5= (B 7 B A 7T O
SEI5IE B TT BUTUCER B R B o TOFE
I # B & 8 AL R E K Y
fif o

Government grants represent the subsidies received from the
local government for the Group's business activities carried out
locally. There were no unfulfilled conditions during the year in
which they were recognised.

—E-hEER
Annual Report 2019

127



871 5 ¥R R it 5

Notes to Financial Statements

6. H&ERA
AREZEERFIBNR GIA) -

6. Profit From Operating Activities

The Group's profit from operating activities is arrived at after

charging/(crediting):
—E-NF —E—)\F
2019 2018
AR¥Tx AREF T
RMB’000 RMB'000
(ge&E7)
(Restated)
ME H AR F AR Foreign exchange differences, net 5,020 7,650
EEGFEZEEKA Direct cost of stocks sold* 715,113 672,384
HE  MEME  BE R&E Loss on disposal/write-off of items of property,
HE ZEEFE plant and equipment, net 10,308 8,005
EERARAX Employee benefit expenses
(BREESEMHE) (including directors’ emoluments):
T& K& Wages and salaries 390,516 364,080
RIS T8I Pension scheme contributions** 90,621 89,908
LARR #E 45 8 2 DARR A7 S 1+ Equity-settled share-based payments 6,431 6,883
487,568 460,871
Y BEREETE Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 91,977 83,683
FREEENE Depreciation of right-of-use assets 196,061 =
Y BWERZEEE 2 Impairment/(write-back of impairment) of
E, CRER D) items of property, plant and equipment (1,031) 4,985
ERREEERE Impairment of right-of-use assets 12,233 -
KERERTHEENK: Lease payments under operating leases:
—xEHEEK — Minimum lease payments - 234,205
—sAHE — Contingent rents - 33,771
Rt AHEEETEN Lease payments not included in the measurement
MERRK of lease liabilities 35,388 =
RIEFRE W Gain on termination of leases (3,454) =
2% EXAD B & Auditor's remuneration 2,628 2,237
N EWEFE Fair value gain, net
—FEiRERRATE — investments at fair value through
ARZIEE profit or loss (8,851) (5,633)
B it - Notes:
* EEGEZEEXNAE G ALEBERAN @ Direct cost of stocks sold is included in “Cost of sales” in the
[SHERAR] o consolidated income statement.
»*  RIZTFE-NFTZA=+—H AEBELE * At 31 December 2019, the Group had no forfeited contributions

VR YRS AT A DURE R 2R F RO R R K &
SEER(ZE—NF &) -

available to reduce its future contributions to the pension schemes in
future years (2018: Nil).

128 ER&EEEZERERAF
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B & B Z< 7. Finance Costs
BERARSHTAT - An analysis of finance costs is as follows:
—2-hE —TNF
2019 2018
ARETR AREF T
RMB’000 RMB'000
(&&:5)
(Restated)
IRITERF B Interest on bank loans - 44
RITHMEER R HA Bank financing charges and others 526 577
HEAGEHE Interest on lease liabilities 40,997 -
41,523 621
BEERTHREAEMS 8. Directors’ and Chief Executive’s

RAFERERE ETRR - BB RBRDIF383(1)
@) OROERAR (KBEEENRER)
GEPIFE2R W E L EFERITHRERM ST

Emoluments

Directors’ and chief executive's emoluments for the year, disclosed
pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, are
as follows:

ZE-NE
2019
WL/
¥ BER HRE HRELEL EihE
He  ENRE  ABRL LRAXA  HEER  WeHE

Salaries, Discretionary/

allowances  performance Equity-settled Pension
and benefits related  share-based scheme Total
Fees inkind bonuses payment  contributions remuneration

ARBTR  ARRTR ARMTR ARMTR ARETR AR®TR
RMB'000  RMB000  RMBOOO  RMB0O0  RMB000  RMB'000

@ BYFHTES
AlfEfR
LER
Atk

mitE

b) #7ES
AR
BEX

o #4f7ge
HEs

(@) Independent non-executive directors
Seto Gin Chung, John

Sz Tsai To, Robert

Shek Lai Him, Abraham

Wan Sai Cheang, Joseph

(b) Executive directors
Hung Ming Kei, Marvin

Wong Kwok Ying

(c) Non-executive director
Lam Fung Ming, Tammy

291 - - (61) - 230
2143 - - (61) - 182
194 - - (61) - 133
2143 - - (61) - 182
97 - - (244) - 727
1,764 2,656 - - - 4,420
- 1,507 - (323) 121 1,305
1,764 4,163 - (303 121 5725
26 - - - - 26
—E-hEER
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8. EERTTHARME (&)

8. Directors’ and Chief Executive’s
Emoluments (Continued)

ZE-N\E(8E5))
2018 (Restated)
Mig/
e 2R HBER NRELE &ike
we  ENFE  ASTA NMRGIE  HERR  Heem

Salaries,  Discretionary/

allowances  performance  Equity-settled Pension
and benefits related  share-based scheme Total
Fees in kind bonuses payment  contributions  remuneration

ARETT ARETR ARMTR ARETR ARETR ARETR
RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOD

(a) BUFHTEES (a) Independent non-executive directors
Gy Seto Gin Chung, John 79 - - %1 - 540
L& SzeTsai To, Robert 32 - - 21 - 493
Rigd Shek Lai Him, Abraham 186 - - 21 - “7
mttE Wan Sai Cheong, Joseph 3 - - 21 - 493
929 - - 1044 - 1973
(b) HTES (b) Executive directors
AR Hung Ming Kei, Marvin 1688 2713 - - - 4401
BRI Wong Kwok Ying - 1,602 - (267) 128 1463
1,688 4315 - (267) 128 5364
(0 ¥47ES (c) Non-executive director
HHIEA Lam Fung Ming, Tammy 25 - - - - 25

FAMBEESFHITRAL B RELR TR
REAME 22

R-F-N\F ETEFERBERE £
AHBEENMIERERM TS - ZFERE AT
BEDRFEBHAERSERER  WRER L A
EE Mt AR 2 BAMEHA LW
BLESRITHRAEHMEA-

130 SEEEZERERAR
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There was no arrangement under which a director or the chief
executive waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the
year.

In 2018, certain directors were granted share options, further details
of which are set out in note 25 to the financial statements. The fair
value of such options, which is being recognised in the income
statement over the vesting period, was determined as at the date
of grant and the amounts included in the financial statements are
included in the above directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration
disclosures.
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9. Five Highest Paid Employees

The aggregate emoluments of the five highest paid employees,
including two (2018: two) directors whose emoluments are set out in
note 8 above, for the year are as follows:

—E-hE —E—)\F

2019 2018

ARETx ARETIT

RMB’000 RMB'000

(e&E7)

(Restated)

e 2 REMME Salaries, allowances and other emoluments 9,710 8,799
BB IEAL B R IR BMRTEAT Discretionary/performance related bonuses 1,319 2,647
LARR #E 45 & 2 DARR 19 2 A+ Equity-settled share-based payments (648) (700)
RIREFTEIE R Pension scheme contributions 405 411
10,786 11,157

LM omaT - The above emoluments are analysed as follows:
EE8E
Number of employees

—E-NF —E-N\F

2019 2018

75 #1,000,001 7T 2= 75 #£1,500,0007T HK$1,000,001 to HK$ 1,500,000 1 =
751,500,001 7T £ 7% #£2,000,0007T HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 2 2
75 #2,000,001 7T 2 7% #£2,500,0007T HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 1 2
7B &2 500,001 7T 2 78 #3,000,0007T HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 - =
7B 53 000,001 7T £ 78 #3,500,0007T HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 - =
7B 53 500,001 7T £ 78 #4,000,0007T HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 - =
75 #£4,000,001 7T 2= 75 #4,500,0007T HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000 - =
75 #4,500,001 7T £ 7% #5,000,0007T HK$4,500,001 to HK$5,000,000 - -

75 #5.000,001 7T 2 7% #5,500,0007T HK$5,000,001 to HKS$5,500,000 1 1
5 5

HE_ZT—)/\F+_A=+—HLFE B3}k
BEENETREARNAE G FNEEEF
K& T & 8 ph 1A 2 & B IR 4 AR 755 1 2 4% BB AR
- BEFBERM SRR FSANEEE
Ble ZEBBREZ AFEIAR L BEETE
EREBHANERSRTER MNAFERE
FHRERSENzeHBEFA LM AEZRS
EEMESHIBEEERA-

During the year ended 31 December 2018, certain five highest paid
employees who were neither directors nor chief executives were
granted share options in respect of their services to the Group,
further details of which are included in the disclosures in note 25
to the financial statements. The fair values of such options, which
have been recognised in the income statement over the vesting
period, were determined as at the date of grant and the amounts
included in the financial statements for the current year have been
included in the above disclosure of the five highest paid employees’
remuneration.
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10. FRrB8 8

BEMNEHDRBEFALEEBEELE ZGFTE
RBUBAIETR165% (ZF—/)\F :165% ) {E
HH B o EL bt [ FE FR B s A1) 2 R IR T IR A
ENSEER IR 2 BATETHE -

AEERPENMELE 2 B RARFRRZS
X ) B RR A0 4 ) B9 259480 4 R B (b P S AR ©
HP—REFREXXZGHHBARR -
FR-ZF-N\FEERRLRBEREEMREHHR
ESOER

AEEMEHIENEZARTOWT -

10. Income Tax

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2018:
16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong
during the year. Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere have been
calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in the jurisdictions in which
the Group operates.

The PRC corporate income tax rate for the Group's subsidiaries
operating in Mainland China during the year was 25% on their
taxable profits. One of the subsidiaries engaged in agricultural
business was entitled to exemption from the standard income tax
rate in 2019 and 2018.

The major components of the income tax expense for the year are as

follows:

—E-NF —E—)\F
2019 2018
ARBTR AREF T
RMB’000 RMB'000
(g&&E5)
(Restated)
BER— &% Current — Hong Kong
REFZ M Charge for the year 1,877 435
NAFERETIR Underprovision/(overprovision) in prior years
(ERFERE) (546) 152
1,331 587
RIVER — H b 3 [= Current — Elsewhere
RE M Charge for the year 46,638 48,847
NEFEERETR/ Underprovision/(overprovision) in prior years
(ERFERE) 1,538 678)
48,176 48,169
EIERIIE (HfaE19) Deferred (note 19) (1,870) (169)
NEFRBI S L 4R%E Total income tax charge for the year 47,637 48587

132 SEEEZERERAR
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10. Income Tax (Continued)

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before
tax at the statutory rates, ranging from 16.5% to 25%, for the
countries/jurisdictions in which the Company and the majority of its

HBEZEEERNAT subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax expense at the effective tax rate
is as follows:
—EB-hF —E-)N\F
2019 2018
ARBTR ARETF T
RMB’000 RMB'000
(& =351)
(Restated)
B 5 AT A Profit before tax 151,747 152,067
RERANEGFTE 2 MIE Tax at the applicable tax rate 25,038 25,091
Htm e AR TRARE 228 Effect of different tax rates in other jurisdiction 12,169 12,626
BRI UA Income not subject to tax (203) (701)
DT HRERIE 2 FZ Expenses not deductible for tax 4,810 4,765
NAEFERETRE, (BEEEME)  Underprovision/(overprovision) in respect of
prior years 992 (526)
%TKE = B fff B A A Effect of withholding tax on the distributable
7k 4 F TR ?D Mews profits of the Group's PRC subsidiaries 3,643 6,224
ﬂiﬁﬁ R EE Tax losses not recognised 1,188 1,296
BEAAREREIAESE Unrecognised tax losses utilised - (188)
BRASEERBERAE ZBIAX M Tax charge at the Group's effective rate 47,637 48,587
RE 11. Dividends
—E-hEF —E-N\F
2019 2018
AR®BTR AREF T
RMB’000 RMB'000
(&%)
(Restated)
RAFEAZ RS Dividends paid during the year:
ZE-N\FzRERKRE Final dividend for 2018
— R E BRI - HK0.61 cent (2017: HK0.83 cent)
ZE—LF:083%1) per ordinary share* 51,356 69,036
R REARR B Proposed final dividend:
T B AR0.2487 Il HK0.248 cent (2018: HK0.61 cent)
—E—N\F:061751l) per ordinary share 22,327 51,847

AREFHIR KA E W FAR B RRR EE
HQ%%EEKAE’J%/E % 3 B 705 R I 4 R R
B FE 1 R HIRY

* BE_Z-NAFR_ZE-N\F+_-_A=+—
BIEFERNZ-_E-N\FR_T—FFR
Hl BRI D BT E BN 2K S - N BT
REARBE R ZBBISEZEFRD

The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the approval
of the Company's shareholders at the forthcoming annual general
meeting. These financial statements do not reflect the proposed final
dividend payable.

* Final dividend for 2018 and 2017 paid during the years ended 31
December 2019 and 2018 represented the dividends paid for the
issued ordinary shares, excluding treasury shares held by the trustee
under the share award scheme.
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12. XRAREFEARLGERER

(@)

(b)

BREFEF

FREXRZRNTIREFAARR B IRE
BB AELERE R AR104,110000
T (ZE—NF: AR¥103,480,000
TI)RFREBETEBER 2 MEF
# %(9,749,007,486Hx (_ = —\F:
9,815,305,7450% ) 5T & + I 4% 58 B DA I Ak
$E%J§$/&Eﬂﬁ’aﬂ%ﬁéiﬁba+%ﬁﬁhﬁ9@
% {7 8% B 337,477,9940% ( — & — )\ F:
313,186,367/% ) °

BREEER
HE_Z—hLF+=-_A=+—H1
FE BRESRNDIBREFALRRD
AREFRBEARLGEZNAREK
104,110,000t (ZZE—\F: ARE
103,480,0007T ) & B 847 & 3@ % 2 Ik
- 15 £19,853,728, 801HX (ZZ2E—N\%F:

12. Earnings Per Share Attributable to Equity
Holders of the Company

(a)

(b)

Basic earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the
consolidated profit for the year attributable to equity holders
of the Company of RMB104,110,000 (2018: RMB103,480,000),
and the weighted average number of 9,749,007,486 (2018:
9,815,305,745) ordinary shares in issue during the year, as
adjusted to reflect the number of shares of 337,477,994 (2018:
313,186,867) held under the share award scheme of the
Company.

Diluted earnings per share

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the calculation of
diluted earnings per share is based on the consolidated profit
for the year attributable to equity holders of the Company of
RMB104,110,000 (2018: RMB103,480,000) and the weighted
average number of 9,853,728,801 (2018: 9,925,254,290)
ordinary shares in issue after adjusting for the effect of all

9,925,254,2900% ) 5T & Iﬁfﬁﬁﬁ/\/gﬁ dilutive potential ordinary shares of 104,721,315 (2018:
BEYEEBRI4721315K (ZF 109,948,545) calculated as follows:
— [\ 110994854508 ) T LAHE 51 &
FHRaT
—E-NF —N\F
2019 2018
AR® TR ARETT
RMB’000 RMB'000
(geE3)
(Restated)
RAGIRERE A Consolidated profit for the year attributable to
JE(R RF4RE i A equity holders of the Company 104,110 103,480
ROEE
Number of shares
B 12 Shares —ZE-h#F —N\F
2019 2018
RAUGTESRERREF 2 Weighted average number of ordinary
FAEEITEERINE TS shares in issue during the year used in
the basic earnings per share calculation 9,749,007,486 9,815,305,745
e 2 B — LB INAETIIE:  Effect of dilution — weighted average
number of ordinary shares:
P tn B2 &) Share awards 100,973,224 93,283,580
A N Share options 3,748,091 16,664,965
9,853,728,801 9,925,254,290

SEREEEZERARAR
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13. Property, Plant and Equipment

&RE-
HER BELER
Htpez HEMERE Ht
Motor Furniture,
vehicles fixtures
and other and leasehold
equipment improvements Total
ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
“Z-AF+ZA=1+—H 31December2019
PR Cost:
R-ZZE-NE—HA—H At 1 January 2019 (restated)
(fe5&751) 333,322 517,747 851,069
NE Additions 34,635 89,802 124,437
ek ¥ Disposals/write-off (29,781) (22,617) (52,398)
RS Exchange realignment 6 6 12
RZE-NF At 31 December 2019
+=-—A=+—H 338,182 584,938 923,120
REMERRE: Accumulated depreciation and impairment:
RZE—N$—A—A At 1 January 2019 (restated)
(RE75) 237,239 430,812 668,051
FEREE Provided during the year 26,230 65,747 91,977
HE s Disposals/write-off (25,729) (16,361) (42,090)
B Write-back of impairment - (1,031) (1,031)
BE 5 B Exchange realignment 5 5 10
RZZE—NEF At 31 December 2019
+=-A=+—H 237,745 479,172 716,917
RmEFE: Net book value;
NZZE-NE At 31 December 2019
+=-A=+—H 100,437 105,766 206,203
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13. ¥ -BERRXE (&) 13. Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued)
xE-
AER BEEREKX
Hofth 3% MEMEEE st
Motor Furniture,
vehicles fixtures
and other and leasehold
equipment improvements Total
ARETFT AREFT ARBTT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
(geE75) (ge=5) (fe5&751)
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated)

“Z—N\F+ZA=1+—H 31December2018

XA : Cost:
RZZE—-N\$—A—H At 1 January 2018 320,979 499673 820,652
NE Additions 37,733 64,155 101,888
& s Disposals/write-off (25,394) (46,062) (71,456)
[E N 2 Exchange realignment 4 (19) (15)
R-ZE—N\F At 31 December 2018
+-HA=+—"H 333322 517,747 851,069
ZETERRE: Accumulated depreciation and impairment:
RZE—N\$—H—H At 1 January 2018 23539 407,432 642,826
FNEE Provided during the year 22,841 60,842 83,683
HE Disposals/write-off (20,995) (42,456) (63451)
VR Provision for impairment = 4,985 4985
P& 5 R Exchange realignment ) 9 8
RZE—N\F At 31 December 2018
+-A=+—H 237,239 430,812 668,051
REFE: Net book value:
R-ZE—N\F At 31 December 2018
+-A=+—H 96,083 86,935 183,018
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14. Leases
The Group as a lessee

The Group has lease contracts for various items of office premises,
warehouses and stores used in its operations. Leases of office
premises, warehouses and stores generally have lease terms between
2 and 18 years. Generally, the Group is restricted from assigning and
subleasing the leased assets to persons outside the Group. Certain
lease contracts have terms which include extension and termination
options and variable lease payments.

@  Right-of-use assets
The carrying amount of the Group's right-of-use assets and the

BEINT movements during the year are as follows:
EF
Buildings
ARETT
RMB'000
RZE—NhFE—H—H At 1 January 2019 628,662
NE Additions 218,692
KIEHEE Termination of leases (12,980)
WERX Depreciation charge (196,061)
E Impairment (12,233)
RZZE-—hFE+ZA=+—H At 31 December 2019 626,080

REBEE—_T—NE+_A=t+—HIHF
fE R EEE AR 122330007018 K&
FREARENEHNEREEERE
ENMREREATKEEE R _T—NF
+-A=+—HmfEF AT REEEIR
B AN S%m B IR RS HOERE
BET-

b)) MHEEEFE
HEaERmERNENNESHNT :

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the impairment
loss of RMB12,233,000 represented the write-down of
the carrying amount of right-of-use assets for certain
underperforming stores to their recoverable amounts. The
estimated recoverable amounts as at 31 December 2019 were
determined based on their value in use amounts estimated by
using discount rate of 11.5%.

(b) Lease liabilities
The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the movements
during the year are as follows:

BF

Buildings

ARETF T

RMB'000

RZZE—-hFE—H—H At 1 January 2019 800,369

HE New leases 218,692
BKIEHEE Termination of leases (16,434)

F AR 2B Accretion of interest recognised during the year 40,997
(E:N Payments (254,572)

R-ZE-NFt+-A=1+—H At 31 December 2019 789,052
—E-NEFR
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14. HE (&) 14. Leases (Continued)
ZF%.?%E@HA (,.f,%i) The Group as a lessee (Continued)
b MHEBE (&) (b)  Lease liabilities (Continued)
HEA Tﬁ?‘ﬁﬁl@n Tﬁ UNNE The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is as follows:
—E-AE
2019
AR®ET R
RMB’000
DT RRERBRIE : Analysed into payable:
—&FR Within one year 185,977
FEF In the second year 152,190
FoEZERF (RDREEEMF) In the third to fifth years, inclusive 270,803
ﬁﬁi@£¢ Beyond five years 180,082
RZZ-NF+ZA=+—BZKREME Carrying amount at 31 December 2019 789,052
B R ENER D Less: current portion (185,977)
JERBNE D Non-current portion 603,075
€ RUBEREREEREZHAS (BKA) (€)  The expense/(income) recognised in the income statement in
e relation to leases are as follows:
—E-NEF
2019
ARET R
RMB’000
HEAERE Interest on lease liabilities 40,997
ERAREENEH Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets 196,061
EHRHEERX Expense relating to short-term leases 1,246
ATAHEA B ENATEESNRK Variable lease payments not included in the
measurement of lease liabilities 34,142
BRI E W a Gain on termination of leases (3,454)
Rz R R AR Total amount recognised in the income statement 268,992
() HMEZH L BEERYHIRET M 30 (c)  The total cash outflow for leases are disclosed in note 30 to the
5% o financial statements.
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15. AEEECERE 15. Investment in a Joint Venture
—2-hE T N\F
2019 2018
AR®T T AREF T
RMB'000 RMB'000
(&&E5)
(Restated)
DIRFEEE Share of net assets 8,556 9,820

AEBEECRZFHFBOAT:

£8 FEERFE HERREXER
Place of
Particulars of registration
Name capital held and business

Particulars of the Group's joint venture are as follows:

BEEELSL EEEHR

Percentage of

ownership Principal
interest activities

AR®I1020000 B/ hEAM,
RMB10,200,000 PRC/Mainland China

PR RERARAREERE -

TRINRAKEEELR 2 BRI L TNEKRA

51%  EEREE
Fast food restaurant
operation

The above investment is indirectly held by the Company.

The following table illustrates the financial information of the Group's

&R joint venture that is not individually material:
—E-NF —E—)\F
2019 2018
ARBTR ARETF T
RMB’000 RMB'000
(g&&E5)
(Restated)
DIEEEREARFER Share of the joint venture's loss for the year (1,264) (380)
REDHEEDCEELEEIBLREE  Share of the joint venture's total
comprehensive loss for the year (1,264) (380)
AEEREEDHE ZIHERMBMA(E Aggregate carrying amount of the Group's
investment in the joint venture 8,556 9,820
—E-NEFR
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16. & 16. Stocks

—B-nE  SE\F
2019 2018
ARET T AREF T
RMB'000 RMB'000
(&E7)
(Restated)
JREt Raw materials 127,230 80,174
SHFE M Consumables 19,306 15,309
146,536 95,483

17. EW BRI 17. Accounts Receivable
—E-NEF —E—)\F
2019 2018
ARBTR ARET T
RMB'000 RMB'000
(R&E7)
(Restated)
JE Y BR IR Accounts receivable 18,473 17,512
R E Less: impairment - =
18,473 17,512

AEEZREEMTBEURSETHE KK
BREXGBZRIRETIESRIWAAEE
Hl60 B M 2 745 K 8 £ F & AR 7% L 8 78 B9 3K
He MR RHEREEEEMELERN-

RBEL - REX S B HL MR EBRREER
ZEWERTAZ SRl D AT AN

The Group's QSR products are mainly sold on a cash basis. Accounts
receivable of the Group’s QSR business were mainly due from
shopping malls and internet platform service providers with credit
terms within 60 days. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by
senior management.

An ageing analysis of the accounts receivable as at the end of the
reporting period, based on the transaction date and net of loss

allowance, is as follows:

—E-NEF —E—N\EF

2019 2018

AR¥T T ARETIT

RMB’000 RMB'000

(&&=5)

(Restated)

MEAA Within 1 month 17,769 17,257
12218 A 1 to 2 months 704 255
18,473 17,512
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18.

FEWARIR (45)

AEEERATEMBHRELEAEIRMTEL
BT A RHBEHEEBERE  ZBER
AELAT A EURIA R A 2 TR M R A
R ERREEER  BURENZOEREE
AR e BBy E AEEEFEES
FEEERXEZEELEBRXLMAELE
HIELRE-R-_ZE-NF+_A=1+—8"
AREE G EWARIE 2 BB IR &M - 8T
ARERTIRBHAGEEBERE (ZF N\
FE)-

17.
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Notes to Financial Statements

Accounts Receivable (Continued)

The Group has applied the simplified approach to provide
impairment of ECLs prescribed by HKFRS 9, which permits the use
of the lifetime expected loss provision for all accounts receivable. To
measure the ECLs, accounts receivable have been grouped based on
shared credit risk characteristics and the days past due. The Group
considers the historical loss rate and adjusts for forward-looking
information in calculating the expected credit loss rate. As at 31
December 2019, the Group estimated that the expected loss rate of
accounts receivable was minimal and no ECL allowance (2018: Nil) in
respect of these balances was made.

FE {3 RRIE 18. Accounts Payable
RS EAAR - BIRFIEIE 2 B BRIE 2 BRER 75 An ageing analysis of the accounts payable as at the end of the
MR : reporting period, based on the payment due date, is as follows:
—E-NF —E—)\F
2019 2018
AR® TR ARETT
RMB’000 RMB'000
(g&E3)
(Restated)
BNER & 1~ 260 H Current and less than 60 days 111,215 104,784
HiEe0H Over 60 days 17,951 7,824
129,166 112,608

RENERBAANTE  — RN F7HEWRZE
EMAEE-

The accounts payable are non-interest-bearing and are normally
settled within credit terms of 7 to 90 days.
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19. IEFERHIE 19. Deferred Tax
FAZBEEMEGEREEZSHNT The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets during the year

were as follows:

EERIESE Deferred tax liabilities
EREEE SEEL) b
Right-of-use Withholding
assets taxes Total
ARBT T ARETT AR®TT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
R=ZE—N\$—H—H At 1 January 2018 (restated)
€<3-¢7)) - 20618 20618
FRHBRBEER A Charged to the income staternent
(Hizz10) (&E&E5)) during the year (note 10) (restated) - 6,224 6,224
P BE ALK EARER 2 Withholding tax paid on repatriation of
BFIT 2T 2 FEMH earnings from subsidiaries in
(&E7) Mainland China (restated) - (6,822) (6822)
b R (e E5I) Exchange realignment (restated) - 1,088 1,088
RZZ—NF+=-A=+—H At31 December 2018 (restated)
(ge=75) - 21,108 21,108
RINE B R EEA Effect of adoption of HKFRS 16
BleH T E 157,166 - 157,166
RZE-NF—H—H At 1 January 2019 (restated)
(le=51) 157,166 21,108 178274
FRFA (BB )EBREXRZ Charged/(credited) to the income
I8 (fiet10) statement during the year (note 10) (646) 3,643 2,997
FABEAMEARELZ  Withholding tax paid on repatriation of
BFI = 2 EH earnings from subsidiaries in
Mainland China - (1,844) (1,844)
BEE 5 B Exchange realignment - (241) (241)
RZZ-AFFTZHA=F—H At31 December 2019 156,520 22,666 179,186
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19. IEZERIE (42) 19. Deferred Tax (Continued)
EEREEE Deferred tax assets
B
B ER R
i8] R B F nER
BEEE EHREEES HEAE a5
Temporary
difference of
provisions,
Tax credit accruals and Lease
not utilised depreciation liabilities Total
ARETT ARETT ARBTT ARETE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
RZE—NF—HA—H (&EF]) At January 2018 (restated) 1742 35350 - 37,092
FRFA/ (FBRE)ERERZ  Credited/(charged) to the income
I8 (fazio) (EE5) statement during the year (note 70)
(restated) (347) 6,740 - 6,393
R AR (KE7) Exchange realignment (restated) 80 23 = 303
RZE-NE+=-A=1+—H At 31 December 2018 (restated)
(&55) 1475 42313 - 43,788
RNE B B RS ER Effect of adoption of HKFRS 16
EN il - (5153) 200,092 194939
R-ZE—AFE—F—H (EBF|) At1January 2019 (restated) 1475 37,160 200,092 238727
FR 31’)\/ (B B)8BmKRZ  Credited/(charged) to the income
I (Hzt10) statement during the year (note 10) 1994 5,702 (2,829) 4867
ER RS Exchange realignment 54 = = 54
RZZE-NAE+ZA=+—H At 31 December 2019 3523 42,862 197,263 243,648
?ﬁ%ﬁ” T ATELEHEEEREBE EEJE For presentation purposes, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities
?f?ﬁﬁﬁﬁkﬁﬁ/ﬁﬁq:'ﬁ% T RAEER have been offset in the consolidated statement of financial position.
MBS DT AR B RE 2 A : The following is an analysis of the deferred tax balances of the Group

for financial reporting purposes:

—E-AF —E—)N\F
2019 2018
AR® TR AR®ETT
RMB’000 RMB'000
(&%)
(Restated)

RERE B ISR R R P HER Net deferred tax assets recognised in the
FELEIBEE consolidated statement of financial position 87,128 43,788

A /Z\'ﬁ:l/Zl\ BT AR S 2% R R Net deferred tax liabilities recognised in the

TR B A& consolidated statement of financial position (22,666) (21,108)
FIRET I A E Net deferred tax assets 64,462 22,680

—E-hEER
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19. SEEEBIH (&)

EEBIEEE (&)

BRI BI M FESEDE IR B RS 2 Fh
IR E B EMINHIEE & TR B BIE10%E
WM R ER T N\F— A —HBH#EE
BoWEAR_EEEF+TZA=FT—H#EZ
AT At - AEEABEEFNF R AL
ZHBARH_ZEENF—A—HRBEEZ
BRIk 2 A% B8 TR FL o fisi P B P b £
HNEIIGEE 2 Al ARER AT B RS ELY - RIFT &
AREZENHER -BAEBEME  BRAKE
5% 8%10% °

R-E—NE+-A=+—8 KREBELE
—XHTB R RIR KD IR ZFIA K #34,722,000
T (ZE—N\F E)FTRECHIBEE GG
TR &M B A R A KA gE R T AR DK
ZERF -

2R B [ B AR BRI A AR B X TS B 7 P AS B AR
B

RZZE-—NF+_A=+—H AEEEXK
BFREBSHNERBAIEINFEBEEARE
43,312,0007C ( =& — \F : A R#36,113,000
gL) AT AR SE A A R8I R R FERL A o
HRRR AT KA REE A FERAE - E LI R
RIEETIREE

SEEEEZERERAT
HOP HING GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

19. Deferred Tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets (Continued)

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10% withholding
tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign investors from the
foreign investment enterprises established in Mainland China. The
requirement is effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings
after 31 December 2007. The Group is therefore liable to withholding
taxes on dividends distributed by those subsidiaries established in
Mainland China in respect of earnings generated from 1 January
2008. A lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax
treaty between Mainland China and the jurisdiction of the foreign
investors. For the Group, the applicable rates are 5% and 10%.

As at 31 December 2019, deferred tax liabilities have not been
provided for the undistributed earnings of a subsidiary amounting to
RMB34,722,000 (2018: Nil) as it is not probable that the subsidiary will
distribute such earnings in the foreseeable future.

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the payment of
dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

At 31 December 2019, the Company had tax losses of RMB43,312,000
(2018: RMB36,113,000) arising in Hong Kong that were available
indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable profits of the relevant
company. Deferred tax assets have not been recognised as it is not
considered probable that taxable profits will be available.
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20. EIRRIE - RE R HMEUWERTE  20. Prepayments, Deposits and Other Receivables

—2-hE T N\F
2019 2018
AR®TR ARETTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
(#&E7)
(Restated)
TEFKI8 Prepayments 12,904 45,966
e Deposits 62,184 58,049
H At & W BR IR Other receivables 77,520 64,179
152,608 168,194

B EFATRNRIE e R Less: Current portion included in prepayments,
H b pE W BR 18 Z BN HAER 5 deposits and other receivables (110,082) (122,226)

FERNHAEL 0 - TR SRIE K Non-current portion: prepayments and

HEZe rental deposits 42,526 45,968

BRekEMEKERETZEEERS RMHE
BRE -EERELT REHRAMELER
EEEEMRZABLBRARHRENZA
REMETREI T EEEIRFAEEENR
AELBRARZIERT RI2EAEEBHE
BREHNBRREF R EERE  BAX
iR B BT B AR A A TR ($5 758

EBRTIELAR-

BIER LAl AR & R E 2 - 15 BT BRI
R KRB E S B s EWEREB AR RN
—NEFERZE—NFF+_A=+—1 EBiE#H

R fd AR -

Deposits and other receivables mainly represent rental deposits and
deposits with suppliers. Where applicable, an impairment analysis is
performed at each reporting date by considering the probability of
default of comparable companies with published credit ratings. In
the situation where no comparable companies with credit ratings
can be identified, expected credit losses are estimated by applying a
loss rate approach with reference to the historical loss record of the

Group. The loss rate is adjusted to reflect the current conditions and
forecasts of future economic conditions, as appropriate.

2018 were considered minimal.

Financial assets included in the above balances relate to receivables
for which there was no recent history of default and past due
amounts. The assessed loss allowances as at 31 December 2019 and

—E-NEEH
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21. REFERAEMERMEE

(@ XEEFE

21. Deposit Certificates and Other Financial
Assets

(a) Deposit certificates

—E-NF —ZE—)\F
2019 2018
AR®TR ARKEFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
A EFTE B EEE) Debt instruments measured at fair value
SFAHMGESWEMERTE  through other comprehensive income 60,000 -

HREREEPEAREEEZNRITEBENX
BIFE BEFHNER81%  [RATHR K36
BA KREFERTUER KBEFEQATFE
AESERE_BRANAFEER (AERE
RABRGAEBFERFE) -

AREERBERRSHE EEEXEEH
REMIAE 2 TR TSR fh 3t A6
2 AFE-

SEEEZERERAR
HOP HING GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

Balance represents deposit certificates purchased from a
creditworthy bank in Mainland China earning interest at a fixed rate
of 3.81% per annum with original maturity period of 36 months. The
deposit certificates were transferrable. The fair value measurement
of the deposit certificates are categorised in Level 2 of the fair value
hierarchy (i.e. fair value measurement using significant observable
inputs).

The Group estimated the fair value of the deposit certificates by
using a discounted cash flow valuation model based on the market
interest rate of instruments with similar terms and risk.
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(%)
(b) HtEmMEE

Rl 5 ER R i 5

Notes to Financial Statements

21. Deposit Certificates and Other Financial

Assets (Continued)
(b) Other financial assets

—E-NF —E—)\F
2019 2018
AR® TR ARETT
RMB’000 RMB'000
(&&E7)
(Restated)
EMBHZATEFEZ Financial assets measured at fair value through

TR E profit or loss
—JE LTS RER — Unlisted financial products 222,988 207,023
—REEfF & — Deposit certificate 20,000 =
242,988 207,023

HermBERUSRARPREABAEE
FERTABERFTHRN F30E303K (=
T N\F102F408K) NI LT EAESRES
BEMMBTFEAMEEZENRITEEDN
REBEGFE BTEFHERE39% RETHR A
36fE A o REEfFER] T8 LIER - A5 @b
BENATEFESEAFE-_ERXNATE
B4 BMfEAEANAERBABTEAFE.

AEECRARARSREHEENRFH
MEBBEZ TAZTHMEGFZEFEL
mREZRAFE.

Other financial assets represent unlisted principal-guaranteed
financial products purchased from creditworthy banks in Mainland
China with original maturity periods ranging from 30 to 303 days
(2018: 182 to 408 days) and a deposit certificate purchased from a
creditworthy bank in Mainland China earning interest at a fixed rate
of 3.99% per annum with original maturity period of 36 months.
The deposit certificate was transferrable and redeemable. The fair
value measurements of the other financial assets are categorised in
Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy (i.e. fair value measurement using
significant observable inputs).

The Group has estimated the fair value of these unlisted investments
by using a discounted cash flow valuation model based on the
market interest rates of instruments with similar terms and risks.
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22. RERREEEY 22. Cash and Cash Equivalents

—2-hE T NF

2019 2018

AR® TR ARETT

RMB’000 RMB'000

(&%)

(Restated)

Re MIRTTHERR Cash and bank balances 111,506 155,300
REBARRETRZEB THBA Non-pledged time deposits with original

=B A 2z S E B F 5K maturity of three months or less when acquired 48,894 115,860
REARRETEIAA Non-pledged time deposits with original

BB = 1B A 2 4K 3 T AR TF 5K maturity of more than three months when
acquired 92,500 81,500
Re MBS EEY Cash and cash equivalents 252,900 352,660
LT EETEC RS RRESEEY: Cash and cash equivalents were denominated in:

—E-hE —TNF

2019 2018

AR® TR ARETTT

RMB’000 RMB'000

€ <==70p)

(Restated)

g HKS 31,855 113,559

AR RMB 220,798 238,855

ETT United States dollar 247 246

252,900 352,660

ARBIGERARBAEMER R RIE
FERZ OMNEEREH) Kk (GE EE
RNEERBAE)  AREEEEBEREL
BINEEB ZRITHBARB L BMAOHMER -

RITHRSRBEBEEARTERNXFAEZF
BHEGE - EAERERIN T —RET @
AHIRE RFAREEHR ST KM E RILEHE
75 HATE B3 SN R R AR B,  SRITAEBRTF U
BRI AT EEQOCERAIRTT

148 ER&EEEZERERAF
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RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies. However, under
Mainland China's Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other
currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange
businesses.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made for varying periods
of between one day and twelve months depending on the cash
requirements of the Group, and earn interest at the respective short
term time deposit rates. The bank balances are deposited with
creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.
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23. Other Payables and Accrued Charges

HaE —E-h#F —T—N\F

2019 2018

ARETR ARETT

Notes RMB’000 RMB'000

(&%)

(Restated)

BHBEE Contract liabilities @) 4,281 5,868

H b e~ AR 1B Other payables ®) 66,324 63,276

FEEt & A Accrued charges 258,091 285,957

Bt Total 328,696 355,101

Kiat - Notes:

@ AREEERBREHRHNRBITIZEBNER (@)  The contract liabilities represented the aggregate amount of the

FRED B2 X 5 B85 - AL B R H R E
TRZBEHNEEMEN R XS ERELEHE
AEPBEREMER —FAER R KR &
WEEBEARESEEOTEEL ZRIE
Yezs I 5t 38 B B dn (R 5 P YR ER 2 FE B A 5K
RZB-NFER_Z-NFANEERIZ
TERARMHEEmAT PR EH

TN
B0/ A

R=ZZF—N\F—A—H AHEESEAA
R #6,247,0007C °

RAZRE MR WA (B AREH
HAEHERE) B ARES680007T (ZF— N\
&F: AR #6,247,0007T) °

Hip BNRARREMFANKAL—E=
fEA -

transaction price allocated to the performance obligations that are
unsatisfied as of the end of the reporting period. The Group expects
that the transaction price allocated to the unsatisfied performance
obligations will be recognised as revenue within one year when the
Group transfers goods to the customer. The contract liabilities included
deferred revenue arising from the loyalty point programme of the
Group and short-term advances received from customers for the sale
of goods. The decrease in contract liabilities in 2018 and 2019 was
mainly due to the decrease in short-term advances received from
customers for the sale of goods.

At 1 January 2018, the contract liabilities amounted to RMB6,247,000.
Revenue recognised in the current reporting period that were
included in the contract liabilities at the beginning of the reporting

period amounted to RMB5,868,000 (2018: RMB6,247,000).

Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have average payment
terms of one to three months.

—E-hEER
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24, R 24. Share Capital
—E-h#F —E-N\F
2019 2018
AR® TR ARETT
RMB’'000 RMB'000
(&&E=5)
(Restated)
VEIE : Authorised:
14,800,000,0008% ( =ZF — )\ % : 14,800,000,000 (2018: 14,800,000,000)
14,800,000,0000% ) ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each
R EE B #50.107T 2 iR 1,205,529 1,205,529
ERITREE Issued and fully paid:
10,070,431,786[% (=& — N\ & : 10,070,431,786 (2018: 10,070,431,786)
10,070,431,7861% ) ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each
FREEB K0T 2 B 820,284 820,284

ARF 2 BHITEBBRBEARRIE R ZE
AERANBONFRAZEBMEEIIAT

A summary of the movements in the Company's issued ordinary
share capital and shares held under share award scheme during the
year is as follows:

EERITEBERRAE Issued ordinary share capital
i BETROEE BEREIREN  ROEER @ar
Number of Issued  Share premium
Note shares in issue share capital account Total
ARETT  ARETT  ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
B#1T: Issued:
RZZE—NF—A—H (LEH) At1January 2018 (restated) 10,070,431,786 820,284 3,166,899 3,987,183
"L FRERE (KEF])  Final 2017 dividend (restated) 71 - - (69,036) (69,036)
RZZE—NFE+-A=F+—HR At31 December 2018 and
ZE-AF-R—B(KEH) 1 Janvary 2019 (restated) 10,070431,786 820,284 3097863 3918147
- \FERERE Final 2018 dividend 77 - - (51,356) (51,356)
RZZE—NE+-A=+—H  At31December 2019 10,070431,786 820,284 3,046,507 3,866,791
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24, Share Capital (Continued)

RERMDRBFTEFEZRG Shares held under share award scheme
BEZ
k3 B#HEE
Number of AR® T
Note shares held RMB’000
RZZE—-N\F—H—H At 1 January 2018 (restated)
(&%) 259,487,400 (25,307)
RIFR D BT IR B 2 D Vesting of shares under share award
(&=5)) scheme (restated) (19,436,533) 1,902
BIFRRD @ ET 2IBE A Z XD Shares purchased under share award
(reE7) scheme (restated) @) 73,136,000 (9,786)
RZZFE—NF+-_A=+—HK At31 December 2018 and
ZE-NAF—A—H(&E%) 1 January 2019 (restated) 313,186,867 (33,191)
RS WD S2BN T 28R B Z &1 Vesting of shares under share award
scheme (43,085,473) 4,510
RAEM D 2B =T 2B A Z &1 Shares purchased under share award
scheme (@) 67,376,600 (8,918)
R=ZFE—NF+=A=+—H  At31 December 2019 337,477,994 (37,599)

@ RFER ZFTA(EERNT06)IZERASE
#0145 T BB #0160 (Z T — N\ F: B
014772 %0.1707T ) 2 fB% + 8 A67,376,000
B% (== — J\4F : 73,136,0000% ) £ A% [ (B 75 #&
01mz EimAR - BRELN R ARKS9180007T

—ZE—)\F: AR¥9786,0007T) ° ZZERD
EDEABEFRG -

BERERRDRE
AMAR TR 8RR A8 SR

BIBEZETEIE 31T 2 B R I 826~
FH)FEE D B E R Y B RER M FE25 %26 ©

Note:

(a) During the year, 67,376,000 (2018: 73,136,000) ordinary shares of
HKS$0.1 each were purchased by the Trustee (as defined in note 26) at
prices ranging from HK$0.145 to HKS0.160 per share (2018: HK$S0.147
to HK$0.170 per share) at a total consideration of approximately
RMB8,918,000 (2018: RMB9,786,000). The shares have been classified as
treasury shares.

Share options and share awards

Details of the Company's share option scheme and the share award
scheme and the movements of the share options and share awards
under the schemes are included in notes 25 and 26 to the financial
statements, respectively.

—E-hEER
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25. B fE 25. Share Options

152

RRBNRZFEZNF=A+Z RERABRAEST
g ([T N\FREHEE]) - —TFNF
BREFIN TN\ FOA-_THEBEXK
ERZZE—N\FONA-tOAER ER=-F
TNFEREABER ARRR_FT—N\F
NANBRA—BFBRESS (2N
FRERERTE])

R —ET N\ FREEEEIEER  BERIE
TR N\FEREFEE TR IBRE R
- SRR - TR N\FERES DS RHER
TEZBERENS  ARAZREREMNTRY
@,

T\ FRBRETE S ERBAERALIE
FRBREAKEER 2 EME HBERS
BEZER ARSI RREHAREE 2 RR
BRARDBEEAR LEER B AIHA
BEUBFRAEEZAEMATIAEMLT
ANEZFEERATHFERRE MES
ms Mg HEEESAEEGTARSIREE A
BRBRENZEARNALR SBREBREE
EELZER - RAZFERATIRHERRE
BABREEESARE R ENE QR RMH
RRERS  — - \FBEETI 228,
BREAKE ZEME2RES KASEEMAFE
HTEF AKETMER Fx REHAK
RANEZGAARRBRRIEZEMAL

SEEEZERARAT
HOP HING GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

The share option scheme adopted by the Company on 12 March
2008 became effective on 25 April 2008 and expired on 24 April 2018
(the “2008 Share Option Scheme”). In light of the expiry of the 2008
Share Option Scheme, a new share option scheme was adopted by
the Company on 8 June 2018 (the “2018 Share Option Scheme”).

As the 2008 Share Option Scheme has expired, no options can
further be granted under the 2008 Share Option Scheme. However,
for the outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under
the 2008 Share Option Scheme, the existing rights of the grantees
are not affected.

The purpose of the 2018 Share Option Scheme is to motivate eligible
persons to optimise their future contributions to the Group and/
or to reward them for their past contributions, to attract and retain
or otherwise maintain on-going relationships with such eligible
persons who are significant to and/or whose contributions are or
will be beneficial to the performance, growth or success of the
Group, and additionally in the case of employees, to continue to
enable the Group to attract and retain individuals with experience
and ability and/or to reward them for their past contributions
and to provide such individuals with a performance incentive for
continued and improved services with the Group and its subsidiaries.
The participants of the 2018 Share Option Scheme include any
full-time employee and any non-executive director of the Group, any
consultant, expert, agent or representative of the Group, and any
person approved by the Board or shareholders of the Company.
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25, Share Options (Continued)

The term of the 2018 Share Option Scheme is 10 years commencing
on 8 June 2018 and expiring on 7 June 2028. As at the date of
approval of these financial statement, the total number of shares
available for issue under the 2018 Share Option Scheme was
431,030,178 shares, which represented approximately 4.28% of
the issued share capital of the Company as at that date. The total
number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the
options granted to each participant (including exercised, cancelled
and outstanding options) in any 12-month period must not exceed
1% of the shares of the Company in issue. In addition, any share
options granted to a substantial shareholder or an independent
non-executive Director, or to any of their respective associates, in
excess of 0.1% of the number of shares of the Company in issue at
any time and with an aggregate value (based on the closing price of
the Company's shares at the date of grant) in excess of HKS5 million,
within any 12-month period, are subject to shareholders’ approval in
advance in a general meeting.

The period within which the options may be exercised in accordance
with the terms of the 2018 Share Option Scheme, shall: (i) be
determined by the Directors; (i) commence on the expiration of
12 months (or such shorter period as may be determined by the
Directors) from the date of grant of options; and (jii) in any event not
more than 10 years from the date on which it commences.

The offer of a grant of options must be accepted within 21 days from
the date of the grant at a consideration of HK$1.00 for the grant. The
exercise price of an option to subscribe for shares granted pursuant
to the 2018 Share Option Scheme shall not be less than the higher
of: (i) the closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's
daily quotations sheet on the date on which the grant is made to
a participant, which must be a business day; and (i) the average
closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheets for the 5 business days immediately preceding the
date on which the grant is made.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to
vote at shareholders” meetings.

—E-hEER
Annual Report 2019

153



871 5 ¥R R it 5

Notes to Financial Statements

25, B (&) 25. Share Options (Continued)
RZZBE—NF+_A=+—8" TIRE=_Z= As at 31 December 2019, the following share options granted under
SNFHEREFE R - — \FERKRE S the 2008 Share Option Scheme and 2018 Share Option Scheme were
BT ARATE 2 B AR outstanding:

BREHA ARARGER
Number of share options Price of the Company’s shares
R R
ZB-NE Z2-0E R 34
SEERRARA -A-B ERRH R FR&M tZAZT-B  RUAR T8 (i REEH  RLEMA
(W) (Hity) (Wits)
At Granted Exercised Lapsed At Immediately
Name or category of 1 January during during during  31December Exercise Exercise Atdate of before the
participant 2019 the year the year the year 2019 Dateof grant period price grant grant date
Note3) (Note4) (Note3)
BRER BRER BREN
HKS HK$ HKS
per share per share per share
gz
Directors
AlfEfR 10070000 - - - 100000  =E-\FAANR T NERANRE 0189 0189 0190
Seto Gin Chung, John (##1) “E-\ExALA
8 June 2018 8 June 2019 up
Note 1) t07 June 2028
$ER 10070000 - - - 100000  =E-\FxANH ZE-NERANRE 0189 0189 019
SzeTsaiTo,Robert (W) “2-)\§/AtA
8 June 2018 8 June 2019 up
Note 1) 107 June 2028
LECES 10070000 - - - 100000  =E-\FxANR “2-NERANRE 0189 0189 0190
Shek Lai Him, Abraham! (Hi1) —2-\E/AtH
8 June 2018 8 June 2019 up
Note 1) to7 June 2028
il 10070000 - - - 100000  =E-\FRANR T NERANRE 0189 0189 0190
Wan Sai Cheong, Joseph (##t1) “E-\ExALA
8 June 2018 8 June 2019 up
Note 1) t07 June 2028
EHE 72500000 - - - N0 ZF-HEMAAA BERU TR e AR 017 0127 0130
Wong Kok ing (i) E2-Z-RERANAL
9 April 2015 Commencement subject to Note 6
(Note2) below and up to 8 April 2025
112780000 - - - 112,780,000

154 EEEFEERERAT
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==
25. IR E (&) 25. Share Options (Continued)
BREXA FRERGER
Number of share options Price of the Company’s shares
R R
Z2-0E Z2-0E R 34
SuEEREER -A-B ERRH B FREH tZAZT-B  RHAR L) i3 REEH  RLEMA
(Hi3) (Hite) (Wits)
At Granted Exercised Lapsed At Immediately
Name or category of 1 January during during during  31December Exercise Exercise Atdate of before the
participant 2019 the year the year the year 2019 Dateof grant period price grant grant date
Note3) Note4) (Note3)
BRER BRER BREN
HK$ HK$ HKS
per share per share per share
[BE® 27500000 - - - w50 ZF-REMANA BERATH SRR KRR 0127 017 0130
Employees in aggregate (#382) EZ-T-REMANAL
9 April 2015 Commencement subject to Note 6
(Note ) below and up to 8 April 2025
72500000 - - - 0w ZF-tf BERN TR 4R 01988 0197 0185
AAZTZH BE-EtERA-T-AE
57
22 June 2017 Commencement subject to Note 6
Note ) below and up to 21 June 2027
463233000 - - - @3 ZF-NERANE BERATH SRR KRR 0189 0189 0190
(Hiti) EEZEC\ERALAL
8 June 2018 Commencement subject to Note 6
Note 1) below and up to 7 June 2028
- 72500000 - - 0 ZF-hE BERN TR AR 01628 0162 0162
-A=t-8 BE-ECnE-ACTAL
(K1)
21 January 2019 Commencement subject to Note 6
Note 1) below and up to 20 January 2029
763233000 72500000 = = 835,733,000
BERAES (M) 267320 - - (26,167320) - CERfE ZE-TEMA-tLAE 035 035 0340
Directors and ex-directors MA=t+A “E-WERAZ17A
(lote7) (H)
27 hpril 2009 27 April 2010 up
Note ) 1026 April 2019
902,180320 72500000 = (26,167,320) 948,513,000
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25. BIRHE (&)
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25, Share Options (Continued)

Notes:

(1

The relevant share options were granted under the 2018 Share Option
Scheme.

The relevant share options were granted under the 2008 Share Option
Scheme.

The vesting periods of the share options run from the date of grant to
the commencement of the exercise period.

BEARIE 2 1T(EE THRE- (4)  The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustments.
RATRGAR L A BNERAREL A (5)  The price of the Company's shares at the date of grant is the closing
FRBSE R P B ¥R 2R A o1l 2 AR 1 W T 1 o price of the shares as stated in the Stock Fxchange's daily quotations
sheet on the date of grant.
BERENGBHET2HEERTEINESS (6)  The vesting of share options are subject to the participants’
THERELEREEME - EFTELERSR achievement of performance targets to be set by the Board from time
HEHBRE R ZERRKRE HBMNS to time. The Board will notify the participants, after considering the
HEBRESBFE BESTEBEBZR participants’ performance and achievement of the pre-set targets, the
IRiES B RIBBRERETSIREERERE details of the vesting of share options, including the number of share
T EARR A B o options to be vested and the date of commencement of the exercise
period of the vested share options in accordance with the share
option schemes.
T AR T NFIRERITEEBBIST (7)  The following share options were granted at an exercise price of
RO zEBRE BR-_T-—NLFHNA=+t HK$0.35 per share in 2009 and lapsed on 27 April 2019;
=P
BREHE
Number of
share options
S Directors
AlIfEIRH Seto Gin Chung, John 2,464,000
£ HE Sze Tsai To, Robert 2,464,000
AtE R Shek Lai Him, Abraham 2,464,000
L EA Lam Fung Ming, Tammy 1,527,320
ECIES Wong Kwok Ying 4,928,000
RIES Ex-Directors
H e Hung Hak Hip, Peter 4,928,000
=H5A Wong Yu Hong, Philip 2,464,000
KoK Cheung Wing Yui, Edward 2,464,000
TIRE Lee Pak Wing 2,464,000
#at Total 26,167,320

SEEEZERERAR
HOP HING GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Share Options (Continued)

The fair value of the share options was RMB20,844,000 (2018:
RMB37,268,000) which was estimated using a binomial option
pricing model, taking into account the terms and conditions upon
which the options were granted. The Company recognised a credit of

B AR 1152000 (ZE—N\F - HAZAR RMB1,152,000 (2018: expense of RMB1,835,000) during the year.
1 835,0007T ) ©
B 2 N TFETERATRR MG The fair value of share options was estimated using the following
assumptions:
—E-AEF —ZE—)\F
2019 2018
A% B2 (%) Dividend yield (%) 1.97-5.922 1.97-5.36
T8 HA % 1 (%) Expected volatility (%) 34.17-51.66 34.17-51.29
ﬁEE?Ei & (%) Historical volatility (%) 34.17-51.66 34.17-51.29
% 71 2K (%) Risk-free interest rate (%) 1.43-2.43 143-243
Tﬂifﬁ%l =% Exercise multiple — director 2.80 2.80
TEEH—ER Exercise multiple — employee 2.20 2.20

BRI TR HR R R T B B A MO 7T 1
B -

T8 HR 0 S BRI SR B AT R BROR SR B A0 1R
R MALRRERNGER

SHE A ARSI A KA BB AR -

The expected life of the share options is not necessarily indicative of
the exercise patterns that may occur.

The expected volatility reflects the assumption that the historical
volatility is indicative of future trends, which may also not necessarily
be the actual outcome.

No other feature of the share options was incorporated into the
measurement of fair value.
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25.

26.

B (&)
RIZE—AE+-A=+—8 AARINER
HEET 21N /5 948,513,00017 7K 17 {50 B IR #E - #2 AX
NAVRRZERGRE  BEITERRITEZRE
P HEE 155 2 54 35 77948,513,000A% 7R A 7] & 378 A% A
N EE 5B INR AN A R #584,797,0007T & A& 17 )i
B8 AR¥57,7780007T (AREHEITRL) -

BR-_F-NFRANBR-_ZE-NF—A
—t—AREBEEN AFEREFAMER
PRI AT E

RHEE R B R 3R 2k B HE - AN 2 §145 948,513,000
MREERRAERTBITE T 2 RITEIBALE - HER
KRBIRZH 2 BE1TRD 4994% °

B A0 R BT &
R-F-AF=A-+0 ARAEFRFM
—IERRAD M8 ([IR 1D SmEr 81 - b
EAKEIEEEAS EEERMROET
2 B S S R -

Rt REHEE —T-RAF=A-+RH (K
B B1sFEHRA RN AR - RER D
Rt B FTERB AR (TE2EAR D 1) 5 F A
MREABNZFEA (ZFEADRRRATS
R FRBERERARABRRAEG LR
—iRIFRE - N AREE AT E MR 2 R
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25,

26.

Share Options (Continued)

As at 31 December 2019, the Company had 948,513,000 share
options outstanding under the share option schemes. The exercise
in full of the outstanding share options would, under the present
capital structure of the Company, result in the issue of 948,513,000
ordinary shares of the Company and additional share capital of
RMBB84,797,000 and share premium of RMB57,778,000 (before issue
expenses).

Save for the grant of share options on 8 June 2018 and 21 January
2019, no options were granted or exercised during the current and
last years.

At the date of approval of these financial statements, the Company
had 948,513,000 share options outstanding under the share option
schemes, which represented approximately 9.4% of the Company’s
shares in issue as at that date.

Share Award Scheme

On 20 March 2015, the Board of the Company adopted a share
award scheme (the “Share Award Scheme”) as a means to recognise
the contribution of and provide incentives for the key management
personnel, employed experts and core employees of the Group.

The Share Award Scheme is valid and effective for a period of 15
years from 20 March 2015 (the “Adoption Date”). The shares to be
awarded under the Share Award Scheme (the “Award Shares”) will
either be acquired by the trustee of the Share Award Scheme (the
“Trustee”) from the open market or be new shares issued and allotted
to the Trustee under general mandates granted by shareholders
at the general meetings of the Company from time to time, both
of which will be funded from cash contributed by the Group. The
Trustee will hold the Award Shares in trust for the awardees until
such shares are vested with the awardees in accordance with the
provisions of the Share Award Scheme. The Trustee shall not exercise
the voting rights in respect of any shares held under the trust.

The Board shall not make any further award of shares which will
result in the aggregate number of shares awarded by the Board
throughout the duration of the scheme to exceed 10% of the total
number of issued shares of the Company from time to time and shall
not award more than 1% of the total number of issued shares to any
selected participant from time to time.
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26. Share Award Scheme (Continued)

The vesting of shares awarded to the awardees is subject to
conditions and vesting schedules as determined by the Board in its
sole discretion.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Board resolved
to grant share awards in respect of 62,914,000 (2018: 38,699,120)
shares to certain selected participants who are not a director,
chief executive or substantial shareholder of the Company, nor an
associate (as defined under the Listing Rules) of any of them.

The shares granted will be vested in the respective proportions
and on the dates as set out in the relevant letters of grant issued
by the Company. Vested shares will be transferred to the selected
participants at no cost, save that transaction fees and expenses will
be payable by the selected participants as transferees.

Movements in the number of share awards and their average fair
value per share were as follows:

FRTH % 12
ATE REEE
Average
fair value Number of
per share  shares awards
i3
HKS$
RZZE—-N\F—H—BARITHE Outstanding at 1 January 2018 0.13 91,689,037
ERT Awarded 0.19 38,699,120
BEEE Vested 0.10 (19,436,533)
RZZFE—NF+ZA=+—HBK Outstanding at 31 December 2018 and
“E-NF-A-BINRITRE 1 January 2019 0.16 110,951,624
BT Awarded 0.14 62,914,000
B Forfeited 0.13 (5,804,060)
BB Vested 0.12 (43,085,473)
RZB-—NF+_A=+—8 Outstanding at 31 December 2019
HARITHE 0.14 124,976,091

HE_Z-—NWEFkZZE—N\F+ZA=+—
HIEFE iR 5 R A FETERAR
ANRABRMHAR L BBHRKRHEZAFE (BT
B)fHate

The fair value of the share awards granted during the years ended
31 December 2019 and 2018 was estimated by using the fair value
(i.e. market value) of the Company's share closing price at the date of
grant.
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27.

28

W&
ARBEAFERBETE 2 RELERY
GEE) Rt DELERE

EEHELRH

AEBERBEEHELHBESTEMH BHQ
EMERBE -R_ZT—\F ZEWEZH
HEER—ETEFTF-

RZZ—N\F+ZA=+—H xEERET
AREGEHERARAX N Z2HERIELRL

27.

28.

Reserves

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements therein
for the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity.

Operating Lease Commitments

The Group leased certain of its shops, office premises and
warehouses under operating lease arrangements. In 2018, leases for
properties were negotiated for terms ranging from one to fifteen
years.

At 31 December 2018, the Group had total future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases falling due as

BT follows:
ARETTT
RMB'000
(g=51)
(Restated)
—FA Within one year 228,023
E_FZFLF (BEERME) In the second to fifth years, inclusive 489,001
iR Beyond five years 190,732
907,756

AN BT ERL&EEER S THIREEM
CHBESEBEROMBERLIGHEE S
ERHEEEECHKATHEMERZESE
1B o AR ERE AT SR 2 R REE
BN ERWES AB@AIAHSMET AR
R & AdE -

SEEEEZERERAT
HOP HING GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

In addition, the operating lease rentals for certain shops are based
on the higher of a fixed rental and contingent rent based on sales
of these shops pursuant to the terms and conditions as set out
in the respective rental agreements. As the future sales of these
shops could not be accurately determined, the relevant contingent
rent had not been included above and only minimum lease
commitments had been included in the above table.
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29. EREKIE 29. Capital Commitments
RBEBR REB 2 EARRASAENT - At the end of the reporting period, the Group had the following

commitments for capital expenditure:

—E-NEF —EFE-N\F
2019 2018
ARETx ARET T
RMB’000 RMB'000
(&&E75)
(Restated)
BRI 4B RFHRE: Contracted, but not provided for:
VI BB Mk Property, plant and equipment 5,505 2,195
30. KEBEREXRME 30. Notes to the Consolidated Statement of
Cash Flows
) MEGTHFMELEZEERD (a) Changes in liabilities arising from
financing activities
HEBRE RITEX
Lease

liabilities Bank loan
ARETF T ARETF T
RMB'000 RMB'000
RZZE—N\F—HA—B (L£LE7%) At 1 January 2018 (restated) = 8,330
FEZIE (L&) Interest expense (restated) - 44
ERFEXH (EET) Interest expense paid (restated) = (44)
B (&E5) Repayment (restated) = (8,330)

RZZT—N\F+=-HA=+—H  At31 December 2018 (restated)
(#&&E=75) - -

MBS ERERIZE165% 2 Effect of adoption of HKFRS 16

o 800,369 =
R=F—NnF—F—H (FKE5) At 1 January 2019 (restated) 800,369 -
HHE New leases 218,692 -
LIEHEE Termination of leases (16,434) =
FEX H Interest expense 40,997 =
BEAAF S H Interest expense paid (40,997) =
HENFAEEH D Principal portion of lease payments (213,575) =
RZFE—NRFETZHA=+T—H  At31 December 2019 789,052 =

—E-hEER
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30. mEBRERERMTE (&)

(b) EXFERERS
FRN AEEREFZHELHEEIER
SAREFHEEEREEGE DA
AR #218,692,0007T & A K #£218,692,000
T(ZE—N\F:F)-

0 HERSHRELE
HARSRERZMER SR 2EN

30. Notes to the Consolidated Statement of
Cash Flows (Continued)
(b) Major non-cash transactions

During the year, the Group had non-cash additions to right-
of-use assets and lease liabilities of RMB218,692,000 and
RMB218,692,000, respectively, in respect of lease arrangements
for buildings (2018: Nil).

(c) Total cash flow for leases

The total cash outflow for leases included in the statement of

™ cash flows is as follows:
—E-hEF
2019
AR® T
RMB’000
REEBA Within operating activities 35,388
BMEESA Within financing activities 254,572
RZZE-hFE+ZA=+—AH At 31 December 2019 289,960

31 . EHEAETR S
BRI BERELMBHARE L AHEATR
S RESBIN REBRERNE N REBETE
ABI R ZEME :

31. Related Party Transactions

In addition to those related party transactions and balances disclosed
elsewhere in the financial statements, the Group had the following
compensation to key management personnel during the year:

—E-NF —T—)\F

2019 2018

ARBTR ARETT

RMB’000 RMB'000

(&&E7)

(Restated)

EHIE B R Short-term employee benefits 5,927 6,003
REL 218 A Post-employment benefits 121 128
VARRREAE 5 2 DARR 9 2 A+ Equity-settled share-based payments (323) (267)

MEBEBABINZEE4%  Total compensation paid to key management

personnel 5,725 5,864

EREENE 2 —THBERY B REKM
5F8 o

SEEEZERERAR
HOP HING GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

Further details of directors’ emoluments are included in note 8 to the
financial statements.
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32. Financial Instruments by Category

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial

instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

ZE-NF 2019
BREE Financial assets
REH ERER EBREH
BAFI 2 RAVE RAVERNE
SRMEE ABZeRE ZemEE st
Debt
instruments
Financial  measured at
Financial assets at fair value
assets at fair value through other
amortised through comprehensive
cost  profit or loss income Total
ARETR AR®TR AR®TR ARETR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
[ U BR 1B Accounts receivable 18,473 - - 18,473
SPABRRE BER Financial assets included in prepayments,

AR RE SREAE deposits and other receivables 84,009 - - 84,009
REFEE Deposit certificates - - 60,000 60,000
HiteRmEE Other financial assets - 242,988 - 242,988
RekFAeEEY Cash and cash equivalents 252,900 - - 252,900

355,382 242,988 60,000 658,370
TRAE Financial liabilities
R
R R 2
TREE
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
AR®T R
RMB’000
FE S BRIE Accounts payable 129,166
FTAH A ER IRIE K& Financial liabilities included in other payables and

EHAERzZSRBE accrued charges 110,040

HEBE Lease liabilities 789,052
1,028,258
—E-hEER
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32. RERESWEMTA (&)

32. Financial Instruments by Category

(Continued)
—E-N\F 2018
TREE Financial assets
TR SR AR i =
TRz  HBRAFEAR
TREE L REE FE
Financial assets
Financial at fair value
assets at through
amortised cost profit or loss Total
AREF T AREEFTT AREET T
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
(&=7) (&=7) (&=75)
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
FEUL BR IR Accounts receivable 17,512 - 17,512
FTATERNFRIE  EHE K Financial assets included in prepayments,

HiEBRRZ 2 A E deposits and other receivables 78,403 - 78,403
Hih @& E Other financial assets - 207,023 207,023
RekBeEEY Cash and cash equivalents 352,660 = 352,660

448,575 207,023 655,598
TERBE Financial liabilities
R SH A AN
PRz eRaE
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
ARET T
RMB'000
(&=5)
(Restated)
FE S BRIE Accounts payable 112,608
st AE A ERTBRIE R EST  Financial liabilities included in other
BERzemAaE payables and accrued charges 160,964
273,572

SEEEZERERAR
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AEEZTESRTAREFBRITERAR
RekBMER ZEemTAZIZANR
EEESRNAREZEE - ASEBRER
weRmEERAGE HINAEKENEENE
BELZREIRE EtRIKRE Hbs i
BE BAERE EMEMNRERESFER-

EEECDHEREMESFEY  BYERE
FEFRRIA - G ATENBOR - 28 K E Al R AR
A2 & BE B A MGt AR M B BRI R BT
ERzeRABsAHE RARLEREEM
2o

AAsEeRTAMEEZRBRER R
Rk SRR EERR RBHESRARK
AmERER - EF S FHNRE EEAMS
AR 2 BER - W o

R YE

AEEHRH cHENEREHRMREETER
AEBRFHMERA B ZRITER - AEET
PIEER N RE R I &0 F 2 B REUE i
LA 50 B B8 A ) = e g =

SN TR B
AEBIEREERFENEE  MELEH
BE AERXSEEUEMHARMHE:

BEEREREAKEZINERR WHRE
FEBZEREARINESERETE -

7R B3 S B BRSNS SRR - B
PEE 2R BY P E A 2 B 22 RR R BRI AN 5% [ 7
mRBRBR RN (EERBRT)
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Notes to Financial Statements

33. Financial Risk Management Objectives

and Policies

The Group's principal financial instruments comprise an interest-
bearing bank loan, and cash and short-term deposits. The main
purpose of these financial instruments is to raise finance for the
Group's operations. The Group has various other financial assets
and liabilities such as accounts receivable, other receivables, other
financial assets, accounts payable, other payables and accrued
charges, which arise directly from its investments and operations.

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and cash
equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts payable, financial assets
included in prepayments, deposits and other receivables and
financial liabilities included in other payables and accrued charges
approximate to their carrying amounts.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial instruments are
interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and
commodity price risk. The board of directors reviews and agrees
policies for managing each of these risks, which are summarised
below.

Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest
rates relates primarily to the Group's bank loans carrying floating
interest rates. The Group monitors its interest rate exposure closely
and considers taking measures to reduce significant interest rate
exposure, if necessary.

Foreign currency risk

The Group operates mainly in Hong Kong and Mainland China
and its monetary assets, liabilities and transactions are principally
denominated in Hong Kong dollars or Renminbi.

The management monitors the Group's foreign exchange exposure
and will consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure
when the need arises.

The Group does not have a foreign currency hedging policy on it. The
translation differences arising from fluctuation in the exchange rate
of Hong Kong dollar are reflected in the Group's equity and profit
after tax, where appropriate.

—E-hEER
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33. I EEEBEZERENE (&£)  33. Financial Risk Management Objectives

and Policies (Continued)

SR B (42) Foreign currency risk (Continued)
TRIRERERR  ETEEMES BT The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of the
BHERT  AEERTE RS ARBER reporting period to reasonably possible change in the Renminbi

AREHENABESHNERE-

exchange rate, with all other variables held constant, of the Group's
profit after tax.

KEBBRBZ

BEER A,
A (TE) (R 2)
Increase/

Increase/ (decrease)

(decrease) in the Group’s
in HKS rate  profit after tax

ARET R
% RMB’000
—E-NF 2019
fim 5 AN R FHE If Hong Kong dollar strengthens against RMB 5 (6,286)
i B HARERE If Hong Kong dollar weakens against RMB (5) 6,286
—E-N\F 2018 (&%)
(Restated)
fim S W A R FHE If Hong Kong dollar strengthens against RMB 5 (4,054)
i B ARERE If Hong Kong dollar weakens against RMB (5) 4,054
EE R Credit risk
BBAEB2BE FIBEREESERBAZE It is the Group's policy that all customers who wish to trade on
FHERSEEREZ N REBFBEER credit terms are subject to credit verification procedures. In addition,
JEWBRIB A5 6% - RN EHER BIBUCR - AL E R receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis. With such
R IR TE IR KT o policies in place, the Group has been able to maintain its bad debts

SEREEEZERARAR
HOP HING GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

at a reasonable level.
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33. IBEREEREEREEX (& 33. Financial Risk Management Objectives

and Policies (Continued)

EERB (& Credit risk (Continued)

TREMASBEGEERREINEEEER The tables below show the credit quality and the maximum
meEERR (EZENBEBER AKIE KRIE exposure to credit risk based on the Group's credit policy, which
AT AR E DB ER AL S &S A E is mainly based on past due information unless other information
EUAERT A=+ —RAZ2FREER - is available without undue cost or effort, and year-end staging
2R e RemEE REAE- classification as at 31 December. The amounts presented are gross

carrying amounts for financial assets.

R=ZFB-hE+=B=+-—H As at 31 December 2019
128 A
RAREER
BR 2HRMEEER
12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
FRER FWR R BERE a5t
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total

AREBTT ARETE ARETR ARETT ARBTRL
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000

JE Y AR IR Accounts receivable* = = - 18473 18473
STABNFHE Bt EURARIE R Financial assets included
HiEEZ oREE in prepayments, other receivables
and other assets
-—fR -~ Normal 84,009 - - = 84,009
RiEirE Deposit certificates
— R AR B — Not yet past due 6,000 = = = 6,000
ReRAEEEY Cash and cash equivalents
— WA — Not yet past due 252,900 - = = 252,900
342,909 - - 18473 361,382
* AL E AL E T A2 EIRARIE - @ For accounts receivable to which the Group applies the simplified

approach for impairment.
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33. KEREEEERBE (&)

&Rk (&)

RZBE-N\FE+ZA=+—H

33. Financial Risk Management Objectives

and Policies (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

As at 31 December 2018

128 AR
FEFR 2HRMEERR
12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
FIER FMWR FER  BHLRE @t
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total

ARETT ARETR ARETR AR®TR ARETR
RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000
(gz5) (B85) (B&H) (K&EH) (KE)

(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
JE M BRI * Accounts receivable* = = = 17512 17,512
STABMFIE EfEUKERIB K  Finandial assets included
HthBEZSREE in prepayments, other receivables
and other assets
——R ~ Normal 78,403 - - = 78403
RekHeZEY Cash and cash equivalents
— W R — Not yet past due 352,660 - = = 352,660
431,063 - - 17512 48575

* AREEERBLRETEZEYIRE -

BRAKERBKEEMAEEERR ZE
— T EEBHE RUBHRERME17RE-

REEEE R
AEEERERERDES R TAERE
ASERZAR ZTAEEFEESBTA
RERAE (FIMEYIRE) RIBAE RS
e B -

AEEZERREREMARTEREBNES
BESMEARIHR HRHGESSEEE
MEBEMEME F 2 P

RASRE MR RIRERT A RBER N BT
ZASEERAEBBRRMT

SEEEEZERERAT
HOP HING GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

For accounts receivable to which the Group applies the simplified
approach for impairment.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group's exposure to credit
risk arising from accounts receivable are disclosed in note 17 to the
financial statements.

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using a recurring
liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the maturity of both its
financial instruments and financial assets (e.g. accounts receivable)
and projected cash flows from operations.

The Group's objective is to maintain a balance between continuity
of funding and flexibility through the use of bank loans to meet its
working capital and capital expenditure requirements.

The maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities as at the end
of the reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted
payments is as follows:
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Notes to Financial Statements

Financial Risk Management Objectives
and Policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

—-Ex ®-ERF BBRE @t
Within 1 year 2to5years  Over 5 years Total
ARBTRT AR%Tn AR¥ETR AR¥BTR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
—B-hF 2019
FERTARIE Amounts payable 129,166 - - 129,166
ST AR A ERIE R Financial liabilities included in other
EER eAR payables and accrued charges 110,040 - - 110,040
HERAR Lease liabilities 224,177 505,614 214,058 943,849
463,383 505,614 214,058 1,183,055
—T-N\F 2018
FEFERITE Amounts payable 112,608 - - 112,608
FTAEAMEMAIRER Financial liabilities included in other
EAERCeRARE payables and accrued charges 160,964 - - 160,964
273,572 - - 273,572

7 A fE A L B

REBAEERBAMTER2EEZRMARIE
TR HAREA AEBEEAZZERMR
BB B  MzxEERE(CAXE 2R
VATt [ (5 A R 2= 2 522 o R EHBAS K
BB E AN K E 2 M RIFEXN A FZE - 8
2T NFERFE-—N\F+=-_A=+—H
IEFER AEETET A HEEITELIA
AR s mER 2 B EES -

EXEE

AEBUEAER 2 HERR  ERREAE
BAENFERLLRERRBRZERLE I
SRFEEBEERZERSRREE-

AEEEEHEHEARBEL RNEEEREE(
AR - BERFHFHBEARE  AEEA
REEHEBRMBRRIKN 2RE  RERFREEER
SBTHRD BE_T-NER_FT—N\F
T-A=t—HRLFERN BEREAZFTE
R AR Fr 2 B 2

Commodity price risk

The major raw materials used in the production of the Group's
products include beef, chicken meat and pork. The Group is exposed
to fluctuations in the prices of these raw materials which are subject
to global as well as regional supply and demand and other factors.
Fluctuations in the prices of raw materials could adversely affect
the Group's financial performance. The Group did not enter into
any commodity derivative instruments to hedge the potential
commodity price changes during the years ended 31 December
2019 and 2018.

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern and to
maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to
it in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or adjust
the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment
to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares.
No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for
managing capital during the years ended 31 December 2019 and
2018.

—E-hEER
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34.

35.

WmEHEZREIE
—ECTFEEYBRBEAKBRITRZEHAE
MESHPEARENBE 2 mERBEERY
2 WhyErAREZHERT -BEARE
R AEENE TEHETEEE - A%
EDEmSEERLEAEERETRTETIRE
SEHASEEBULREPNEIM@EREER
EPHTHFE-ARRER T _FTF_A
—t+NBERE_ZEF=A_t+HBRLNE
TAEH A

XA B BB AR 2R

BRARABIRRERRZHBARRRE 2 EHR
AR

34.

35.

Events After The Reporting Period

The outbreak of the COVID-19 pneumonia which became a
pandemic at the beginning of 2020 has impacted the business
environment in the People’s Republic of China, and hence the sales
performance of the Group. With reduced traffic, the operation of
certain stores of the Group has been temporarily suspended since
then. The Group has implemented various measures to minimise
the adverse impact of COVID-19 on the business and the health and
safety of the customers and staff of the Group. Announcements on
the above were made by the Company on 28 February 2020 and 20
March 2020.

Statement of Financial Position of the
Company

Information about the statement of financial position of the
Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

—2-nE —ZT)N\F
2019 2018
ARETx AREF T
RMB’000 RMB'000
(&x&E75)
(Restated)
FREEE NON-CURRENT ASSETS
REBRRZEKE Investments in subsidiaries 2,844,151 2,844,151
REBEE CURRENT ASSETS
TE AT FRIE B E A Y AR I8 Prepayments and other receivables 1,009 957
BekIReEED Cash and cash equivalents 112 493
B EEHEE Total current assets 1,121 1,450
REEE CURRENT LIABILITIES
H R ARIERETE S Other payables and accrued charges 5,972 3,726
AN EPNGIE Amounts due to subsidiaries 118,679 53,947
REBBEEEE Total current liabilities 124,651 57,673
FREEETFE NET CURRENT LIABILITIES (123,530) (56,223)
FEE NET ASSETS 2,720,621 2,787,928
e EQUITY
BT A Issued share capital 820,284 820,284
& (HaE) Reserves (note) 1,900,337 1,067,644
BRER Total equity 2,720,621 2,787,928

SEEEZERERAR
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35. "R R HARRK (&)

35. Statement of Financial Position of the

Company (Continued)
Kot - Note:
ANATFEEZBEDT A summary of the Company's reserves is as follows:
AR
BRimaEE AXEE  SAR% EXREE  ZFEB @it
Share-
Share based
premium payment  Contributed Exchange  Accumulated
account reserve surplus reserve losses Total
ARETT ARETT ARETT AR®TT ARETT ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
R-E—-N\F—F—H At 1 January 2018 (restated)

(E=31) 3,166,899 19979 13,006 2877 (1188468 2033293
AEEF (LE7]) Profit for the year (restated) - = = - 460 460
AEAMEZEAS Other comprehensive expense for the year

—ER = (LE7) - exchange difference (restated) = = = (2,054) = (2,054)
AEREME/ (BX)EE  Total comprehensive income/

(& E5) (expense) for the year (restated) = = = (2,054) 460 (1,594)
FE R RENET &l 2 R Vesting of shares of share award

(&=5) scheme (restated) - (1,647) - - (255) (1,902)
MR E 2 AR Equity-settled share-based payments

(&5351) (restated) - 6,883 - - - 6,883
“ZE—CERERE (FiE17)  Final 2017 dividend (note 17) (restated)

(& E31) (69,036) - - - = (69,036)
RZZ—N\E+=-A=+—HJK At31 December 2018 and

—Z-N¥—HF—H 1 January 2019 (restated)

(& E31) 3,097,863 25215 13,006 19823 (1,188263) 1967644
AEEE Loss for the year = = = = (14.861) (14.861)
AEEMEHERR Other comprehensive expense

—-ERES for the year - exchange difference = = = (3011) = (3,011)
AEZERZBE Total comprehensive expense

for the year - - - (3011) (14,.861) (17.872)
FEBRN BB E 2 B’ Vesting of shares of share award scheme = (3929) = = (581) 4510)
MRS 2 ARMD I Fquity-settled share-based payments - 6431 = - - 6431
MR R A Share options lapsed = 4212) = = 4212 =
ZZ—\EREBE (A7:211)  Final 2018 dividend (note 11) (51,356) - - - - (51,356)
RZZ—AFTZA=+—H At31 December 2019 3,046,507 23,505 13,006 16812 (1,199493) 1900337

ARARZHBABHKRTIERBEER (KR K
EEERZERIERARAEEEER AR
([BERQA ) KNAARRRZEZEH B AR )R
RN R B EE 0107t 2 D 2 FE &R
RZEZENFOA-_+HA (AMEHZAEMA
H)ABNRI REMBAR 2 FARRER
ZR - BAFBEHNAEARBHAZZTEN
F=RF+WBZFEIXHER-

The Company’s contributed surplus represents the difference
between the nominal value of shares of HKS$0.10 each of the
Company allotted under a reorganisation whereby Hop Hing
Holdings Limited (“HHHL"), the then ultimate holding company of
the Group, became a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and
the consolidated shareholders’ equity of HHHL and its subsidiaries
as at 25 April 2008, the date on which this reorganisation became
effective. Details of this reorganisation were set out in HHHL's

scheme document dated 14 March 2008.
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35.

36.

ARRBMBRRE ()

UM MR EREEREREBERRITEZE
P b I B A B2 D 2 A B - 3K PR R B S R Y
25BN XN 2R B2 R -EH
T ER R IR B R REETERE
BERA - g AR B A A ) 22 R B A =k
BORU S BB S R R F

BERASEEARE RN_E—NLF+_A
=+ HAIDRTARRBRRE Z EEFEAA
R #1,860,02000070 (= ZF — \F (& F7)) :
AR #1,922,606,0007T ) * HEfisf A B2 BB # 55 TR IR
B HEE ARREIEER A S ESBRF
EEA 2 BIER T E#ETHIRe

TENBRRAFR
ARAEBHBARZHBEMT

35.

36.

Statement of Financial Position of the
Company (Continued)

The share-based payment reserve comprises the fair value of share
options and share award granted which are yet to be exercised, as
further explained in the accounting policy for share-based payment
transactions in note 2.5 to the financial statements. The amount
will either be transferred to share capital when the related options
or share awards are exercised, or be transferred to retained profits
should the related options or share awards expire or be forfeited.

Pursuant to the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the net
amount of reserves distributable to shareholders of the Company
as at 31 December 2019 was RMB1,860,020,000 (2018 (restated):
RMB1,922,606,000), the distribution of which is subject to the
condition that, immediately following the date on which the
dividend is proposed to be distributed, the Company will be in a
position to pay off its debts as and when they fall due in the ordinary
course of business.

Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

ANH
SR ERR BRITRE/ Fridk R
a8 - $ick BRRAEE Bk TEXHK
Place of Percentage of
incorporation/ Nominal value of equity
registration issued/and fully attributable to
Name and operations paid share capital the Company  Principal activities
REEREERRAERRA AERBRES 46,509 7T 100 REZK
Hop Hing Fast Food Group British Virgin Islands US$46,509 100 Investment holding
Holdings Limited
TREFRREFRR A mE/hER AR¥187700007C 100 4T AR T
Beijing Yoshinoya Fast Food PRC/Mainland China RMB18,770,000 100 Fast food restaurant operation
Company Limited*
ABRBRERR AT BE BT 100 REERRG
Champ Base Investments Limited Hong Kong HKS1 100 Provision of management services
RELSEREERDAN RE/HERN 800,000 7T 100 BEREE
Dalian Hexing Fast Food PRC/Mainland China US$800,000 100 Fast food restaurant operation
Company Limited*
RRAREEREEARAA 4@ /TEAL ARHL000000T 100 BEREE
Harbin Hop Hing Catering PRC/Mainland China RMB2,000,000 100 Fast food restaurant operation

Management Limited*

SEEEZERARAT
HOP HING GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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36. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries

(Continued)
RARIEEMBRARZFBHOT : (&) Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries are as follows:
(Continued)
NG
MY, E R BRITRE/ Frdk R
£8 e BRRAEE Bk FTEXHK
Place of Percentage of
incorporation/ Nominal value of equity
registration issued/and fully attributable to
Name and operations paid share capital the Company  Principal activities
EHARRA BB 7 11,000,0007C 100 RAR
Hawick Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 100 Investment holding
RERETALTREBRAR  RBAARES 1%7T 100 REERRE
Hop Hing Fast Food China North British Virgin Islands UsS1 100 Provision of management services
Investment Company Limited
REREERAF BE 75 #7,0000007C 100 REERRE
Hop Hing Fast Food Limited Hong Kong HK$7,000,000 100 Provision of management services
AEBFERRA BB BRI 100 REERRE
Hop Hing Franchise Limited Hong Kong HKS1 100 Provision of management services
REREREBRAA &t BEIT 100 RUER R
Hop Hing QSR Investments Limited Hong Kong HKS1 100 Provision of management services
WSS EEERERERAR TE/DERNM AR H5000007T 100 JRRERE
HuHeHaoTe Hop Hing Catering PRC/Mainland China RMB500,000 100 Fast food restaurant operation
Management Company Limited*
REARREBRAA HE/ R E R 75 #9,100,0007C 100 REREE
Liaoning Hop Hing Fast Food Company ~ PRC/Mainland China HK$9,100,000 100 Fast food restaurant operation
Limited*
REERAZERERBRAF B/ PEAM AR ¥5000007T 100 RERRLRHER RS
Tianjin Hejia Xingtai Catering PRC/Mainland China RMB500,000 100 Investment holding and provision of
Management Company Limited* management services
REERZEEHBERRAN HE/ R E R AR®2000000 100 RERRHERRE
Tianjin Jishisong Information PRC/Mainland China RMB20,00,000 100 Procurement and provision of
Technology Company Limited* management services
* RIERBOEGIGEM 2N B E B @ Registered as wholly-foreign-owned enterprises under PRC law
—E-hEER
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36. T EMEB A RIS (&)

ARREEMBRARZFFBOT: (&)

BREFEREEZERARIRIN LIIMEE
EMBRARIRARREERE - REBEE-F
—NE+ZA=+—RHILFE FRFR Lt
MBARMERER DL EES -

BEERA ERAIIZARRIMEBAREAE
EREHEEATE SJEAKEFEELE
20 MBINEBHBAR 2FBEREER
RBR IR

37. IR 2 2E
AR ERECHEEGN BB F=A=1
B2 R HETIE o

SEEEZERERAR
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36.

37.

Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries
(Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:
(Continued)

Except for Hop Hing Fast Food Group Holdings Limited, all the above
principal subsidiaries are indirectly held by the Company. There was
no change in the percentage of equity attributable to the Company
for the above subsidiaries during the year ended 31 December 2019.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the
opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for the year or
formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To give
details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors,
result in particulars of excessive length.

Approval of the Financial Statements

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by
the board of directors on 30 March 2020.
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A summary of the published results and of the assets and liabilities of the

hF RSt
Five Year Financial Summary

Group for the last five financial years is set out below.

BZE+t-A=t-HLEE

Year ended 31 December

“E-NE 2\ Tt ZFT-RF —T-1F
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
ARETR ARETT ARETT AR®TE AR®ETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
(x=5)  (g=:3) (K=E3)  (KE=5)
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
£ RESULTS
EEH Turnover 2,102,814 2003617 1923,286 1,790,164 1,660,543
EERN Profit from operating activities 193,270 152,688 209415 151,895 76,221
A& KR Finance costs (41,523) (621) (817) (716) (1,221)
BR A B 7 Profit before tax 151,747 152,067 208,598 151,179 75,000
FIEREY Income tax expense (47,637) (48587) (63,504) (44,509) 21,711)
AE A Profit for the year 104,110 103,480 145,094 106,670 53289
JEAE Attributable to;
AARIREREA Equity holders of the Company 104,110 103480 145,094 106,670 53,289
—E-NFFR

Annual Report 2019

175



176

hF il 2

Five Year Financial Summary

R+=ZA=+—-H
As at 31 December
“E-hE —T-N\F —T—+tF —T—RF —T-HF
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
ARETRT ARETT ARETT ARETRT ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
(E7) (EE7) (mE5) € &:27))
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
BE ASSETS
mE - BE K Property, plant and equipment 206,203 183018 177,826 169261 177,999
FREEE Right-of-use assets 626,080 - - - -
NAECEZIRE Investment in a joint venture 8,556 9820 = = -
EERBEE Deferred tax assets 87,128 43,788 37,092 30,934 22449
ERPERREREELRE Non-current prepayment and
rental deposits 42,526 45,968 42998 42126 38502
MEEE Current assets 835,107 796,077 763,931 636,344 459310
BEHAE TOTAL ASSETS 1,805,600 1078671 1021847 879,165 698,260
=i LIABILITIES
mEAE Current liabilities 656,698 473680 456,607 407,004 309,121
ELHIBAE Deferred tax liabilities 22,666 21,108 20618 20,759 13,771
FRHHEEARE Non-current lease liabilities 603,075 = - - -
SEAE TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,282,439 494788 477225 477763 322892
FEE NET ASSETS 523,161 583,883 544622 451402 375,368
SEEBRERERAT

HOP HING GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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